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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements of Inergy L.P.
INERGY L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except unit information)
March 31, September 30,
2010 2009
(unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19.2 $ 11.6
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.4 million and $2.7 million at March 31, 2010 and
September 30, 2009, respectively 167.3 94.7
Inventories (Note 3) 78.4 96.5
Assets from price risk management activities 8.9 23.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 13.7 20.2
Total current assets 287.5 246.8
Property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 1,711.6 1,555.2
Less: accumulated depreciation 387.3 327.9
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,324.3 1,227.3
Intangible assets (Note 3):
Customer accounts 330.2 277.4
Other intangible assets 152.5 133.0
482.7 410.4
Less: accumulated amortization 138.8 133.1
Intangible assets, net 343.9 277.3
Goodwill 461.0 374.3
Other assets 4.1 7.4
Total assets $2,420.8 $ 2,133.1
Liabilities and partners’ capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 887 $ 71.7
Accrued expenses 67.6 74.1
Customer deposits 21.4 60.1
Income tax liability (Note 5) 26.3 —
Liabilities from price risk management activities 5.6 29.3
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 6.7 22.0
Total current liabilities 216.3 257.2
Long-term debt, less current portion (Note 8) 1,201.1 1,071.3
Other long-term liabilities 0.9 0.9
Partners’ capital (deficit) (Note 9):
Common unitholders (65,856,653 and 59,807,087 units issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2010 and
September 30, 2009, respectively) 1,001.3 800.0
Non-managing general partner and affiliate (0.8) (0.6)
Total Inergy, L.P. partners’ capital 1,000.5 799.4
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s subsidiaries 2.0 4.3
Total partners’ capital 1,002.5 803.7
Total liabilities and partners’ capital $2,420.8 $ 2,133.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in millions, except unit and per unit data)

(unaudited)

Revenue:
Propane
Other

Cost of product sold (excluding depreciation and amortization as shown below):
Propane
Other

Gross profit

Expenses:
Operating and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of assets

Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other income

Income before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income attributable to non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated net income
Net income attributable to partners

Partners’ interest information:
Non-managing general partner and affiliate interest in net income

Total limited partners’ interest in net income

Net income per limited partner unit (Note 4):
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average limited partners’ units outstanding (in thousands):
Basic
Dilutive units
Diluted

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 551.5 $ 443.9 $ 9238 $ 853.1
139.6 126.2 269.0 251.0
691.1 570.1 1,192.8 1,104.1
368.2 283.6 620.5 566.8
83.2 74.4 157.4 150.9
451.4 358.0 777.9 717.7
239.7 212.1 414.9 386.4
86.8 73.4 155.3 146.2
40.1 26.6 77.2 529
1.7 2.3 3.7 3.0
111.1 109.8 178.7 184.3
(22.9) (18.1) (44.0) (34.9)
0.1 — 0.1 —
88.3 91.7 134.8 149.4
0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2
88.1 91.6 134.5 149.2
0.2 0.3 0.6 0.7
$ 879 $ 913 $ 1339 $ 1485
$ 17.6 $ 13.1 $ 342 $ 244
$ 703 $ 782 $ 99.7 $ 1241
$ 1.10 $ 1.52 $ 161 $ 242
$ 1.09 $ 1.52 $ 161 $ 242
64,213 51,492 62,001 51,286
39 31 43 21
64,252 51,523 62,044 51,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at September 30, 2009

INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
(in millions)
(unaudited)

Net proceeds from the issuance of common units
Net proceeds from common unit options exercised

Unit-based compensation charges
Acquisition of ASC minority interest
Distributions
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Change in unrealized fair value on cash flow hedges

Comprehensive income
Balance at March 31, 2010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Common Unit
Capital
$ 800.0

199.8
1.5
2.2

(7.8)

(85.4)

102.3
(11.3)

$ 1,001.3

Non-Managing
General Partner

and Affiliate

$ (0.6)

(31.7)

31.6
(0.1)

$ (0.8)

Non-
Controlling
Partners

$ 4.3

(2.3)
(0.6)

0.6

Total Partners’
Capital
$ 803.7

199.8
15
2.2

(10.1)

(117.7)

134.5
(11.4)
123.1
$ 1,0025
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

(unaudited)
Six Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009
Operating activities
Net income attributable to partners $ 133.9 $ 1485
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 62.6 39.6
Amortization 14.6 13.3
Amortization of deferred financing costs and net bond discount 3.7 1.8
Unit-based compensation charges 2.2 1.4
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated net income 0.6 0.7
Provision for doubtful accounts 0.3) 0.8
Loss on disposal of assets 3.7 3.0
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (54.1) (15.7)
Inventories 25.3 44.1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7.3 0.3
Other liabilities 1.4 0.2)
Accounts payable 15.9 (16.2)
Accrued expenses (12.4) 1.9
Customer deposits (41.1) (58.4)
Net liabilities from price risk management activities (20.2) (23.3)
Net cash provided by operating activities 140.3 141.6
Investing activities
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (262.2) (1.5)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (57.8) (104.1)
Proceeds from sale of assets 3.8 3.9
Net cash used in investing activities (316.2) (101.7)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financing activities

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Distributions

Payments for deferred financing costs

Net proceeds from issuance of common units

Net proceeds from common unit options exercised
Proceeds from swap settlement

Distributions paid to non-controlling partners

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period

INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(in millions)

(unaudited)

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities

Additions to intangible assets through the issuance of noncompetition agreements and notes to former owners of businesses acquired

Net change to property, plant and equipment through accounts payable and accrued expenses

Change in the fair value of interest rate swap liability and related long-term debt

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired:
Current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets
Current liabilities
Acquisition of ASC minority interest
Issuance of equity

Total acquisitions, net of cash acquired

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Six Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009

$ 648.5 $ 596.9

(543.0) (628.5)
(117.1) (87.6)
(9.9) (5.5)
199.8 85.6
15 —
4.3 —
(0.6) —
1835 (39.1)
7.6 0.8
11.6 17.3

$ 19.2 $ 18.1

$ 64 $ 27

$ 68 $ (29

$ (0.8) $ 58

$ 26.2 $ 03

115.2 43
74.6 2.5
86.7 1.8

0.1 —

(50.7) (0.7)
10.1 —
— (6.7)

$ 262.2 $ 15
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Note 1 — Partnership Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

The consolidated financial statements of Inergy, L.P. (“Inergy”, the “Partnership” or the “Company”) include the accounts of Inergy and its subsidiaries, including
Inergy Propane, LLC (“Inergy Propane”), Inergy Midstream, LLC (collectively, the “Operating Companies”) and Inergy Finance Corp.

Inergy Partners, LLC (“Inergy Partners” or the “Non-Managing General Partner”), a subsidiary of Inergy Holdings, L.P. (“Holdings”), owns the Non-Managing
General Partner interest in the Company. Inergy GP, LLC (“Inergy GP” or the “Managing General Partner”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Holdings, has sole
responsibility for conducting the Company’s business and managing its operations. Holdings is a holding company whose principal business, through its
subsidiaries, is its management of and ownership in the Company. Holdings also directly owns the incentive distribution rights (“IDRs”) with respect to Inergy.

Pursuant to a partnership agreement, Inergy GP or any of its affiliates is entitled to reimbursement for all direct and indirect expenses incurred or payments it
makes on behalf of Inergy and all other necessary or appropriate expenses allocable to Inergy or otherwise reasonably incurred by Inergy GP in connection with
operating the Company’s business. These costs, which totaled $3.7 million and $0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and $4.7 million and $1.9 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, include compensation, bonuses and benefits paid to officers
and employees of Inergy GP and its affiliates.

As of March 31, 2010, Holdings owns an aggregate 7.8% interest in Inergy, L.P., inclusive of ownership of all of the non-managing general partner and the
managing general partner. This ownership is comprised of an approximate 0.7% general partnership interest and an approximate 7.1% limited partnership interest.

Nature of Operations

Inergy is engaged primarily in the sale, distribution, storage, marketing, trading, processing and fractionation of propane, natural gas and other natural gas liquids.
The retail market is seasonal because propane is used primarily for heating in residential and commercial buildings, as well as for agricultural purposes. Inergy’s
operations are primarily concentrated in the Midwest, Northeast, South and West regions of the United States.

Basis of Presentation

The financial information contained herein as of March 31, 2010, and for the three-month and six-month periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, is unaudited.
The Company believes this information has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for interim financial
information and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. The Company also believes this information includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended. The retail distribution business is
largely seasonal due to propane’s primary use as a heating source in residential and commercial buildings. Accordingly, the results of operations for the three-
month and six-month periods ended March 31, 2010, are not indicative of the results of operations that may be expected for the entire fiscal year.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Inergy, L.P. and subsidiaries and
the notes thereto included in Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Financial Instruments and Price Risk Management

Inergy utilizes certain derivative financial instruments to (i) manage its exposure to commodity price risk, specifically, the related change in the fair value of
inventories, as well as the variability of cash flows related to forecasted transactions; (ii) ensure adequate physical supply of commodity will be available; and
(iii) manage its exposure to interest rate risk associated with fixed rate borrowings. Inergy records all derivative instruments on the balance sheet as either assets
or liabilities measured at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are recorded either through current earnings or as other
comprehensive income, depending on the type of transaction.
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Inergy is party to certain commodity derivative financial instruments that are designated as hedges of selected inventory positions, and qualify as fair value
hedges. Inergy is also party to certain interest rate swap agreements designed to manage interest rate risk exposure. Inergy’s overall objective for entering into fair
value hedges is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices and changes in the fair market value of its inventories and fixed rate borrowings. The
commodity derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets as price risk management assets or liabilities and the related change in fair value is
recorded to earnings in the current period as cost of product sold. The interest rate derivatives are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets in other assets or
liabilities and the related change in fair value is recorded to earnings in the current period as interest expense.

Inergy also enters into derivative financial instruments that qualify as cash flow hedges, which hedge the exposure of variability in expected future cash flows
predominantly attributable to forecasted purchases to supply fixed price sale contracts. These derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value as price
risk management assets or liabilities. The effective portion of the gain or loss on these cash flow hedges is recorded in other comprehensive income in partner’s
capital and reclassified into earnings as a component of cost of product sold in the same period in which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Any ineffective
portion of the gain or loss is recognized as cost of product sold in the current period. Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income was $(0.3) million and
$11.0 million at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively. Approximately $0.3 million is expected to be reclassified to earnings from other
comprehensive income over the next twelve months.

Inergy’s policy is to offset fair value amounts of derivative instruments and cash collateral paid or received with the same counterparty under a master netting
arrangement.

The cash flow impact of derivative financial instruments is reflected as cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

Sales of propane, other liquids and salt are recognized at the time product is shipped or delivered to the customer depending on the sales terms. Gas processing
and fractionation fees are recognized upon delivery of the product. Revenue from the sale of propane appliances and equipment is recognized at the later of the
time of sale or installation. Revenue from repairs and maintenance is recognized upon completion of the service. Revenue from storage contracts is recognized
during the period in which storage services are provided.

Expense Classification

Cost of product sold consists of tangible products sold including all propane and other natural gas liquids, salt and all propane related appliances. Operating and
administrative expenses consist of all expenses incurred by Inergy other than those described above in cost of product sold and depreciation and amortization.
Certain of Inergy’s operating and administrative expenses and depreciation and amortization are incurred in the distribution of product and storage sales but are
not included in cost of product sold. These amounts were $46.7 million and $33.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and
$89.3 million and $67.2 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

9
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Inventories

Inventories for retail operations, which mainly consist of propane gas and other liquids, are stated at the lower of cost or market and are computed using the
average-cost method. Wholesale propane and other liquids inventories are designated under a fair value hedge program and are consequently marked to market.
Propane and other liquids inventories being hedged and carried at market value at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, amount to $25.2 million and $53.7
million, respectively. Inventories for midstream operations are stated at the lower of cost or market and are computed predominantly using the average cost
method.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are recorded as part of cost of product sold at the time product is shipped or delivered to the customer except as discussed in
“Expense Classification”.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Years
Buildings and improvements 25-40
Office furniture and equipment 3-10
Vehicles 5-10
Tanks and plant equipment 5-30

Salt deposits are depleted on a unit of production method.

Identifiable Intangible Assets

The Company has recorded certain identifiable intangible assets, including customer accounts, covenants not to compete, trademarks and deferred financing
costs. Customer accounts, covenants not to compete and trademarks have arisen from the various acquisitions by Inergy. Deferred financing costs represent
financing costs incurred in obtaining financing and are being amortized over the term of the related debt. Additionally, an acquired intangible asset should be
separately recognized if the benefit of the intangible asset is obtained through contractual or other legal rights, or if the intangible asset can be sold, transferred,
licensed, rented or exchanged, regardless of the acquirer’s intent to do so.

Certain intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic lives, as follows:

Years
Customer accounts 15
Covenants not to compete 2-10
Deferred financing costs 1-10

Trademarks have been assigned an indefinite economic life and are not being amortized, but are subject to an annual impairment evaluation.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized for various acquisitions by Inergy as the excess of the cost of the acquisitions over the fair value of the related net assets at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test.

In connection with the goodwill impairment evaluation, the Company identified five reporting units. The carrying value of each reporting unit is determined by
assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of the evaluation on a specific
identification basis. To the extent a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be impaired
and the second step of the impairment test must be performed. In the second step, the implied fair value of the goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value
to all of its assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities to its carrying amount.

10
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Inergy completed its annual impairment test for each of its reporting units and determined that no impairment existed as of September 30, 2009. No indicators of
impairment were identified requiring an interim impairment test during the six-month period ended March 31, 2010.

Income Taxes

Inergy is a publicly-traded master limited partnership. Partnerships are generally not subject to federal income tax, although publicly-traded partnerships are
treated as corporations for federal income tax purposes and therefore are subject to federal income tax, unless the partnership generates at least 90% of its gross
income from qualifying sources. If the qualifying income requirement is satisfied, the publicly-traded partnership will be treated as a partnership for federal
income tax purposes. Inergy Sales and Service, Inc. (“Services”), a subsidiary of Inergy, does not generate at least 90% of its gross income from qualifying
sources, and as such, federal and state income taxes are provided on the taxable income of Services. The remaining Inergy subsidiaries generate at least 90% of
gross income from qualifying sources. As a result, except for the operations of Services, Inergy’s net earnings for federal income tax purposes are allocated to the
individual partners for inclusion in their income tax returns. Legislation in certain states allows for taxation of partnerships. As such, certain state taxes for Inergy
have also been included in the accompanying financial statements as income taxes due to the nature of the tax in those particular states. Net earnings for financial
statement purposes may differ significantly from taxable income reportable to unitholders as a result of differences between the tax basis and the financial
reporting basis of assets and liabilities and the taxable income allocation requirements under the partnership agreement.

Sales Tax

Inergy accounts for the collection and remittance of sales tax on a net tax basis. As a result, these amounts are not reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Income Per Unit

The Company calculates basic net income per unit by dividing net income, after considering the Non-Managing General Partner’s interest, including priority
distributions, by the weighted average number of limited partner units outstanding. Under this method, the calculation of net income per unit reflects an allocation
of earnings to each class of units that is consistent with the partnership agreement’s treatment of the respective classes’ capital accounts. Diluted net income per
limited partner unit is computed by dividing net income, after considering the Non-Managing General Partner’s interest, by the sum of weighted average number
of common units and the effect of other dilutive units.

Accounting for Unit-Based Compensation

Inergy has a unit-based employee compensation plan and all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, are recognized in
the consolidated statements of operations based on their fair values.

The amount of compensation expense recorded by the Company during the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 was $2.2 million and $1.4 million,
respectively. The compensation expense for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, includes $1.0 million and $0.7 million of unit-based compensation
expense on Inergy Holdings, L.P. units.

Segment Information

There are certain accounting requirements that establish standards for reporting information about operating segments, as well as related disclosures about
products and services, geographic areas and major customers. Further, they define operating segments as components of an enterprise for which separate financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. In
determining its reportable segments, Inergy examined the way it organizes its business internally for making operating decisions and assessing business
performance. See Note 11 for disclosures related to Inergy’s propane and midstream segments.

11
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) and payables are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to
their liquid and short-term nature. As of March 31, 2010, the estimated fair value of the fixed-rate Senior Notes, based on available trading information, totaled
$1,071.6 million compared with the aggregate principal amount at maturity of $1,050.0 million. The Company’s credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”) consists
of a $75 million working capital facility (“Working Capital Facility”) and a $450 million revolving general partnership facility (“General Partnership Facility™).
The carrying value at March 31, 2010 of amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement of $136.0 million approximate fair value due primarily to the floating
interest rate associated with the Credit Agreement.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 810-10 (“810-10”), originally issued as SFAS No. 160, “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51”, was issued in December 2007 and requires that accounting and reporting for minority interests will be
recharacterized as non-controlling interests and classified as a component of equity. 810-10 also establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient
disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. 810-10 applies to all entities
that prepare consolidated financial statements, except not-for-profit organizations, but will affect only those entities that have an outstanding non-controlling
interest in one or more subsidiaries or that deconsolidate a subsidiary. The Company adopted 810-10 on October 1, 2009. The adoption of 810-10 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 260-10 (“260-10"), originally issued as EITF Issue No. 07-4, “Application of the Two-Class Method under
FASB Statement No. 128 to Master Limited Partnerships”, was ratified in March 2008 and applies to Master Limited Partnerships (“MLP”) that are required to
make incentive distributions when certain thresholds have been met regardless of whether the IDR is a separate limited partner (“LP”) interest or embedded in the
general partner interest. 260-10 addresses how the current period earnings of an MLP should be allocated to the general partner, LP’s and, when applicable, IDRs.
The Company adopted 260-10 on October 1, 2009, and the impact on its earnings per unit calculation has been retrospectively applied (see Note 4).

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 260-10 (“260-10"), originally issued as FSP EITF Issue No. 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments
Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities”, was ratified in June 2008 and applies to the calculation of earnings per share (“EPS”)
under FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 260-10 (“260-10"), originally issued as SFAS 128, “Earnings Per Share”, for share-based payment
awards with rights to dividends or dividend equivalents. 260-10 states that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or
dividend equivalents are participating securities and shall be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. The Company adopted 260-10
on October 1, 2009. The adoption of 260-10 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s earnings per unit calculation.

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 105-10 (“105-10”), originally issued as SFAS 168, “The FASB Accounting
Standards Codification and Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”, to supersede FASB Statement No. 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles”, and reorganize the standards applicable to financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity
with GAAP. The purpose of the codification was to provide a single source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAP literature. The codification was not intended
to create new accounting standards or guidance. While the codification includes portions of SEC content related to matters within the basic financial statements
for user convenience, it does not contain all SEC guidance on accounting topics, and does not replace any SEC rules or regulations. The Company adopted 105-
10 on September 30, 2009. The adoption of 105-10 did not impact any amounts comprising the consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of
operations, consolidated statements of partners’ capital or the consolidated statements of cash flows.
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INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
Note 3 — Certain Balance Sheet Information

Inventories consist of the following at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively (in millions):

March 31, 2010 September 30, 2009

Propane gas and other liquids $ 60.9 $ 81.3
Appliances, parts and supplies 17.0 14.8
Salt finished goods 0.5 0.4
Total inventory $ 78.4 $ 96.5

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively (in millions):

March 31, 2010 September 30, 2009

Tanks and plant equipment $ 1,046.6 $ 916.7
Buildings and improvements 378.5 323.6
Vehicles 123.3 107.7
Construction in process 90.9 136.0
Salt deposits 41.6 41.6
Office furniture and equipment 30.7 29.6
1,711.6 1,555.2

Less: accumulated depreciation 387.3 327.9
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,3243 $ 1,227.3

The tanks and plant equipment balances above include tanks owned by the Company that reside at customer locations. The leases associated with these tanks are
accounted for as operating leases. These tanks have a value of $498.6 million with an associated accumulated depreciation balance of $96.8 million at March 31,
2010.

Intangible assets consist of the following at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively (in millions):

March 31, 2010 September 30, 2009

Customer accounts $ 330.2 $ 277.4
Covenants not to compete 86.7 72.5
Deferred financing and other costs 36.6 34.3
Trademarks 29.2 26.2
482.7 410.4

Less: accumulated amortization 138.8 133.1
Total intangible assets, net $ 343.9 $ 277.3

Note 4 — Income Per Unit

On October 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 260-10 (“260-10"), which provides that for
master limited partnerships (“MLPs”), current period earnings be reduced by the amount of available cash that will be distributed with respect to that period for
purposes of calculating earnings per unit. Any residual amount representing undistributed earnings is assumed to be allocated to the various ownership interests in
accordance with the contractual provisions of the partnership agreement. In addition, IDRs, which represent a limited partnership ownership interest, are
considered to be participating securities because they have the right to participate in earnings with common equity holders.
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Under the Company’s partnership agreement, for any quarterly period, IDRs participate in net income only to the extent of the amount of cash distributions
actually declared, thereby excluding the IDRs from participating in undistributed earnings or losses. Accordingly, undistributed net income is assumed to be
allocated to the other ownership interests on a pro-rata basis.

The adoption of the provisions of this standard has been retrospectively applied and had the following impact on the earnings per unit for the three-month and six-
month periods ended March 31, 2009:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Original value $ 1.55 $ 155 $ 2.47 $ 2.46
Adjustment (0.03) (0.03) (0.05) (0.04)
Adjusted value $ 1.52 $ 1.52 $ 2.42 $ 2.42

The above adjustment is attributable to the requirement of 260-10 to calculate the general partner’s interest in net income based on the IDRs earned during the
period. The IDRs earned for the three month period ended March 31, 2010, will be paid in May 2010. The Company previously calculated the general partner’s
interest in net income based on the IDRs paid during the period.

Note 5 — Business Acquisitions

On December 31, 2009, Inergy Propane, LLC entered into an Equity Purchase Agreement with Sterling Capital Partners, L.P., Sterling Capital Partners GmbH &
Co. KG and the other parties thereto (collectively, “Sellers”) wherein Inergy Propane, LLC acquired 100% of the capital stock, membership interests, partnership
interests, as applicable, of SCP GP Propane Partners I, Inc., SCP LP Propane Partners I, Inc., Liberty Propane GP, LLC, Liberty Propane, LP and Liberty Propane
Operations, LLC (collectively, “Liberty”). Liberty is a retail propane company servicing approximately 100,000 customers in the Mid-Atlantic, Northeast and
Western regions of the United States.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date (in millions). The Company is in the
process of obtaining third party valuations of certain property, plant and equipment as well as intangible assets; thus the provisional measurements of intangible
assets, goodwill and deferred income taxes are subject to change.

December 31, 2009

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million $ 15.2
Inventory 6.1
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 0.8
Property, plant and equipment 104.5
Customer accounts 20.0
Covenants not to compete 12.3
Trademarks 3.0
Other 0.1
Total identifiable assets acquired 162.0
Current liabilities 15.9
Income tax liability 26.3
Current portion of long-term debt 1.9
Notes payable 6.2
Total liabilities assumed 50.3

Net identifiable assets acquired 111.7
Goodwill 80.8
Net assets acquired $ 192.5

The customer accounts are amortized over a period of 15 years and the covenants not to compete are amortized over a period of approximately 5 years.

The $80.8 million of goodwill has all been assigned to the propane operations segment. The goodwill recognized is attributable primarily to expected synergies
and the assembled workforce.

The following represents the pro-forma consolidated statements of operations as if Liberty had been included in the consolidated results of the Company for the
three-month period ending March 31, 2009, and the six-month periods ending March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (in millions):

Pro-Forma Consolidated
Statements of Operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2009 2010 2009
Revenue $ 616.2 $1,229.0 $1,191.8
Net income attributable to partners $ 103.1 $ 1383 $ 167.3

These amounts have been calculated after applying the Company’s accounting policies and adjusting the results of Liberty to reflect the depreciation and
amortization that would have been charged assuming the preliminary fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets had been made
at the beginning of the respective period.

Revenue and net income generated by Liberty subsequent to the Company’s acquisition on December 31, 2009, amounted to $57.2 million and $11.6 million,
respectively.
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On January 11, 2010, Inergy Midstream, LLC executed a definitive agreement to purchase the Seneca Lake natural gas storage facility (“Seneca Lake”) located in
Schuyler County, New York, and two related pipelines. Seneca Lake is an approximate 2.0 billion cubic feet (bcf) underground salt cavern storage facility located
on Inergy’s US Salt property outside Watkins Glen, New York, and has a maximum withdrawal capability of 145 MMcf/day and maximum injection capability of
75 MMcf/day. Seneca Lake is connected to the Dominion Transmission System via the 16-inch, 20 mile Seneca West Pipeline and indirectly to the city gate of
Binghamton, New York, via the 12-inch, 37.5 mile Seneca East Pipeline, which runs within approximately 4 miles of Inergy’s Stagecoach North Lateral
interconnect with the Millennium Pipeline. This transaction is subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory approvals.

On January 12, 2010, Inergy Propane, LLC acquired the propane assets of MGS Corporation (“MGS”), headquartered in Hackensack, New Jersey. MGS currently
delivers propane to nearly 6,400 customers from five customer service centers.

The purchase price allocations for these acquisitions have been prepared on a preliminary basis pending final asset valuation and asset rationalization, and
changes are expected when additional information becomes available. Changes to reflect final asset valuation of prior fiscal year acquisitions have been included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements but are not material.

In January 2010, Inergy acquired an additional 25% interest in Steuben Gas Storage Company. The acquisition of this additional interest increased net income
attributable to partners by $0.3 million in the three-month and six-month periods ended March 31, 2010.

Note 6 — Risk Management

The Company is exposed to certain market risks related to its ongoing business operations. These risks include exposure to changing commodity prices as well as
fluctuations in interest rates. The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices, which is discussed more
fully below. The Company also utilizes derivative instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, which is discussed more fully in Note 8.
Additional information related to derivatives is provided in Note 2 and Note 7.

Commodity Derivative Instruments and Price Risk Management
Risk Management Activities

Inergy sells propane and other commodities to energy related businesses and may use a variety of financial and other instruments including forward contracts
involving physical delivery of propane. Inergy will enter into offsetting positions to hedge against the exposure its customer contracts create. Inergy does not

designate these instruments as hedging instruments. These instruments are marked to market with the changes in the market value reflected in cost of product
sold. Inergy attempts to balance its contractual portfolio in terms of notional amounts and timing of performance and delivery obligations. This balance in the
contractual portfolio significantly reduces the volatility in cost of product sold related to these instruments. However, immaterial net unbalanced positions can
exist or are established based on assessment of anticipated short-term needs or market conditions.

Cash Flow Hedging Activity

Inergy sells propane and heating oil to retail customers at fixed prices. Inergy will enter into derivative instruments to hedge a significant portion of its exposure
to fluctuations in commodity prices as a result of selling the fixed price contracts. These instruments are identified and qualify to be treated as cash flow hedges.
This accounting treatment requires the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative to be reported as a component of other comprehensive income and
reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derivative representing
either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in current earnings.
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Fair Value Hedging Activity

Inergy will enter into derivative instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuating commodity prices that results from maintaining its wholesale inventory. The
instruments hedging wholesale inventory qualify to be treated as fair value hedges. This accounting treatment requires the fair value changes in both the
derivative instruments and the hedged inventory to be recorded in cost of product sold.

A significant amount of inventory held in bulk storage facilities is hedged as it is not expected to be sold in the immediate future and is therefore exposed to
fluctuations in commodity prices. Commodity inventory held at retail locations is not hedged as this inventory is expected to be sold in the immediate future and
is therefore not exposed to fluctuations in commodity prices over an extended period of time.

Commodity Price and Credit Risk
Notional Amounts and Terms

The notional amounts and terms of the Company’s derivative financial instruments include the following at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively
(in millions):

March 31, 2010 September 30, 2009
Fixed Price Fixed Price Fixed Price Fixed Price
Payor Receiver Payor Receiver
Propane, crude and heating oil (barrels) 24 2.5 6.8 6.5

Natural gas (MMBTU’s) 0.4 — — _

Notional amounts reflect the volume of transactions, but do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties to the financial instruments. Accordingly, notional
amounts do not reflect the Company’s monetary exposure to market or credit risks.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The following tables detail the amount and location on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations related to all of its
commodity derivatives (in millions):

Derivatives in fair value hedging relationships:
Commodity @
Debt ®

Total fair value of derivatives
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Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Net Income

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Net Income

from Derivatives on Item Being Hedged
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010
Three Months Six Months Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended

$ 159 $ 60
0.1 (0.1)

$  (15.9) $ (5.7
0.1) 0.1

$ 16.0 $ 5.9

$  (16.0) $ (56)
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Amount of Gain (Loss)
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Net Income
Recognized in OCI Amount of Gain (Loss) on Ineffective Portion of
on Effective Portion of Reclassified from OCI Derivatives & Amount
Derivatives to Net Income Excluded from Testing
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010 March 31, 2010
Six
Three Months Six Months Three Months Six Months Three Months Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships:
Commodity @ $ (0.9) $ 0.1 $ 16.7 $ 115 $ — $ —

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Net Income
from Derivatives

March 31, 2010
Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Commodity @ $ 3.6 $ 6.6

(@)  The gain (loss) on both the derivative and the item being hedged are located in cost of product sold in the consolidated statements of operations.

(b)  The gain (loss) on both the derivative and the item being hedged are located in interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

(c)  The gain (loss) on the amount reclassified from OCI into income, the ineffective portion and the amount excluded from effectiveness testing are included in cost of product sold.
(d) The gain (loss) is recognized in cost of product sold.

Credit Risk

Inherent in the Company’s contractual portfolio are certain credit risks. Credit risk is the risk of loss from nonperformance by suppliers, customers or financial
counterparties to a contract. Inergy takes an active role in managing credit risk and has established control procedures, which are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The Company attempts to minimize credit risk exposure through credit policies and periodic monitoring procedures as well as through customer deposits, letters
of credit and entering into netting agreements that allow for offsetting counterparty receivable and payable balances for certain financial transactions, as deemed
appropriate. The counterparties associated with assets from price risk management activities as of March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, were propane
retailers, resellers, energy marketers and dealers.

Certain of the Company’s derivative instruments have credit limits that require the Company to post collateral. The amount of collateral required to be posted is a
function of the net liability position of the derivative as well as the Company’s established credit limit with the respective counterparty. If the Company’s credit
rating were to change, the counterparties could require the Company to post additional collateral. The amount of additional collateral that would be required to be
posted would vary depending on the extent of change in the Company’s credit rating as well as the requirements of the individual counterparty. The aggregate fair
value of all commodity derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that are in a liability position on March 31, 2010, is $3.5 million for
which the Company has posted collateral of $0.7 million, in the normal course of business. The Company has received collateral of $1.3 million in the normal
course of business. All collateral amounts have been netted against the asset or liability with the respective counterparty.
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Note 7 — Fair Value Measurements

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Subtopic 820-10 (“820-10”) establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

»  Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date. Active markets are those in which
transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. Level 1 primarily
consists of financial instruments such as exchange-traded derivatives, listed equities and US government treasury securities.

*  Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date. Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies. These models are
primarily industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including quoted forward prices for commodities, time value, volatility
factors, and current market and contractual prices for the underlying instruments, as well as other relevant economic measures. Substantially all of
these assumptions are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument, can be derived from observable data or are supported
by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace. Instruments in this category include non-exchange-traded derivatives
such as over the counter (“OTC”) forwards, options and physical exchanges.

*  Level 3 — Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are generally less observable from objective sources. These inputs may be used with internally
developed methodologies that result in management’s best estimate of fair value.

As of March 31, 2010, the Company held certain assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These included the
Company’s derivative instruments related to propane, heating oil, crude oil, natural gas, natural gas liquids and interest rates as well as the portion of inventory
that is hedged in a qualifying fair value hedge. The Company’s derivative instruments consist of forwards, swaps, futures, physical exchanges and options.

Certain of the Company’s derivative instruments are traded on the NYMEX. These instruments have been categorized as level 1.

The Company’s derivative instruments also include OTC contracts, which are not traded on a public exchange. The fair values of these derivative instruments are
determined based on inputs that are readily available in public markets or can be derived from information available in publicly quoted markets. These
instruments have been categorized as level 2.

The Company’s inventory that is the hedged item in a qualifying fair value hedge is valued based on prices quoted from observable sources and verified with
broker quotes. This inventory has been categorized as level 2.

The Company’s OTC options are valued based on an internal option model. The inputs utilized in the model are based on publicly available information as well
as broker quotes. These options have been categorized as level 3.

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Company’s assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis
as of March 31, 2010 (in millions). The assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the valuation
of fair value assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.
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Assets

Assets from price risk management
Inventory

Interest rate swap

Total assets at fair value
Liabilities
Liabilities from price risk management

(@)
counterparties.
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Fair Value of Derivatives
Not

Level Level Level Designated  Designated Netting
1 2 3 Total as Hedges  as Hedges  Adjustments®@ Total
$09 $129 $02 $140 $ 27 $ 113 §$ (5.1) $ 89
25.2 25.2 25.2
0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
$09 $38.8 $0.2 $399 $ 34 $ 113 §$ (5.1) $34.38
$07 $89 $02 $98 $ 15 $ 83 $ 42) $ 56

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the period, 820-10 requires a
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances, separated for each major category of assets. The reconciliation is as follows (in millions):

Beginning balance

Fair Value
Measurements
Using
Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 3)

Six Months Ended
March 31, 2010

$ 0.2)

Beginning balance recognized during the period 0.1
Change in value of contracts executed during the period 0.1

Ending balance

5 -
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Note 8 — Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively (in millions):

March 31, 2010 September 30, 2009
Credit agreement $ 136.0 $ 27.2
Senior unsecured notes 1,050.0 1,050.0
Fair value hedge adjustment on senior unsecured notes 4.8 5.6
Bond premium 3.0 3.3
Bond discount (17.8) (19.7)
ASC credit agreement 7.1 8.3
Obligations under noncompetition agreements and notes to former owners of businesses
acquired 24.7 18.6
Total debt 1,207.8 1,093.3
Less: current portion 6.7 22.0
Total long-term debt $ 1,201.1 $ 1,071.3

On November 24, 2009, Inergy entered into a secured credit facility (“Credit Agreement”) which provides borrowing capacity of up to $525 million in the form
of a $450 million revolving general partnership credit facility (“General Partnership Facility”) and a $75 million working capital credit facility (“Working Capital
Facility”). This facility replaces its former senior credit facility due 2010. This new facility will mature on November 22, 2013. Borrowings under this new
facility are available for working capital needs, future acquisitions, capital expenditures and other general partnership purposes, including the refinancing of
existing indebtedness under the former credit facility.

The new secured credit facility contains various affirmative and negative covenants and default provisions, as well as requirements with respect to the
maintenance of specified financial ratios and limitations on making investments, permitting liens and entering into other debt obligations. All borrowings under
the facility bear interest, at Inergy’s option, subject to certain limitations, at a rate equal to the following:

+ the Alternate Base Rate, which is defined as the higher of i) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%; ii) JP Morgan’s prime rate; or iii) the Adjusted LIBO
Rate plus 1%; plus a margin varying from 1.50% to 2.75%; or

» the Adjusted LIBO Rate, which is defined as the LIBO Rate plus a margin varying from 2.50% to 3.75%.

At March 31, 2010, the balance outstanding under the new Credit Agreement was $136.0 million, all drawn under the General Partnership Facility. At

September 30, 2009, the balance outstanding under the previous credit agreement was $27.2 million, with the entire balance borrowed for working capital
purposes. The interest rates of these revolvers are based on prime rate and LIBOR plus the applicable spreads, which were 3.23% at March 31, 2010, and between
2.0% and 3.5% at September 30, 2009, for all outstanding debt under the Credit Agreement. Availability under the Credit Agreement amounted to $369.3 million
and $381.1 million at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively. Outstanding standby letters of credit under the Credit Agreement amounted to $19.7
million and $16.7 million at March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, respectively.

During each fiscal year beginning October 1, the outstanding balance of the Working Capital Facility must be reduced to $10.0 million or less for a minimum of
30 consecutive days during the period commencing March 1 and ending September 30 of each calendar year. Effective April 30, 2010, this requirement has been
met.

Steuben Gas Storage Company, a majority-owned subsidiary of Arlington Storage Company (“ASC”), had a debt agreement in place at the time of the
Company’s acquisition of ASC (“ASC Credit Agreement”). The ASC Credit Agreement is secured by the assets of Steuben and has no recourse against the assets
of the Company. The ASC Credit Agreement is scheduled to mature in December 2015. The interest rate on approximately half of the ASC Credit Agreement is
at a fixed rate, while the other portion is based on LIBOR plus the applicable spreads.
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Certain counterparties elected to call their respective interest rate swap positions in December 2009. The aggregate notional amount associated with these swaps
amounted to $125 million. The Company received $4.3 million in consideration for the cancellation of the swaps.

In March 2010, Inergy entered into two interest rates swap agreements scheduled to mature in March 2015. Inergy has an additional interest rate swap agreement
scheduled to mature in December 2014. Each is designed to hedge $25 million in underlying fixed rate senior unsecured notes in order to manage interest rate risk
exposure. These swap agreements, which expire on the same date as the maturity date of the related senior unsecured notes due 2014 and 2015 and contain call
provisions consistent with the underlying senior unsecured notes, require the counterparty to pay Inergy an amount based on the stated fixed interest rate due
every six months. In exchange, Inergy is required to make semi-annual floating interest rate payments on the same dates to the counterparty based on an annual
interest rate equal to the 6-month LIBOR interest rate plus spreads between 2.05% and 5.942% applied to the same aggregate notional amount of $75 million. The
swap agreements have been accounted for as fair value hedges. Amounts to be received or paid under the agreements are accrued and recognized over the life of
the agreements as an adjustment to interest expense. The change in the market value of the interest rate swaps for the six months ended March 31, 2010, was
recorded as a $0.1 million increase to interest expense. This amount was offset by a $0.1 million decrease to interest expense that was recorded as a result of a
change in the fair value of the hedged fixed rate debt.

See Note 12 for details of swaps purchased in April 2010.

At March 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

Note 9 — Partners’ Capital
Common Unit Offering

On January 25, 2010, Inergy issued 5,000,000 common units in a public offering. Inergy also granted the underwriters the option to purchase up to 750,000
additional common units to cover over-allotments. The over-allotment option was exercised on January 28, 2010, for 749,100 common units. Inergy used the net
proceeds from this offering to repay outstanding indebtedness under its revolving general partnership credit facility, which was borrowed to fund the acquisitions
of Liberty and MGS and to fund other capital expenditures in its’ midstream business.

Quarterly Distributions of Available Cash

A summary of Inergy’s limited partner quarterly distributions for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 20009, is presented below:

Six Months Ended March 31, 2010

Distribution Amount

Record Date Payment Date Per Unit Rate (in millions)
November 6, 2009 November 13, 2009 $ 0.675 $ 55.2
February 5, 2010 February 12, 2010 $ 0.685 61.9
$  um

Six Months Ended March 31, 2009

Distribution Amount

Record Date Payment Date Per Unit Rate (in millions )
November 7, 2008 November 14, 2008 $ 0.635 $ 43.2
February 6, 2009 February 13, 2009 $ 0.645 44.4

$ 87.6
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On April 26, 2010, Inergy declared a distribution of $0.695 per limited partner unit to be paid on May 14, 2010, to unitholders of record on May 7, 2010, for a
total distribution of $63.3 million with respect to the second fiscal quarter of 2010. On May 15, 2009, a quarterly distribution of $0.655 per limited partner unit
was paid to unitholders of record on May 8, 2009, with respect to the second fiscal quarter of 2009, for a total distribution of $49.2 million.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

Inergy periodically enters into agreements with suppliers to purchase fixed quantities of propane, distillates, natural gas and liquids at fixed prices. At March 31,
2010, the total of these firm purchase commitments was $115.5 million of which $109.0 million will occur over the course of the next twelve months with the
balance of $6.5 million occurring over the following twelve months. The Company also enters into non-binding agreements with suppliers to purchase quantities
of propane, distillates, natural gas and liquids at variable prices at future dates at the then prevailing market prices.

Inergy has entered into certain purchase commitments in connection with the identified growth projects related to the Thomas Corners and Finger Lakes
midstream assets. At March 31, 2010, the total of these firm purchase commitments was $4.3 million and the purchases associated with these commitments will
occur over the course of the next twelve months.

Inergy is periodically involved in litigation proceedings. The results of litigation proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty; however, management believes
that Inergy does not have material potential liability in connection with these proceedings that would have a significant financial impact on its consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Inergy utilizes third-party insurance subject to varying retention levels of self-insurance, which management considers prudent. Such self-insurance relates to
losses and liabilities primarily associated with medical claims, workers’ compensation claims and general, product, vehicle and environmental liability. Losses are
accrued based upon management’s estimates of the aggregate liability for claims incurred using certain assumptions followed in the insurance industry and based
on past experience. The primary assumption utilized is actuarially determined loss development factors. The loss development factors are based primarily on
historical data. Inergy’s self insurance reserves could be affected if future claims development differs from the historical trends. Inergy believes changes in health
care costs, trends in health care claims of its employee base, accident frequency and severity and other factors could materially affect the estimate for these
liabilities. Inergy continually monitors changes in employee demographics, incident and claim type and evaluates its insurance accruals and adjusts its accruals
based on its evaluation of these qualitative data points. At March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, Inergy’s self-insurance reserves were $23.3 million and $19.3
million, respectively.

Note 11 — Segments

Inergy’s financial statements reflect two operating and reportable segments: propane operations and midstream operations. Inergy’s propane operations include
propane sales to end users, the sale of propane-related appliances and service work for propane-related equipment, the sale of distillate products and wholesale
distribution of propane and marketing and price risk management services to other users, retailers and resellers of propane. Inergy’s midstream operations include
storage of natural gas for third parties, fractionation of natural gas liquids, processing of natural gas, distribution of natural gas liquids and the production and sale
of salt. Results of operations for Liberty and MGS are included in the propane segment.

The identifiable assets associated with each reportable segment include accounts receivable and inventories. Goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
expenditures for property, plant and equipment are also presented for each segment. The net asset/liability from price risk management, as reported in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, is primarily related to the propane segment.
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Revenues, gross profit, identifiable assets, goodwill, property, plant and equipment and expenditures for property, plant and equipment for each of Inergy’s

reportable segments are presented below (in millions):

Retail propane revenues

Wholesale propane revenues

Storage, fractionation and other midstream revenues
Transportation revenues

Propane-related appliance sales revenues
Retail service revenues

Rental service and other revenues

Distillate revenues

Gross profit

Identifiable assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment

Retail propane revenues

Wholesale propane revenues

Storage, fractionation and other midstream revenues
Transportation revenues

Propane-related appliance sales revenues
Retail service revenues

Rental service and other revenues

Distillate revenues

Gross profit

Identifiable assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment

Three Months Ended March 31, 2010

Propane Midstream Intersegment Corporate

Operations Operations Operations Assets Total
$ 3715 $ = $ — $ — $ 3715
171.7 8.4 (0.1) — 180.0
— 67.2 (0.3) — 66.9
4.5 5.4 — — 9.9
5.2 — — — 5.2
4.3 — — — 4.3
7.5 — — — 7.5
45.8 — — — 45.8
209.8 30.2 0.3) — 239.7
196.7 49.0 — — 245.7
364.5 96.5 — — 461.0
809.9 890.5 — 11.2 1,711.6
2.8 16.3 — 0.3 19.4

Three Months Ended March 31, 2009
Propane Midstream Intersegment Corporate

Operations Operations Operations Assets Total
$ 304.1 $ — $ — $ — $ 304.1
133.2 6.6 — — 139.8
— 49.3 (0.3) — 49.0
4.6 4.4 — — 9.0
4.5 — — — 4.5
4.5 — — — 4.5
7.9 — — — 7.9
51.3 — — — 51.3
187.0 25.4 (0.3) — 212.1
173.3 26.4 — — 199.7
276.0 168.8 — — 444.8
691.9 669.4 — 10.8 1,372.1
2.1 49.3 — 0.1 51.5
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Retail propane revenues

Wholesale propane revenues

Storage, fractionation and other midstream revenues
Transportation revenues

Propane-related appliance sales revenues
Retail service revenues

Rental service and other revenues

Distillate revenues

Gross profit

Identifiable assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment

Retail propane revenues

Wholesale propane revenues

Storage, fractionation and other midstream revenues
Transportation revenues

Propane-related appliance sales revenues
Retail service revenues

Rental service and other revenues

Distillate revenues

Gross profit

Identifiable assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment

Note 12 — Subsequent Events

The Company has identified subsequent events requiring disclosure through the date of the filing of this Form 10-Q.

INERGY, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Six Months Ended March 31, 2010

Propane Midstream Intersegment Corporate

Operations Operations Operations Assets Total
$ 592.8 $ — $ = $ — $ 592.8
315.0 16.1 (0.1) — 331.0
— 136.1 0.7) — 135.4
8.7 10.2 — — 18.9
12.3 — — — 12.3
9.3 — — — 9.3
14.2 — — — 14.2
78.9 — — — 78.9
351.9 63.7 0.7) — 4149
196.7 49.0 — — 245.7
364.5 96.5 — — 461.0
809.9 890.5 — 11.2 1,711.6
7.1 43.5 — 0.4 51.0

Six Months Ended March 31, 2009
Propane Midstream Intersegment Corporate

Operations Operations Operations Assets Total
$ 571.8 $ — $ — $ — $ 571.8
268.6 12.7 — — 281.3
— 100.5 (0.5) — 100.0
9.2 8.9 — — 18.1
11.6 — — — 11.6
10.6 — — — 10.6
16.1 — — — 16.1
94.6 — — — 94.6
339.3 47.6 (0.5) — 386.4
173.3 26.4 — — 199.7
276.0 168.8 — — 444.8
691.9 669.4 — 10.8 1,372.1
6.1 94.5 — 0.6 101.2

In April 2010, the Company’s interest rate swap maturing in December 2014 was terminated.

In April 2010, the Company purchased interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional value of $25 million. The swaps are scheduled to mature in March 2015.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and “Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the Annual Report on Form 10-K
of Inergy, L.P. for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

The statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that are not historical facts, including most importantly, those statements preceded by, or that include the
words “may”, “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates” or the negation thereof, or similar expressions, constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“Reform Act”). Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements that: (i) we
believe our wholesale supply, marketing and distribution business complements our retail distribution business, (ii) we expect recovery of goodwill through future
cash flows associated with acquisitions, and (iii) we believe that anticipated cash from operations and borrowings under our credit facility will be sufficient to
meet our liquidity needs for the foreseeable future. Such forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to, the following: weather in our area of operations; market price of propane; availability of
financing; changes in, or failure to comply with, government regulations; the costs, uncertainties and other effects of legal and administrative proceedings and
other risks and uncertainties detailed in our Securities and Exchange Commission filings. For those statements, we claim the protections of the safe harbor for
forward-looking statements contained in the Reform Act. We will not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to publicly release the result of any
revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect events or circumstances after
anticipated or unanticipated events.

Overview

We are a growing retail and wholesale propane supply, marketing and distribution business. We also own and operate a growing midstream business that includes
two natural gas storage facilities (“Stagecoach” and “Thomas Corners”), a majority interest in a third natural gas storage facility (“Steuben”), a liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) storage facility (“Bath”), a natural gas liquids (“NGL”) business and a solution-mining and salt production company (“US Salt”). We
further intend to pursue our growth objectives in the propane business through, among other things, future acquisitions. Our acquisition strategy focuses on
propane companies that meet our acquisition criteria, including targeting acquisition prospects that maintain a high percentage of retail sales to residential
customers, operating in attractive markets and focusing our operations under established and locally recognized trade names. Our midstream growth objectives
focus both on organically expanding our existing assets and acquiring future operations that leverage our existing operating platform, produce predominantly fee-
based cash flow characteristics and have future organic or commercial expansion characteristics.

Both of our operating segments, propane and midstream, are supported by business development personnel groups employed by the Partnership. These groups’
daily responsibilities include research, sourcing, financial analysis and due diligence of potential acquisition targets and organic growth opportunities. These
employees work closely with the operators of both of our segments in the course of their work to ensure the appropriate growth opportunities are pursued.

We have grown primarily through acquisitions. Since the inception of our predecessor in November 1996 through March 31, 2010, we have acquired 86
companies, including 80 retail propane companies and 6 midstream businesses, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $2.1 billion, including working
capital, assumed liabilities and acquisition costs.

On December 31, 2009, we acquired the partnership interests of Liberty Propane, LP (“Liberty”) headquartered in Overland Park, Kansas. Liberty delivers
propane to nearly 100,000 customers from 38 customer service centers in the Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Western regions of the United States. On January 12,
2010, we acquired the propane assets of MGS Corporation (“MGS”), headquartered in Hackensack, New Jersey. MGS currently delivers propane to nearly 6,400
customers from five customer service centers. The purchase price allocations for these acquisitions have been prepared on a preliminary basis pending final asset
valuation and asset rationalization, and changes are expected when additional information becomes available. Changes to final asset valuation of prior fiscal year
acquisitions have been included in our consolidated financial statements but are not material.
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The retail propane distribution business is largely seasonal due to propane’s primary use as a heating source in residential and commercial buildings. As a result,
cash flows from operations are generally highest from November through April when customers pay for propane purchased during the six-month peak heating
season of October through March.

Because a substantial portion of our propane is used in the weather-sensitive residential markets, the temperatures realized in our areas of operations, particularly
during the six-month peak heating season of October through March, have a significant effect on our financial performance. In any given area, warmer-than-
normal temperatures will tend to result in reduced propane use, while sustained colder-than-normal temperatures will tend to result in greater propane use.
Therefore, we use information on normal temperatures in understanding how historical results of operations are affected by temperatures that are colder or
warmer than normal and in preparing forecasts of future operations, which are based on the assumption that normal weather will prevail in each of our operating
regions. “Heating degree days” are a general indicator of how weather impacts propane usage and are calculated for any given period by adding the difference
between 65 degrees and the average temperature of each day in the period (if less than 65 degrees). While a substantial portion of our propane is used by our
customers for heating needs, our propane operations are geographically diversified and not all of our propane sales are weather sensitive. Together, these factors
may make it difficult to draw definitive conclusions as to the correlation of our gallon sales to weather calculations comparing weather in a year to normal or to
the prior year.

The retail propane business is a “margin-based” business where the level of profitability is largely dependent on the difference between sales prices and product
costs. Propane prices continued to be volatile during 2010. At the main pricing hub of Mount Belvieu Texas during the six-month period ended March 31, 2010,
propane prices ranged from a low of $0.93 per gallon to a high of $1.44 per gallon and a price of $1.10 per gallon at March 31, 2010. Our ability to pass on price
increases to our customers and our hedging program limits the impact that such volatility has had on our results from operations. In the future, we will continue to
hedge virtually 100% of our exposure from fixed price sales. While we have historically been successful in passing on any price increases to our customers, there
can be no guarantees that this trend will continue in the future. In periods of increasing costs, we have experienced a decline in our gross profit as a percentage of
revenues. In addition, during those periods we have historically experienced conservation of propane gallons used by our customers which has resulted in a
decline in gross profit. In periods of decreasing costs, we have experienced an increase in our gross profit as a percentage of revenues. There is no assurance that
because propane prices decline customers will use more propane and thus historical gallon sales declines we’ve attributed to customer conservation will reverse.
Propane is a by-product of both crude oil refining and natural gas processing and thus typically follows the same pricing pattern as these two commodities with
crude oil pricing being the more influential of the two historically. The prices of crude oil and natural gas had maintained historically high costs in calendar years
2007 and 2008 before both began to fall rather dramatically in late 2008 and throughout the 2008-2009 winter season. While natural gas pricing has remained at
historically low levels since this decline, crude oil costs leveled off in the spring of 2009 before beginning another increase that persisted through the 2009-2010
winter season with propane prices following a similar pattern for the majority of this time. As such, our selling prices of propane have been at higher levels in
order to attempt to maintain our historical gross margin per gallon. We do not attempt to predict or control the underlying commodity prices; however, we monitor
these prices daily and adjust our operations and retail prices to maintain expected margins by passing on the wholesale costs to end users of our product. We
believe that volatility in commodity prices will continue, and our ability to adjust to and manage our operations in response to this volatility may impact our
operations and financial results.

We believe that the economic downturn that began in the second half of 2008 has caused certain of our retail propane customers to conserve and thereby purchase
less propane. This trend is expected to continue throughout the life of the economic downturn. In addition, although we believe the economic downturn has not
currently had a material impact on our cash collections, it is possible that a prolonged economic downturn could have a negative impact on our future cash
collections.

We believe our wholesale supply, marketing and distribution business complements our retail distribution business. Through our wholesale operations, we
distribute propane and also offer price risk management services to propane retailers, resellers and other related businesses as well as energy marketers and
dealers, through a variety of financial and other instruments, including:

+  forward contracts involving the physical delivery of propane;

*  swap agreements which requires payments to (or receipt of payments from) counterparties based on the differential between a fixed and variable
price for propane; and
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+  options, futures contracts on the New York Mercantile Exchange and other contractual arrangements.

We engage in derivative transactions to reduce the effect of price volatility on our product costs and to help ensure the availability of propane during periods of
short supply. We attempt to balance our contractual portfolio by purchasing volumes only when we have a matching purchase commitment from our wholesale
customers. However, we may experience net unbalanced positions from time to time.

Our midstream operations primarily include the storage, processing, fractionation and sale of natural gas and NGLs and, to a lesser extent, the wholesale
distribution of salt from solution mining operations of US Salt. The cash flows from these operations are predominantly fee-based under one to ten year contracts
with substantial, creditworthy counterparties and, therefore, are generally economically stable and not significantly affected in the short term by changing
commodity prices, seasonality or weather fluctuations.

We believe our midstream operations could be negatively affected in the long term by sustained downturns or sluggishness in the economy, which could affect
long-term demand and market prices for natural gas and NGLs, all of which are beyond our control and could impair our ability to meet our long-term goals.
However, we also believe that the contractual fee-based nature of our midstream operations may serve to mitigate this potential risk.

The majority of our operating cash flows in our midstream operations are generated by our natural gas storage operations. Most of our natural gas storage
revenues are based on regulated market-based tariff rates, which are driven in large part by competition and demand for our storage capacity and deliverability.
Demand for storage in our key midstream market in the northeastern United States is projected to continue to be strong, driven by a shortage in storage capacity
and a higher than average annual growth in natural gas demand. This demand growth is primarily driven by the natural gas-fired electric generation sector and
conversion from petroleum based fuels. The natural gas industry is currently experiencing a significant shift in the sources of supply, and this dramatic change
could affect our operations. Traditionally, supply to our markets has come from the Gulf Coast region, onshore and offshore, as well as from Canada. The national
supply profile is shifting to new sources of natural gas from basins in the Rockies, Mid-Continent, Appalachia and East Texas. In addition, the natural gas supply
outlook includes new LNG regasification facilities under various stages of development in multiple locations. LNG can be a new source of potential supply, but
the timing and extent of incremental supply ultimately realized from LNG is yet to be determined and, at present, LNG remains a small percentage of the overall
supply to the markets we serve. These supply shifts and other changes to the natural gas market may have an impact on our storage operations and our
development plans in the northeastern United States and may ultimately drive the need for more domestic capacity for natural gas storage. Currently, we have
committed to capital expansion projects at our Finger Lakes LPG storage expansion. The Finger Lakes LPG storage expansion project relates to the development
of certain caverns acquired in the acquisition of US Salt in August 2008. The solution mining process creates caverns that can be developed into LPG or natural
gas storage after the salt has been extracted. The Finger Lakes LPG expansion project is expected to convert certain of the caverns at US Salt into LPG storage
with a capacity of up to 5 million barrels. This project is expected to be completed in spring 2011.

As we execute on our strategic objectives, capital expansion projects will continue to be an important part of our growth plan. We have committed capital and
investment expenditures at March 31, 2010, of $4.3 million in our midstream operations. These capital requirements, along with the refinancings of normal
maturities of existing debt, will require us to continue long-term borrowings. An inability to access capital at competitive rates could adversely affect our ability
to implement our strategy. Market disruptions or a downgrade in our credit ratings may increase the cost of borrowing or adversely affect our ability to access one
or more sources of liquidity. During the past several years, capital expansion projects have been exposed to cost pressures associated with the availability of
skilled labor and the pricing of materials. Although certain costs have begun to decrease, there will be continual focus on project management activities to address
these pressures as we move forward with planned expansion opportunities. Significant cost increases could negatively affect the returns ultimately earned on
current and future expansions.

Our midstream operations in the United States are subject to regulations at the federal and state level. Regulations applicable to the gas storage industry have a
significant effect on the nature of our midstream operations and the manner in which they operate. Changes to regulations are ongoing and we cannot predict the
future course of changes in the regulatory environment or the ultimate effect that any future changes will have on our midstream operations.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2010 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2009

The following table summarizes the consolidated statement of operations components for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (in
millions):

Three Months Ended
March 31, Change

2010 2009 In Dollars Percentage
Revenue $691.1 $ 570.1 $ 121.0 21.2%
Cost of product sold 451.4 358.0 93.4 26.1
Gross profit 239.7 212.1 27.6 13.0
Operating and administrative expenses 86.8 73.4 134 18.3
Depreciation and amortization 40.1 26.6 13.5 50.8
Loss on disposal of assets 1.7 2.3 (0.6) (26.1)
Operating income 111.1 109.8 1.3 1.2
Interest expense, net (22.9) (18.1) (4.8) (26.5)
Other income 0.1 — 0.1 .
Income before income taxes 88.3 91.7 3.4) 3.7)
Provision for income taxes 0.2 0.1 0.1 100.0
Net income 88.1 91.6 3.5) 3.8)
Net income attributable to non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated net income 0.2 0.3 (0.1) (33.3)
Net income attributable to partners $ 879 $ 91.3 $ (34 3.7)%

* Not meaningful

The following table summarizes revenues, including associated volume of gallons sold, for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (in
millions):

Revenues Gallons
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
March 31, Change March 31, Change

2010 2009 In Dollars Percent 2010 2009 In Units  Percent
Retail propane $ 3715 $ 3041 $ 674 22.2% 147.2 124.7 22.5 18.0%
Wholesale propane 180.0 139.8 40.2 28.8 144.1 130.0 14.1 10.8
Other retail 67.3 72.8 (5.5) (7.6) — — — —
Storage, fractionation and midstream 72.3 53.4 18.9 354 — — — —
Total $691.1 $ 570.1 $ 121.0 21.2% 291.3 254.7 36.6 14.4%

Volume. During the three months ended March 31, 2010, we sold 147.2 million retail gallons of propane, an increase of 22.5 million gallons or 18.0% from the
124.7 million retail gallons sold during the same three-month period in 2009. Gallons sold during the three months ended March 31, 2010 increased as compared
to the same prior year period as a result of acquisition-related volume of 27.0 million gallons partially offset by lower volumes sold at our existing locations of
4.5 million gallons. The primary cause of the declining volumes at existing locations was (1) continued customer conservation, which we believe has resulted
from the overall weak United States economic environment and to a lesser extent the lingering effects of propane cost, which had been at record high prices the
past several years, and (2) volume declines from net customer losses, including low margin and less profitable customers. Also impacting volumes sold during the
three months ended March 31, 2010 compared to the same prior year period was the weather in certain areas of our operations. Based on our calculations using
degree day data provided by NOAA, the Southern and Southeast areas of the United States were significantly colder than the prior year period; however gallon
gains realized in these areas were somewhat offset by degree day losses in the Eastern and certain Northern parts of our areas of operations.
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Wholesale gallons delivered increased 14.1 million gallons, or 10.8%, to 144.1 million gallons in the three months ended March 31, 2010, from 130.0 million
gallons in the three months ended March 31, 2009. The increase was due primarily to greater volumes sold to existing customers and the addition of new
customers.

The total natural gas liquid gallons sold or processed by our West Coast NGL operations increased 20.7 million gallons, or 33.8%, to 81.9 million gallons during
the three months ended March 31, 2010, from 61.2 million gallons during the same three-month period in 2009. This increase was primarily attributable to the
Butamer addition in July 2009, and new terminalling contracts.

During the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, our Northeast natural gas and LPG storage facilities were 100% contracted.

Revenues. Revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2010, were $691.1 million, an increase of $121.0 million, or 21.2%, from $570.1 million during the
same three-month period in 2009.

Revenues from retail propane sales were $371.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $304.1 million during the same three-month
period in 2009. This $67.4 million, or 22.2%, increase was due to acquisition-related sales, which resulted in higher retail propane revenues of $68.3 million, and
a higher overall average selling price of propane, which contributed a $10.0 million increase in related revenues. The overall average selling price of propane
increased due to an increase in the wholesale cost of propane. These factors were partially offset by a $10.9 million decline arising from a decrease in gallons sold
to existing customers as described above.

Revenues from wholesale propane sales were $180.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $40.2 million or 28.8%, from $139.8
million in the three months ended March 31, 2009. This increase resulted from the greater volumes of propane sold which contributed $15.1 million to the
increase in revenues and the higher average sales price of propane which contributed $25.1 million of the increase as a result of higher product costs.

Revenues from other retail sales, which primarily includes distillates, service, rental, appliance sales and transportation services, were $67.3 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2010, a decrease of $5.5 million, or 7.6%, from $72.8 million during the same three-month period in 2009. Revenue from other retail
sales declined as a result of lower distillate revenues at existing locations of $7.0 million and a $2.0 million decline in revenues from other products and services,
partially offset by a $3.5 million increase from acquisition-related sales. Distillate revenues from existing locations decreased as a result of lower volume sold,
partially offset by an increase in the comparable average selling price of distillates resulting from a higher wholesale cost.

Revenues from storage, fractionation and other midstream activities were $72.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $18.9 million
or 35.4% from $53.4 million during the same three-month period in 2009. Revenues from our West Coast NGL operations increased $17.8 million primarily as a
result of higher average sales price of natural gas liquids which contributed $10.4 million of the increase as a result of higher average natural gas liquids prices.
The remainder of the increase was due to expected changes in the variety of natural gas liquid products sold and increased volumes processed as a result of the
Butamer addition in July 2009. Additionally, revenues from our US Salt operations increased $0.9 million due to price increases and product mix management.

Cost of Product Sold. Cost of product sold for the three months ended March 31, 2010, was $451.4 million, an increase of $93.4 million, or 26.1%, from $358.0
million during the same three-month period in 2009.

Retail propane cost of product sold was $194.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $41.6 million, or 27.3%, when compared to
$152.4 million for the same three-month period in 2009. This higher retail cost of product sold was driven by a $39.9 increase associated with acquisition-related
sales and a $7.4 million increase arising from a higher average per gallon cost of propane. These factors were partially offset by a $5.5 million decline in cost of
product sold resulting from lower volume sales at our existing locations as discussed above and a $0.2 million decrease due to changes in non-cash charges on
derivative contracts associated with retail propane fixed price sales contracts.
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Wholesale propane cost of product sold in the three months ended March 31, 2010, was $174.2 million, an increase of $43.0 million or 32.8%, from wholesale
cost of product sold of $131.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009. This increase resulted from the greater volumes of propane purchased which
contributed $14.2 million to the increase in cost and the higher average purchase price of propane which contributed to $28.8 million of the increase as a result of
higher commodity prices.

Other retail cost of product sold was $40.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $46.0 million during the same three-month period in
2009. This $5.1 million, or 11.1%, decrease was primarily due to lower costs from distillate sales at existing locations of $6.5 million and a decline in costs for
other products and services of $0.2 million, partially offset by a $1.6 million increase in the cost of product sold associated with acquisition-related sales. The cost
of product sold for distillates declined as a result of lower volume sales at existing locations, partially offset by an increase in the average cost per gallon of
distillates.

Storage, fractionation and other midstream cost of product sold was $42.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $13.9 million, or
48.9%, from $28.4 million during the same three-month period in 2009. Costs from our West Coast NGL operations were $15.3 million higher primarily as a
result of higher average purchase price of natural gas liquids which contributed $11.1 million of the increase as a result of higher natural gas liquids prices. The
remainder of the increased costs at our West Coast NGL operations was due to expected changes in the variety of natural gas liquid products sold and increased
volumes processed due to the Butamer addition in July 2009. This increase was partially offset by lower costs attributable to operational efficiencies at our US
Salt, Bath and Stagecoach facilities.

Our retail and wholesale cost of product sold consists primarily of tangible products sold including all propane, distillates and other natural gas liquids sold and
all propane-related appliances sold. Other costs incurred in conjunction with the distribution of these products are included in operating and administrative
expenses and consist primarily of wages to delivery personnel, delivery vehicle costs consisting of fuel costs, repair and maintenance and lease expense. Costs
associated with delivery vehicles approximated $18.8 million and $16.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition,
the depreciation expense associated with the delivery vehicles and customer tanks is reported within depreciation and amortization expense and amounted to $8.6
million and $8.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Since we include these costs in our operating and administrative
expense and depreciation and amortization expense rather than in cost of product sold, our results may not be comparable to other entities in our lines of business
if they include these costs in cost of product sold.

Our storage, fractionation and other midstream cost of product sold consists primarily of commodity and transportation costs. Other costs incurred in conjunction
with these services are included in operating and administrative expense and depreciation and amortization expense and consist primarily of depreciation, vehicle
costs consisting of fuel costs and repair and maintenance and wages. Depreciation expense for storage, fractionation and other midstream amounted to $18.5
million and $7.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Vehicle costs and wages for personnel directly involved in providing
midstream services amounted to $0.8 million and $0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Since we include these costs in
our operating and administrative expense and depreciation and amortization expense rather than in cost of product sold, our results may not be comparable to
other entities in our lines of business if they include these costs in cost of product sold.

Gross Profit. Gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2010, was $239.7 million, an increase of $27.6 million, or 13.0%, from $212.1 million during the
same three-month period in 2009.

Retail propane gross profit was $177.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $151.7 million in the same three-month period in 2009.
This $25.8 million, or 17.0%, increase in retail propane gross profit was mostly attributable to acquisitions and a higher cash margin per gallon, which contributed
$28.4 million and $2.6 million, respectively. These improvements to retail propane gross profit were partially offset by a $5.4 million decline resulting from lower
retail gallon sales at existing locations as discussed above.

Wholesale propane gross profit was $5.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $8.6 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009,
a decrease of $2.8 million or 32.6%. The decline in gross profit was primarily the result of the unusually favorable market conditions in the prior year period,
which led to higher than usual gross profit during that prior period.
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Other retail gross profit was $26.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $26.8 million for the same three-month period in 2009. This
$0.4 million, or 1.5%, decrease was due primarily to lower gross profit on distillates and other products and services of a combined $2.3 million, primarily offset
by a $1.9 million increase in related gross profit from acquisitions.

Storage, fractionation and other midstream gross profit was $30.0 million in the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $25.0 million in the same
three-month period in 2009, an increase of $5.0 million, or 20.0%. This increase is primarily attributable to additional West Coast NGL contracts due to the
Butamer addition in July 2009 and margin improvements as a result of changes in the variety of natural gas liquids sold, resulting in a $2.5 million increase. The
remaining increase was attributable to operational efficiencies at our US Salt and Stagecoach facilities, our Thomas Corners facility being placed in service in
November 2009 and additional storage capacity at Bath.

Operating and Administrative Expenses. Operating and administrative expenses were $86.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to
$73.4 million in the same three-month period in 2009. This $13.4 million, or 18.3%, increase in operating expenses was due primarily to acquisitions of $11.5
million. In addition, operating expenses from existing operations increased $1.9 million comprised predominantly of higher vehicle expenses, insurance and other
operating expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization was $40.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $26.6 million during
the same three-month period in 2009. This $13.5 million, or 50.8%, increase resulted primarily from acquisitions and the expansion projects completed in our
midstream segment.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $22.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $18.1 million during the same three-month period
in 2009. This $4.8 million, or 26.5%, increase was due to both an increase in the average interest rate incurred on our borrowings and an increase in the average
outstanding borrowings during the period. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, we capitalized $1.9 million and $2.9 million,
respectively, of interest related to certain capital improvement projects in our midstream segment as further described below in the “Liquidity and Sources of
Capital” section.

Net Income Attributable to Partners. Net income was $87.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to net income of $91.3 million for the
same three-month period in 2009. The $3.4 million, or 3.7%, decrease in net income was primarily attributable to increased depreciation and amortization,
operating and administrative expenses and interest expense in the 2010 period, partially offset by a higher gross profit.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. The following table summarizes EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 20009,
respectively (in millions):

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009
EBITDA:
Net income attributable to partners $ 87.9 $ 913
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated ITDA @ (0.1) (0.2)
Interest expense, net 22.9 18.1
Provision for income taxes 0.2 0.1
Depreciation and amortization 40.1 26.6
EBITDA 151.0 135.9
Non-cash (gain) loss on derivative contracts 0.9 1.1
Long-term incentive and equity compensation expense 1.4 0.8
Loss on disposal of assets 1.7 2.3
Adjusted EBITDA $155.0 $ 140.1

@ ITDA - Interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.
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Three Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009
EBITDA:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 91.2 $ 130.2
Net changes in working capital balances 41.2 (6.5)
Provision for doubtful accounts (0.6) (1.2)
Amortization of deferred financing costs and net bond discount (1.8) (1.2)
Unit-based compensation charges 0.1) (0.8)
Loss on disposal of assets (1.7) 2.3)
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated EBITDA (0.3) (0.5)
Interest expense, net 22.9 18.1
Provision for income taxes 0.2 0.1
EBITDA 151.0 135.9
Non-cash (gain) loss on derivative contracts 0.9 1.1
Long-term incentive and equity compensation expense 1.4 0.8
Loss on disposal of assets 1.7 2.3
Adjusted EBITDA $155.0  $ 140.1

EBITDA is defined as income before taxes, plus net interest expense and depreciation and amortization expense. For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and
2009, EBITDA was $151.0 million and $135.9 million, respectively. As indicated in the table, Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA excluding the gain or loss
on derivative contracts associated with retail propane fixed price sales contracts, the gain or loss on the disposal of assets and long-term incentive and equity
compensation expenses. Adjusted EBITDA was $155.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $140.1 million in the same three-month
period in 2009. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered an alternative to net income, income before income taxes, cash flows from operating
activities, or any other measure of financial performance calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as those items are used to
measure operating performance, liquidity or the ability to service debt obligations. We believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide additional
information for evaluating our financial performance without regard to our financing methods, capital structure and historical cost basis. Further, we believe that
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide additional information for evaluating our ability to make the minimum quarterly distribution and are presented solely as

supplemental measures. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as we define them, may not be comparable to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled
measures used by other corporations or partnerships.
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Six Months Ended March 31, 2010 Compared to Six Months Ended March 31, 2009

The following table summarizes the consolidated statement of operations components for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (in
millions):

Six Months Ended
March 31, Change

2010 2009 In Dollars Percentage
Revenue $1,192.8 $1,104.1 $ 88.7 8.0%
Cost of product sold 777.9 717.7 60.2 8.4
Gross profit 414.9 386.4 28.5 7.4
Operating and administrative expenses 155.3 146.2 9.1 6.2
Depreciation and amortization 77.2 52.9 24.3 45.9
Loss on disposal of assets 3.7 3.0 0.7 23.3
Operating income 178.7 184.3 (5.6) 3.0)
Interest expense, net (44.0) (34.9) .1 (26.1)
Other income 0.1 — 0.1 e
Income before income taxes 134.8 149.4 (14.6) (9.8)
Provision for income taxes 0.3 0.2 0.1 50.0
Net income 134.5 149.2 (14.7) (9.9)
Net income attributable to non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated net income 0.6 0.7 (0.1) (14.3)
Net income attributable to partners $ 133.9 $ 1485 $ (14.6) (9.8)%

* Not meaningful

The following table summarizes revenues, including associated volume of gallons sold, for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 20009, respectively (in
millions):

Revenues Gallons
Six Months Ended Six Months Ended
March 31, Change March 31, Change

2010 2009 In Dollars Percent 2010 2009 In Units  Percent
Retail propane $ 5928 $ 571.8 $ 21.0 3.7% 249.7 229.1 20.6 9.0%
Wholesale propane 331.0 281.3 49.7 17.7 284.2 2499 34.3 13.7
Other retail 123.4 142.1 (18.7) (13.2) — — — —
Storage, fractionation and midstream 145.6 108.9 36.7 33.7 — — — —
Total $1,192.8 $1,104.1 $ 88.7 8.0% 5339 479.0 54.9 11.5%

Volume. During the six months ended March 31, 2010, we sold 249.7 million retail gallons of propane, an increase of 20.6 million gallons or 9.0% from the

229.1 million retail gallons sold during the same six-month period in 2009. Gallons sold during the six months ended March 31, 2010, increased as compared to
the same prior year period as a result of acquisition-related volume of 28.5 million gallons partially offset by a 7.9 million gallon decline from lower volumes sold
at our existing locations. The primary cause of the declining volumes at existing locations was (1) continued customer conservation, which we believe has
resulted from the overall weak United States economic environment and to a lesser extent the lingering effects of propane cost, which had been at record high
prices the past several years, and (2) volume declines from net customer losses, including low margin and less profitable customers. Also impacting volumes sold
during the six months ended March 31, 2010 compared to the same prior year period was the weather in certain areas of our operations. Based on our calculations
using degree day data provided by NOAA, the Southern and Southeast areas of the United States were significantly colder than the prior year period; however
gallon gains realized in these areas were somewhat offset by degree day losses in the Eastern and certain Northern parts of our areas of operations.
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Wholesale gallons delivered increased 34.3 million gallons, or 13.7%, to 284.2 million gallons in the six months ended March 31, 2010, from 249.9 million
gallons in the six months ended March 31, 2009. The increase was due primarily to greater volumes sold to existing customers and the addition of new customers.

The total natural gas liquid gallons sold or processed by our West Coast NGL operations increased 53.1 million gallons, or 42.1%, to 179.3 million gallons during
the six months ended March 31, 2010, from 126.2 million gallons during the same six-month period in 2009. This increase was primarily attributable to the
Butamer addition in July 2009 and new terminalling contracts.

During the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, our Northeast natural gas and LPG storage facilities were 100% contracted.

Revenues. Revenues for the six months ended March 31, 2010, were $1,192.8 million, an increase of $88.7 million, or 8.0%, from $1,104.1 million during the
same six-month period in 2009.

Revenues from retail propane sales were $592.8 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $571.8 million during the same six-month period
in 2009. This $21.0 million, or 3.7%, increase was primarily due to acquisition-related sales, which resulted in higher retail propane revenues of $71.5 million,
partially offset by a combination of a lower overall average retail selling price of propane on a year to date basis primarily as a result of lower cost of propane and
a decline in gallons sold to existing customers as described above, which contributed to a revenue decline of $30.7 million and $19.8 million, respectively.

Revenues from wholesale propane sales were $331.0 million in the six months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $49.7 million or 17.7%, from $281.3 million
in the six months ended March 31, 2009. This increase resulted from the greater volumes of propane sold which contributed $38.5 million to the increase in
revenues and the higher average wholesale sales price of propane which contributed to $ 11.2 million of the increase as a result of higher product costs.

Revenues from other retail sales, which primarily includes distillates, service, rental, appliance sales and transportation services, were $123.4 million for the six
months ended March 31, 2010, a decrease of $18.7 million, or 13.2%, from $142.1 million during the same six-month period in 2009. Revenue from other retail
sales declined as a result of lower distillate revenues at existing locations of $17.7 million and a $5.2 million decline in revenues from other products and
services, partially offset by a $4.2 million increase from acquisition-related sales. Distillate revenues from existing locations decreased primarily as a result of
lower volume sold.

Revenues from storage, fractionation and other midstream activities were $145.6 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $36.7 million
or 33.7% from $108.9 million during the same six-month period in 2009. Revenues from our West Coast NGL operations increased $32.8 million primarily as a
result of higher average sales price of natural gas liquids which contributed $15.1 million of the increase as a result of higher average natural gas liquids prices.
The remainder of the increase at our West Coast NGL operations was due to expected changes in the variety of natural gas liquid products sold and increased
volumes processed as a result of the Butamer addition in July 2009. Additionally, revenues from our US Salt operations increased $2.6 million due to price
increases and product mix management.

Cost of Product Sold. Cost of product sold for the six months ended March 31, 2010, was $777.9 million, an increase of $60.2 million, or 8.4%, from $717.7
million during the same six-month period in 2009.

Retail propane cost of product sold was $303.3 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $299.8 million for the same six-month period in
2009. This $3.5 million, or 1.2%, increase was the result of a $41.7 million increase associated with acquisition-related volume, which was mostly offset by a
reduction of cost of product sold relating to a decline in the average per gallon cost of retail propane coupled with lower volume sales at our existing locations as
discussed above, which reduced costs by $25.3 million and $10.3 million, respectively. Also contributing to the decline in retail propane cost of product sold was
a $2.6 million decrease due to changes in non-cash charges on derivative contracts associated with retail propane fixed price sales contracts.

Wholesale propane cost of product sold in the six months ended March 31, 2010, was $317.2 million, an increase of $50.2 million or 18.8%, from wholesale cost
of product sold of $267.0 million in the six months ended March 31, 2009. This increase resulted from the greater volumes of propane purchased which
contributed $36.6 million to the increase in cost and the higher average purchase price of wholesale propane sold which contributed $13.6 million of the increase
as a result of higher commodity prices.
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Other retail cost of product sold was $74.3 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $89.0 million during the same six-month period in
2009. This $14.7 million, or 16.5%, decrease was primarily due to lower costs from distillate sales at existing locations of $15.7 million and a decline in costs for
other products and services of $1.1 million, partially offset by a $2.1 million increase in the cost of product sold associated with acquisition-related sales. The cost
of product sold for distillates declined primarily as a result of lower volume sales at existing locations.

Storage, fractionation and other midstream cost of product sold was $83.1 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $21.2 million, or
34.2%, from $61.9 million during the same six-month period in 2009. Costs from our West Coast NGL operations were $24.7 million higher primarily as a result
of higher average purchase price of natural gas liquids which contributed $17.4 million of the increase as a result of higher natural gas liquids prices. The
remainder of the increased costs at our West Coast NGL operations was due to expected changes in the variety of natural gas liquid products sold and increased
volume processed due to the Butamer addition in July 2009. This increase was partially offset by lower costs of storage and operational efficiencies at our
Stagecoach, US Salt and Bath facilities.

Our retail and wholesale cost of product sold consists primarily of tangible products sold including all propane, distillates and other natural gas liquids sold and
all propane-related appliances sold. Other costs incurred in conjunction with the distribution of these products are included in operating and administrative
expenses and consist primarily of wages to delivery personnel, delivery vehicle costs consisting of fuel costs, repair and maintenance and lease expense. Costs
associated with delivery vehicles approximated $35.3 million and $34.1 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, the
depreciation expense associated with the delivery vehicles and customer tanks is reported within depreciation and amortization expense and amounted to $16.2
million and $16.4 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Since we include these costs in our operating and administrative
expense and depreciation and amortization expense rather than in cost of product sold, our results may not be comparable to other entities in our lines of business
if they include these costs in cost of product sold.

Our storage, fractionation and other midstream cost of product sold consists primarily of commodity and transportation costs. Other costs incurred in conjunction
with these services are included in operating and administrative expense and depreciation and amortization expense and consist primarily of depreciation, vehicle
costs consisting of fuel costs and repair and maintenance and wages. Depreciation expense for storage, fractionation and other midstream amounted to $36.4
million and $15.2 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Vehicle costs and wages for personnel directly involved in providing
midstream services amounted to $1.4 million and $1.5 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Since we include these costs in
our operating and administrative expense and depreciation and amortization expense rather than in cost of product sold, our results may not be comparable to
other entities in our lines of business if they include these costs in cost of product sold.

Gross Profit. Gross profit for the six months ended March 31, 2010, was $414.9 million, an increase of $28.5 million, or 7.4%, from $386.4 million during the
same six-month period in 20009.

Retail propane gross profit was $289.5 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $272.0 million in the same six-month period in 2009. This
$17.5 million, or 6.4%, increase in retail propane gross profit was attributable to a $29.8 million increase from acquisitions and a $2.6 million increase related to
changes in non-cash charges on derivative contracts associated with retail propane fixed price sales contracts as discussed above. These factors, which increased
retail propane gross profit, were partially offset by a $9.5 million decline resulting from lower retail gallon sales at existing locations as discussed above and a
$5.4 million decline arising from a lower cash margin per gallon. The decline in cash margin per gallon was primarily the result of the unusually favorable market
conditions in the prior year period, which led to higher than usual margins per gallon during that prior period.

Wholesale propane gross profit was $13.8 million in the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $14.3 million in the six months ended March 31, 2009, a
decrease of $0.5 million or 3.5%. The decline in gross profit was primarily the result of the unusually favorable market conditions in the prior year period, which
led to higher than usual gross profit during that prior period.
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Other retail gross profit was $49.1 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $53.1 million for the same six-month period in 2009. This $4.0
million, or 7.5%, decrease was due primarily to lower gross profit on other products and services and distillates of $4.1 million and $2.0 million, respectively,
partially offset by a $2.1 million increase in related gross profit from acquisitions.

Storage, fractionation and other midstream gross profit was $62.5 million in the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $47.0 million in the same six-
month period in 2009, an increase of $15.5 million, or 33.0%. This increase is primarily attributable to additional West Coast NGL contracts due to the Butamer
addition in July 2009 and margin improvements as a result of changes in the variety of natural gas liquids sold, resulting in an $8.1 million increase. The
remaining increase was attributable to operational efficiencies at our US Salt and Stagecoach facilities, our Thomas Corners facility being placed in service in
November 2009 and additional storage capacity at Bath.

Operating and Administrative Expenses. Operating and administrative expenses were $155.3 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to
$146.2 million in the same six-month period in 2009. This $9.1 million, or 6.2%, increase in operating expenses was due primarily to acquisitions of $12.1
million. Partially offsetting this increase was lower operating expenses from existing operations of $3.0 million comprised predominantly of lower personnel
expenses, vehicle expenses and other operating expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization was $77.2 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $52.9 million during the
same six-month period in 2009. This $24.3 million, or 45.9%, increase resulted primarily from acquisitions and the expansion projects completed in our
midstream segment.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $44.0 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $34.9 million during the same six-month period in
2009. This $9.1 million, or 26.1%, increase was primarily attributable to higher average interest rates incurred on our borrowings and to a lesser extent an
increase in the average outstanding borrowings during the period. Additionally, during the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, we capitalized $3.4
million and $5.2 million, respectively, of interest related to certain capital improvement projects in our midstream segment as further described below in the
“Liquidity and Sources of Capital” section.

Net Income Attributable to Partners. Net income was $133.9 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to net income of $148.5 million for the
same six-month period in 2009. The $14.6 million, or 9.8%, decrease in net income was primarily attributable to increased depreciation and amortization,
operating and administrative expenses and interest expense in the 2010 period, partially offset by a higher gross profit.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. The following table summarizes EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the six months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively (in millions):

Six Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009
EBITDA:
Net income attributable to partners $133.9  $1485
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated ITDA @ 0.2) (0.3)
Interest expense, net 44.0 34.9
Provision for income taxes 0.3 0.2
Depreciation and amortization 77.2 52.9
EBITDA 255.2 236.2
Non-cash (gain) loss on derivative contracts (1.1 1.5
Long-term incentive and equity compensation expense 3.5 1.4
Loss on disposal of assets 3.7 3.0
Adjusted EBITDA $261.3 $242.1

b . . . .
® ITDA - Interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.
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Six Months Ended
March 31,
2010 2009
EBITDA:
Net cash provided by operating activities $140.3  $141.6
Net changes in working capital balances 80.7 67.5
Provision for doubtful accounts 0.3 (0.8)
Amortization of deferred financing costs and net bond discount 3.7) (1.8)
Unit-based compensation charges 2.2) (1.4)
Loss on disposal of assets 3.7) 3.0)
Interest of non-controlling partners in ASC’s consolidated EBITDA (0.8) (1.0)
Interest expense, net 44.0 34.9
Provision for income taxes 0.3 0.2
EBITDA 255.2 236.2
Non-cash (gain) loss on derivative contracts (1.1) 1.5
Long-term incentive and equity compensation expense 3.5 1.4
Loss on disposal of assets 3.7 3.0
Adjusted EBITDA $261.3 $242.1

EBITDA is defined as income before taxes, plus net interest expense and depreciation and amortization expense. For the six months ended March 31, 2010 and
2009, EBITDA was $255.2 million and $236.2 million, respectively. As indicated in the table, Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA excluding the gain or loss
on derivative contracts associated with retail propane fixed price sales contracts, the gain or loss on the disposal of assets and long-term incentive and equity
compensation expenses. Adjusted EBITDA was $261.3 million for the six months ended March 31, 2010, compared to $242.1 million in the same six-month
period in 2009. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered an alternative to net income, income before income taxes, cash flows from operating
activities, or any other measure of financial performance calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as those items are used to
measure operating performance, liquidity or the ability to service debt obligations. We believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide additional
information for evaluating our financial performance without regard to our financing methods, capital structure and historical cost basis. Further, we believe that
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide additional information for evaluating our ability to make the minimum quarterly distribution and are presented solely as
supplemental measures. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, as we define them, may not be comparable to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled
measures used by other corporations or partnerships.

Seasonality

The retail market for propane is seasonal because it is used primarily for heating in residential and commercial buildings. Approximately three-quarters of our
retail propane volume is sold during the peak heating season from October through March. Consequently, sales and operating profits are generated mostly in the
first and fourth calendar quarters of each year.

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

Cash Flows and Contractual Obligations

Net operating cash inflows were $140.3 million and $141.6 million for the six-month periods ending March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The $1.3 million
decrease in operating cash flows was attributable to net decreases in cash components of net income attributable to partners and changes in working capital
balances.

Net investing cash outflows were $316.2 million and $101.7 million for the six-month periods ending March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Net cash outflows
were primarily impacted by a $260.7 million increase in cash outlays related to acquisitions, partially offset by a $46.3 million decrease in capital expenditures.
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Net financing cash inflows (outflows) were $183.5 million and $(39.1) million for the six-month periods ending March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The net
change was primarily impacted by a $137.1 million increase in proceeds related to the issuance of long-term debt, net of payments on long-term debt, and a
$114.2 million increase in proceeds from the issuance of common units, partially offset by a $29.5 million increase in total distributions paid and a $4.4 million
increase in payments for deferred financing costs.

We believe that anticipated cash from operations and borrowing capacity under our Credit Agreement described below will be sufficient to meet our liquidity
needs for the foreseeable future. If our plans or assumptions change or are inaccurate, or we make acquisitions, we may need to raise additional capital. We give
no assurance that we can raise additional capital to meet these needs. Global financial markets and economic conditions have been, and continue to be, disrupted
and volatile. The debt and equity capital markets have been distressed, but we have successfully raised over $200 million in long-term unsecured debt, entered
into a secured credit facility providing borrowing capacity up to $525 million, and raised over $200 million in two separate equity transactions during 2009 and
approximately $200 million in a 2010 equity transaction. We have identified capital expansion project opportunities in our midstream operations. As of March 31,
2010, we have firm purchase commitments totaling approximately $4.3 million related to certain of these projects. Additional commitments or expenditures, if
any, we may make toward any one or more of these projects are at the discretion of the Partnership. Any discontinuation of the construction of these projects will
likely result in less future cash flow and earnings than we have previously indicated.

Description of Credit Facility

On November 24, 2009, we entered into a secured credit facility (“Credit Agreement”) which provides borrowing capacity of up to $525 million in the form of a
$450 million revolving general partnership credit facility (“General Partnership Facility”) and a $75 million working capital credit facility (“Working Capital
Facility”). This facility replaces our former senior credit facility due 2010. This new facility will mature on November 22, 2013. The Credit Agreement accrues
interest at either prime rate or LIBOR plus applicable spreads, resulting in an interest rate of 3.23% at March 31, 2010. At March 31, 2010, borrowings
outstanding under the Credit Agreement were $136.0 million, all drawn under the General Partnership Facility. The Credit Agreement is guaranteed by each of
our wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries.

During each fiscal year beginning October 1, the outstanding balance of the Working Capital Facility must be reduced to $10.0 million or less for a minimum of
30 consecutive days during the period commencing March 1 and ending September 30 of each calendar year. Effective April 30, 2010, this requirement has been
met.

At our option, loans under the Credit Agreement bear interest at either the prime rate or LIBOR (preadjusted for reserves), plus, in each case, an applicable
margin. The applicable margin varies quarterly based on its leverage ratio. We also pay a fee based on the average daily unused commitments under the Credit
Agreement.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We have long-term debt and a revolving line of credit subject to the risk of loss associated with movements in interest rates. At March 31, 2010, we had floating
rate obligations totaling $213.9 million including amounts borrowed under our Credit Agreement, the ASC Credit Agreement and our interest rate swaps, which
convert a portion of our fixed rate senior unsecured notes due 2014 to floating, with aggregate notional amounts of $75 million. The floating rate obligations
expose us to the risk of increased interest expense in the event of increases in short-term interest rates.

If the floating rate were to fluctuate by 100 basis points from March 2010 levels, our interest expense would change by a total of approximately $2.1 million per
year.
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Commodity Price, Market and Credit Risk

Inherent in our contractual portfolio are certain business risks, including market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the risk that the value of the portfolio will
change, either favorably or unfavorably, in response to changing market conditions. Credit risk is the risk of loss from nonperformance by suppliers, customers or
financial counterparties to a contract. We take an active role in managing and controlling market and credit risk and have established control procedures, which
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. We monitor market risk through a variety of techniques, including daily reporting of the portfolio’s position to senior
management. We attempt to minimize credit risk exposure through credit policies and periodic monitoring procedures as well as through customer deposits,
letters of credit and entering into netting agreements that allow for offsetting counterparty receivable and payable balances for certain financial transactions, as
deemed appropriate. The counterparties associated with assets from price risk management activities as of March 31, 2010 and 2009, were propane retailers,
resellers, energy marketers and dealers.

The propane industry is a “margin-based” business in which gross profits depend on the excess of sales prices over supply costs. As a result, our profitability will
be sensitive to changes in wholesale prices of propane caused by changes in supply or other market conditions. When there are sudden and sharp increases in the
wholesale cost of propane, we may not be able to pass on these increases to our customers through retail or wholesale prices. Propane is a commodity and the
price we pay for it can fluctuate significantly in response to supply or other market conditions. We have no control over supply or market conditions. In addition,
the timing of cost pass-throughs can significantly affect margins. Sudden and extended wholesale price increases could reduce our gross profits and could, if
continued over an extended period of time, reduce demand by encouraging our retail customers to conserve or convert to alternative energy sources.

We engage in hedging and risk management transactions, including various types of forward contracts, options, swaps and futures contracts, to reduce the effect
of price volatility on our product costs, protect the value of our inventory positions and to help ensure the availability of propane during periods of short supply.
We attempt to balance our contractual portfolio by purchasing volumes only when we have a matching purchase commitment from our wholesale customers.
However, we may experience net unbalanced positions from time to time which we believe to be immaterial in amount. In addition to our ongoing policy to
maintain a balanced position, for accounting purposes we are required, on an ongoing basis, to track and report the market value of our derivative portfolio.

Fair Value
The fair value of the derivatives and inventory exchange contracts related to price risk management activities as of March 31, 2010 and September 30, 2009, was
assets of $8.9 million and $23.8 million, respectively, and liabilities of $5.6 million and $29.3 million, respectively.

We use observable market values for determining the fair value of our trading instruments. In cases where actively quoted prices are not available, other external
sources are used which incorporate information about commodity prices in actively quoted markets, quoted prices in less active markets and other market
fundamental analysis. Our risk management department regularly compares valuations to independent sources and models on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity Analysis

A theoretical change of 10% in the underlying commodity value would result in a negligible change in the market value of the contracts as there were 0.1 million
gallons of net unbalanced positions at March 31, 2010.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We maintain controls and procedures designed to provide a reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports that we file or submit
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the rules and forms of the SEC,
and that information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such
terms are defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2010, at the reasonable assurance level. There have
been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the period ended
March 31, 2010, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
On December 31, 2009, the Company completed its acquisition of Liberty. See Note 5 “Business Acquisitions” to the Consolidated Financial Statements included

in Item 1 for discussion of the acquisition and related financial data.

The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the internal controls and procedures of Liberty. Further, the Company is in the process of integrating
Liberty operations. Management will continue to evaluate its internal control over financial reporting as it executes integration activities, however, integration
activities could materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting in future periods.

Except for the Liberty acquisition, there were no other material changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the first two quarters of
fiscal 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.

Item 1A.

Item 2.

Item 3.

Item 4.

Item 5.

Item 6.

Legal Proceedings

Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, of this Form 10-Q is hereby incorporated herein by

reference.

Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in “Item 1A, Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Other Information

None.

Exhibits

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.2A

3.2B

3.2C

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Inergy, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Inergy, L.P.’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-56976) filed on March 14, 2001).

A Certificate of Correction of Certificate of Limited Partnership of Inergy, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Inergy, L.P.’s Form 10-Q (Registration No. 000-32543) filed on May 12, 2003).

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Inergy, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Inergy, L.P.’s Form 10-Q (Registration No. 000-32453) filed on February 13, 2004).

Amendment No. 1 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Inergy L.P. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Inergy, L.P.’s Form 10-Q (Registration No. 000-32453) filed on May 14, 2004).

Amendment No. 2 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Inergy, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Inergy, L.P.’s Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2005).

Amendment No. 3 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Inergy, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Inergy, L.P.’s Form 8-K/A filed on August 17, 2005).
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* Filed herewith

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

*10.1

*31.1

*31.2
*32.1

*32.2

Certificate of Formation as relating to Inergy Propane, LL.C, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Inergy,
L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-56976) filed on May 7, 2001).

Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Inergy Propane, LLC, dated as of July 31, 2001 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Inergy, L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-89010 filed on May 24,
2002).

Certificate of Formation of Inergy GP, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Inergy, L.P.’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-56976) filed on May 7, 2001).

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Inergy GP, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Inergy, L.P.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-56976) filed on May 7, 2001).

Certificate of Formation as relating to Inergy Partners, LLC, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to Inergy,
L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (Registration No. 333-56976) filed on May 7, 2001).

Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Inergy Partners, LLC, dated as of July 31, 2001 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to Inergy, L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-89010) filed on May 24,
2002).

Credit Agreement between Inergy, L.P. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. dated November 24, 2009.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Inergy, L.P. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Inergy, L.P pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Inergy, L.P. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Inergy, L.P. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

INERGY, L.P.

By: INERGY GP, LLC
(its managing general partner)

Date: May 4, 2010 By: /s/R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.

R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)
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CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of November 24, 2009, among INERGY, L.P., the LENDERS party hereto, PMORGAN CHASE

BANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent, BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. and WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., as Co-Syndication Agents and BANK OF
OKLAHOMA, N.A., as Documentation Agent.

The parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLEI

Definitions

SECTION 1.01. Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meanings specified below:

“ABR”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, are bearing
interest at a rate determined by reference to the Alternate Base Rate.

“Act” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.13.

“Adjusted LIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing for any Interest Period, an interest rate per annum (rounded upwards, if
necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) equal to (a) the LIBO Rate for such Interest Period multiplied by (b) the Statutory Reserve Rate.

“Administrative Agent” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for the Lenders hereunder.
“Administrative Questionnaire” means an Administrative Questionnaire in a form supplied by the Administrative Agent.

“Affiliate” means, with respect to a specified Person, another Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, Controls or is
Controlled by or is under common Control with the Person specified.

“Aggregate Commitment” means the sum of the General Partnership Commitments and the Working Capital Commitments, as such amount may be
reduced or modified at any time or from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof. On the Effective Date, the Aggregate Commitment is Five Hundred
Twenty-Five Million Dollars ($525,000,000).

“Agreement” has the meaning assigned to such term in the introductory paragraph hereto.

“Alternate Base Rate” means, for any day, a rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day, (b) the Federal Funds
Effective Rate in effect on such day plus /2 of 1% and (c) the Adjusted LIBO Rate for a one month Interest Period on such day (or if such day is not a
Business Day, the immediately preceding Business Day) plus 1%, provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, the Adjusted LIBO Rate for any day shall be
based on the rate appearing on Reuters Screen LIBORO1 Page (or on any successor or substitute page of such page) at approximately 11:00 a.m. London
time on such day. Any change in the Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate, the Federal Funds Effective Rate or the Adjusted LIBO Rate
shall be effective from and including the effective date of such change in the Prime Rate, the Federal Funds Effective Rate or the Adjusted LIBO Rate,
respectively.




“Annual Budget” means a budget setting forth detailed quarterly projections of the earnings and expenditures of the Borrower and its Consolidated
Subsidiaries.

“Applicable Laws” means all applicable provisions of constitutions, statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, treaties, regulations, permits, licenses,
approvals, interpretations and orders of all Governmental Authorities and all orders and decrees of all courts and arbitrators.

“Applicable Percentage” means, with respect to any Lender, the percentage of the Aggregate Commitment represented by such Lender’s
Commitment. If the Commitments have terminated or expired, the Applicable Percentages shall be determined based upon the Commitments most recently
in effect, giving effect to any assignments.

“Applicable Pledge Percentage” means 100%, but (x) 65% in the case of a pledge of Capital Stock of a First Tier Foreign Subsidiary, or (y) 0% in the
case a pledge of Capital Stock of such Subsidiary would cause a Financial Assistance Problem.

“Applicable Rate” means, for any day, with respect to any ABR Loan or Eurodollar Loan, or with respect to the commitment fees payable hereunder,
as the case may be, the applicable rate per annum set forth below under the caption “ABR Spread”, “Eurodollar Spread” or “Commitment Fee”, as the case
may be, based upon the Total Leverage Ratio as reflected in the then most recently delivered Financials:

Total Leverage Commitment ABR
Pricing Level: Ratio: Fee: Spread: Eurodollar Spread:
Level I £3.00 to 1.00 0.50% 1.50% 2.50%
Level I > 3.00 to 1.00 but 0.50% 1.75% 2.75%
£3.50 to 1.00
Level III > 3.50 to 1.00 but 0.50% 2.00% 3.00%
£4.00 to 1.00
Level IV > 4.00 to 1.00 but 0.625% 2.50% 3.50%
£4.50 to 1.00
Level V >4.50 to 1.00 0.625% 2.75% 3.75%

For purposes of the foregoing,

(i) if at any time the Borrower fails to deliver the Financials required under Section 5.01(a) or 5.01(b) on or before the date such Financials are
due, Pricing Level V shall be deemed applicable for the period commencing five (5) Business Days after such required date of delivery and ending
on the date which is five (5) days after such Financials are actually delivered, after which the Pricing Level shall be determined in accordance with

the table above as applicable;

(ii) adjustments, if any, to the Pricing Level then in effect shall be effective five (5) Business Days after the Administrative Agent has received
the applicable Financials (it being understood and agreed that each change in Pricing Level shall apply during the period commencing on the

effective date of such change and ending on the date immediately preceding the effective date of the next such change);
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(iii) each determination of the Applicable Rate made by the Administrative Agent in accordance with the foregoing shall, if reasonably
determined, be conclusive and binding on the Borrower and each Lender; and

(iv) notwithstanding the foregoing, Pricing Level III shall be deemed to be applicable until the Administrative Agent’s receipt of the applicable
Financials for the Borrower’s first fiscal quarter ending after the Effective Date (unless such Financials demonstrate that Pricing Levels IV or V
should have been applicable during such period, in which case such other Pricing Level shall be deemed to be applicable during such period) and
adjustments to the Pricing Level then in effect shall thereafter be effected in accordance with the preceding paragraphs.

“Approved Fund” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.04.

“Assignment and Assumption” means an assignment and assumption entered into by a Lender and an assignee (with the consent of any party whose
consent is required by Section 9.04), and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in the form of Exhibit A or any other form approved by the Administrative
Agent.

“Augmenting Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.20.

“Availability Period” means the period from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the earlier of the Maturity Date and the date of
termination of the Commitments.

“Available Cash” has the meaning assigned to such term in the Partnership Agreement.

“Banking Services” means treasury management services (including, without limitation, controlled disbursement, automated clearinghouse
transactions, return items, overdrafts and interstate depository network services) provided to the Borrower or any Subsidiary by any Lender or any of its
Affiliates.

“Banking Services Agreement” means any agreement entered into by the Borrower or any Subsidiary in connection with Banking Services.

“Board” means the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States of America.
“Borrower” means Inergy, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership.

“Borrowing” means (a) Revolving Loans of the same Type, made, converted or continued on the same date and, in the case of Eurodollar Loans, as
to which a single Interest Period is in effect or (b) a Swingline Loan.

“Borrowing Request” means a request by the Borrower for a Revolving Borrowing in accordance with Section 2.03.

“BSA” means all Bank Secrecy Act laws and regulations, as amended.
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“Business Day” means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in Chicago, Illinois and New York, New York
are authorized or required by law to remain closed; provided that, when used in connection with a Eurodollar Loan, the term “Business Day” shall also
exclude any day on which banks are not open for dealings in dollar deposits in the London interbank market.

“Capital Expenditures” means expenditures made and liabilities incurred that should, in accordance with GAAP, be classified and accounted for as
capital expenditures.

“Capital Lease” means a lease of (or other arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which
obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP, and the amount of such
obligations shall be the capitalized amount thereof determined in accordance with GAAP.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to any Person, any and all shares, interests, rights to purchase, warrants, options, participations or other
equivalents of or interests in (however designated) equity of such Person, including any preferred interest, any limited or general partnership interest and
any limited liability company membership interest.

“Change in Control” means (i) the Borrower ceases to own and control 100% of the outstanding Capital Stock of Inergy Propane; (ii) Inergy
Holdings ceases to own and control 100% of the outstanding Capital Stock of Inergy GP; (iii) any Person or group of Persons (within the meaning of
Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) shall acquire, directly or indirectly, more than 30% of the outstanding Capital Stock of the
Borrower; (iv) any Person or group of Persons (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), other than the holders of
Capital Stock of Inergy Holdings GP on the Effective Date, shall acquire, directly or indirectly, more than 30% of the outstanding Capital Stock of Inergy
Holdings GP; (v) Inergy GP ceases to be the managing general partner of the Borrower or Inergy Holdings GP ceases to be the managing general partner of
Inergy Holdings; (vi) a majority of the seats on the board of directors (or other applicable governing body) of Inergy GP shall at any time after the Effective
Date be occupied by Persons who were not nominated by Inergy GP or Inergy Holdings, by a majority of the board of directors (or other applicable
governing body) of Inergy GP or Inergy Holdings or by Persons so nominated; (vii) a majority of the seats on the board of directors (or other applicable
governing body) of Inergy Propane shall at any time after the Effective Date be occupied by Persons who were not nominated by Inergy Propane or Inergy
Holdings, by a majority of the board of directors (or other applicable governing body) of Inergy Propane or Inergy Holdings or by Persons so nominated;
(viii) a majority of the seats on the board of directors (or other applicable governing body) of Inergy Holdings GP shall at any time after the Effective Date
be nominated by Persons who were not nominated by Inergy Holdings GP, by a majority of the board of directors (or other applicable governing body) of
Inergy Holdings GP or by Persons so nominated; or (ix) any pledgor under any Pledge Agreement shall grant or suffer to exist any Lien on such pledgor’s
interest in any Collateral described therein, except in each case for any Permitted Lien.

“Change in Law” means (a) the adoption of any law, rule or regulation after the date of this Agreement, (b) any change in any law, rule or regulation
or in the interpretation or application thereof by any Governmental Authority after the date of this Agreement or (c) compliance by any Lender or any
Issuing Bank (or, for purposes of Section 2.15(b), by any lending office of such Lender or by such Lender’s or any Issuing Bank’s holding company, if any)
with any request, guideline or directive (whether or not having the force of law) of any Governmental Authority made or issued after the date of this
Agreement.



“Class”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, are Revolving
Loans or Swingline Loans.

“Cleandown Period” means the period commencing March 1 and ending September 30 during each Fiscal Year.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

“Collateral” means all property and interests in property now owned or hereafter acquired by any Credit Party in or upon which a security interest,
Lien or Mortgage is granted to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations, whether under the Collateral Documents or
under any of the other Credit Documents; provided that Collateral shall exclude Excluded Assets.

“Collateral Documents” means all agreements, instruments and documents executed in connection with this Agreement pursuant to which the
Administrative Agent is granted a security interest in Collateral, including, without limitation, the Pledge and Security Agreement, the Trademark Security
Agreement, the Mortgages, any Pledge Agreement and all other security agreements, loan agreements, notes, guarantees, subordination agreements,
pledges, powers of attorney, consents, assignments, contracts, fee letters, notices, leases, financing statements and all other written matter whether
heretofore, now, or hereafter executed by or on behalf of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries and delivered to the Administrative Agent or any of the
Lenders, together with all agreements and documents referred to therein or contemplated thereby.

“Collateral Regrant Event” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.10(b).
“Collateral Release Event” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.10(b).
“Commercial Operation Date” means the date on which a Material Project is substantially complete and commercially operable.

“Commitment” means, with respect to each Lender, such Lender’s General Partnership Commitment and Working Capital Commitment, expressed
as an amount representing the maximum aggregate amount of such Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure hereunder, as such commitment may be
(a) reduced from time to time pursuant to Section 2.09, (b) reduced or increased from time to time pursuant to assignments by or to such Lender pursuant to
Section 9.04 and (c) in the case of such Lender’s General Partnership Commitment, increased from time to time pursuant to Section 2.20. The amount of
each Lender’s Commitment is set forth on Schedule 2.01 or in the Assignment and Assumption pursuant to which such Lender shall have assumed its
Commitment, as applicable.

“Co-Syndication Agent” means each of Bank of America, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., in its capacity as a co-syndication agent for the credit
facility evidenced by this Agreement.

“Consolidated” means the consolidation of accounts in accordance with GAAP.

“Consolidated EBITDA” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for any period, an amount equal to: (i) net income
for such period, plus (ii) amounts deducted in the computation thereof for (a) interest expense, (b) federal, state and local income taxes, and (c) depreciation
and amortization, plus or minus, as the case may be, (iii) gains or losses from the sale of assets in the ordinary course of business, and plus or minus, as the
case may be, (iv) extraordinary non-cash gains or losses for such period; provided, that for the purposes of determining Consolidated
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EBITDA for any period during which a Permitted Acquisition is consummated, Consolidated EBITDA shall be adjusted in a manner reasonably
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent to give effect to the consummation of such Permitted Acquisition on a pro forma basis, as if such Permitted
Acquisition occurred on the first day of such period. Furthermore, in the event the Borrower or any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries undertakes a Material
Project, a Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustment may be added to Consolidated EBITDA at Borrower’s option. As used herein a “Material
Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustment” means, with respect to each Material Project:

(i) prior to the Commercial Operation Date of a Material Project (but including the fiscal quarter in which such Commercial Operation Date
occurs), a percentage (equal to the then-current completion percentage of such Material Project) of an amount to be approved by the Administrative
Agent as the projected Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower attributable to such Material Project for the first 12-month period following the
scheduled Commercial Operation Date of such Material Project (such amount to be determined based on contracts relating to such Material Project,
the creditworthiness of the other parties to such contracts, and projected revenues from such contracts, capital costs and expenses, scheduled
Commercial Operation Date, and other factors reasonably deemed appropriate by the Administrative Agent; it being understood and agreed that the
Administrative Agent’s approval of the projected Consolidated EBITDA amount shall not be withheld if the projected Consolidated EBITDA so
attributable is reasonably consistent with the information delivered to the Administrative Agent prior to the Effective Date), which may, at the
Borrower’s option, be added to actual Consolidated EBITDA for the fiscal quarter in which construction of such Material Project commences and for
each fiscal quarter thereafter until the Commercial Operation Date of such Material Project (including the fiscal quarter in which such Commercial
Operation Date occurs, but net of any actual Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower attributable to such Material Project following such Commercial
Operation Date); provided that if the actual Commercial Operation Date does not occur by the scheduled Commercial Operation Date, then the
foregoing amount shall be reduced, for quarters ending after the scheduled Commercial Operation Date to (but excluding) the first full quarter after
its actual Commercial Operation Date, by the following percentage amounts depending on the period of delay (based on the period of actual delay or
then-estimated delay, whichever is longer): (i) 90 days or less, 0%, (ii) longer than 90 days, but not more than 180 days, 25%, (iii) longer than 180
days but not more than 270 days, 50%, and (iv) longer than 270 days, 100%; and

(ii) beginning with the first full fiscal quarter following the Commercial Operation Date of a Material Project and for the two immediately
succeeding fiscal quarters, an amount to be approved by the Administrative Agent as the projected Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower
attributable to such Material Project (determined and approved in the same manner as set forth in clause (i) above) for the balance of the four full
fiscal quarter period following such Commercial Operation Date, which may, at Borrower’s option, be added to actual Consolidated EBITDA for
such fiscal quarters (but net of any actual Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower attributable to such Material Project following such Commercial
Operation Date).

Notwithstanding the foregoing: (A) no Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustment shall be allowed with respect to any Material Project
unless: (y) not later than 30 days (or such shorter period as is acceptable to the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion) prior to the delivery of
any compliance certificate required by the terms and provisions of Section 5.01(c) to the extent Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustments will
be made to Adjusted Consolidated EBITDA, the Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent written pro forma projections of Consolidated
EBITDA of the Borrower (or its Consolidated Subsidiary) attributable to such Material Project, and (z) prior to the date such compliance certificate is
required to be delivered, the Administrative Agent shall have approved such projections and shall have received such other information (including updated
status reports summarizing each Material Project currently under



construction and covering original anticipated and current projected cost, Capital Expenditures (completed and remaining), the anticipated Commercial
Operation Date, total Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustments and the portion thereof to be added to Consolidated EBITDA and other
information regarding projected revenues, customers and contracts supporting such pro forma projections and the anticipated Commercial Operation Date)
and documentation as the Administrative Agent may reasonably request (such approval not to be withheld if such information is reasonably consistent with
the information delivered to the Administrative Agent prior to the Effective Date), all in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative
Agent, (B) the aggregate amount of all Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustments during any period shall be limited to 15% of the total actual
Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such period (which total actual Consolidated EBITDA shall be determined
without including any Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustments) and (C) Consolidated EBITDA shall not include or give effect to the income
(or loss) of any Excluded Subsidiary or any other entity (other than a Subsidiary that is not an Excluded Subsidiary) in which the Borrower or any
Subsidiary has an ownership interest, except to the extent that any such income has been actually received by the Borrower or any Subsidiary (other than an
Excluded Subsidiary) in the form of cash dividends or similar cash distributions and, for the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing additions to, and
subtractions from, Consolidated EBITDA described in this definition shall not give effect to any items (other than such income so actually received)
attributable to any Excluded Subsidiary or such other entity (provided that this clause (C) shall not apply to the entities described in clause (a) of the
definition of Excluded Subsidiary).

“Consolidated Interest Expense” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, for any period, an amount equal to (i) all
interest in respect of Debt accrued during such period (whether or not actually paid during such period), plus (ii) the net amount payable (or minus the net
amount receivable) under interest rate Hedging Agreements accrued during such period (whether or not actually paid or received during such period) plus
(iii) on a pro-forma basis, the sum of all interest accrued relating to Debt incurred in connection with any Permitted Acquisition calculated in a manner
reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, excluding in each case up front financing fees payable in connection with the consummation of the
Transactions.

“Consolidated Subsidiary” means for any Person, each Subsidiary of such Person (whether existing on the Effective Date or thereafter created or
acquired) the financial statements of which shall be (or should have been) Consolidated with the financial statements of such Person in accordance with
GAAP.

“Consolidated Total Assets” means, as of the date of any determination thereof, total assets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries calculated in
accordance with GAAP on a Consolidated basis as of such date.

“Control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a Person,
whether through the ability to exercise voting power, by contract or otherwise. “Controlling” and “Controlled” have meanings correlative thereto.

“Controlled Subsidiary” means a direct or indirect Subsidiary of the Borrower and with respect to which the Borrower owns not less than fifty-one
percent (51%) of the voting equity interests of such Subsidiary.

“Credit Documents” means this Agreement, any promissory notes executed and delivered pursuant to Section 2.10(e), the Subsidiary Guaranty, the
Collateral Documents and any and all other instruments and documents executed and delivered in connection with any of the foregoing.
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“Credit Parties” means, collectively, the Borrower and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

“Debt” means, with respect to any Person, without duplication (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money or with respect to deposits or
advances of any kind (including repurchase obligations, but not including customer deposits), (b) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds,
debentures, notes or similar instruments or letters of credit in support of bonds, notes, debentures or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such Person
upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement relating to
property purchased by such Person, (e) all obligations of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services (including,
without duplication, obligations under a non-compete or similar agreement) to the extent such obligations are reportable under GAAP, (f) all obligations of
such Person as lessee under Capital Leases of such Person or leases of such Person for which such Person retains tax ownership of the property subject to a
lease, (g) all obligations of others secured by (or for which the holder of such Debt has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any
Lien on property or assets owned or acquired by such Person, whether or not the obligations secured thereby have been assumed, (h) all Guaranties of such
Person, (i) all obligations of such Person with respect to interest rate protection agreements (including, without limitation, interest rate Hedging
Agreements) or foreign currency exchange agreements (valued at the termination value thereof computed in accordance with a method approved by the
International Swap Dealers Association and agreed to by such Person in the applicable Hedging Agreement, if any), (j) all obligations of such Person as an
account party in respect of letters of credit (1) securing Debt (other than letters of credit obtained in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past
practices) or (2) obtained for any purpose not in the ordinary course of business or not consistent with past practices, (k) all obligations of such Person in
respect of bankers’ acceptances and (1) all current liabilities in respect of unfunded vested benefits under a Pension Plan covered by ERISA; provided that
accrued expenses and accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business shall not constitute Debt. The Debt of any Person shall include the Debt
of any other entity (including any partnership in which such Person is a general partner) to the extent such Person is liable therefor as a result of such
Person’s ownership interest in or other relationship with such entity, except to the extent the terms of such Debt provide that such Person is not liable
therefor.

“Default” means any event or condition which constitutes an Event of Default or which upon notice, lapse of time or both would, unless cured or
waived, become an Event of Default.

“Defaulting Lender” means any Lender, as reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent after consultation with the Borrower, that (a) has
failed to fund any portion of its Loans or participations in Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans within three (3) Business Days of the date required to be
funded by it hereunder, (b) has notified the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank, the Swingline Lender or any Lender in writing that it
does not intend to comply with any of its funding obligations under this Agreement or has made a public statement to the effect that it does not intend to
comply with its funding obligations under (i) this Agreement or (ii) under other agreements in which it is obligated to extend credit, (c) has failed, within
three (3) Business Days after request by the Administrative Agent, to confirm that it will comply with the terms of this Agreement relating to its obligations
to fund prospective Loans and participations in then outstanding Letters of Credit and Swingline Loans and has not subsequently provided such
confirmation, (d) has otherwise failed to pay over to the Administrative Agent or any other Lender any other amount required to be paid by it hereunder
within three (3) Business Days of the date when due, unless the subject of a good faith dispute, or (e) (i) is insolvent or has a parent company that is
insolvent or (ii) is the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or has had a receiver, conservator, trustee or custodian appointed for it, or has
taken any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any such proceeding or appointment or has a parent company
that has become the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, or has had a receiver, conservator, trustee or custodian appointed for it, or has
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taken any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any such proceeding or appointment, unless, in the case of
any Lender referred to in this clause (e) the Borrower and the Administrative Agent shall be reasonably satisfied that such Lender intends, and has all
approvals required to enable it, to continue to perform its obligations as a Lender hereunder; provided, that a Lender shall not become a Defaulting Lender
solely as the result of (x) the acquisition or maintenance of an ownership interest in such Lender or a Person controlling such Lender or (y) the exercise of
control over a Lender or a Person controlling such Lender, in each case, by a Governmental Authority or an instrumentality thereof.

“Documentation Agent” means Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., in its capacity as a documentation agent for the credit facility evidenced by this
Agreement.

“Dollars” or “$” refers to lawful money of the United States of America.
“Domestic Subsidiary” means a Subsidiary organized under the laws of a jurisdiction located in the United States of America.
“Effective Date” means the date on which the conditions specified in Section 4.01 are satisfied (or waived in accordance with Section 9.02).

“Environmental Laws” means any and all federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, approvals,
interpretations and orders of courts or Governmental Authorities, relating to the protection of human health (including, but not limited to employee health
and safety) or the environment, including, but not limited to, requirements pertaining to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage,
disposal, transportation, handling, reporting, licensing, permitting, investigation or remediation of Hazardous Materials.

“Environmental Liability” means any liability, contingent or otherwise (including any liability for damages, costs of environmental remediation,
fines, penalties or indemnities), of the Borrower or any Subsidiary directly or indirectly resulting from or based upon (a) violation of any Environmental
Law, (b) the generation, use, handling, transportation, storage, treatment or disposal of any Hazardous Materials, (c) exposure to any Hazardous Materials,
(d) the release or threatened release of any Hazardous Materials into the environment or (e) any contract, agreement or other consensual arrangement
pursuant to which liability is assumed or imposed with respect to any of the foregoing.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that, together with the Borrower, is treated as a single employer under
Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code or, solely for purposes of Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Code, is treated as a single employer under
Section 414 of the Code.

“ERISA Event” means (a) any “reportable event”, as defined in Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder with respect to a Plan
(other than an event for which the 30-day notice period is waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Plan of an “accumulated funding deficiency” (as
defined in Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) the filing pursuant to Section 412(d) of the Code or
Section 303(d) of ERISA of an application for a waiver of the minimum funding standard with respect to any Plan; (d) the incurrence by the Borrower or
any of its ERISA Affiliates of any liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect to the termination of any Plan; (e) the receipt by the Borrower or any
ERISA Affiliate from the PBGC or a plan administrator of



any notice relating to an intention to terminate any Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan; (f) the incurrence by the Borrower or any of
its ERISA Affiliates of any liability with respect to the withdrawal or partial withdrawal from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; or (g) the receipt by the
Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice, or the receipt by any Multiemployer Plan from the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate of any notice,
concerning the imposition of Withdrawal Liability or a determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, or is expected to be, insolvent or in reorganization,
within the meaning of Title IV of ERISA.

“Eurodollar”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to such Loan, or the Loans comprising such Borrowing, bearing interest at a
rate determined by reference to the Adjusted LIBO Rate.

“Event of Default” has the meaning assigned to such term in Article VII.

“Excluded Assets” means the Capital Stock in any Domestic Subsidiary that is a JV Subsidiary to the extent the organizational documents of such
Subsidiary prohibit such Capital Stock from being pledged under the Collateral Documents.

“Excluded Subsidiary” means (a) Inergy Canada Corporation, a Canadian ULC, Steuben Gas Storage Company, Adrian Associates, L.P. and
Arlington Associates, L.P., (b) any Foreign Subsidiary not otherwise set forth in clause (a) of this definition, and (c) any JV Subsidiary, so long as the
Borrower’s and its other Subsidiaries’ investments in and advances to, in each case made after the Effective Date, all Excluded Subsidiaries are less than
$100,000,000 in the aggregate.

“Excluded Taxes” means, with respect to the Administrative Agent, any Lender, any Issuing Bank or any other recipient of any payment to be made
by or on account of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder or any Subsidiary Guarantor under a Subsidiary Guaranty, (a) income or franchise taxes
imposed on (or measured by) its net income or taxable margin (as defined under applicable state law) by the United States of America (or any political
subdivision thereof), or by the jurisdiction under the laws of which such recipient is organized or in which its principal office is located or, in the case of
any Lender, in which its applicable lending office is located, (b) any branch profits taxes imposed by the United States of America or any similar tax
imposed by any other jurisdiction in which the Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor is located or the jurisdiction of any Lender’s applicable lending
office and (c) in the case of a Foreign Lender (other than an assignee pursuant to a request by the Borrower under Section 2.19(b)), any withholding tax that
is imposed on amounts payable to such Foreign Lender at the time such Foreign Lender becomes a party to this Agreement (or designates a new lending
office) or is attributable to such Foreign Lender’s failure to comply with Section 2.17(e), except to the extent that such Foreign Lender (or its assignor, if
any) was entitled, at the time of designation of a new lending office (or assignment), to receive additional amounts from the Borrower with respect to such
withholding tax pursuant to Section 2.17(a) (it being understood and agreed, for the avoidance of doubt, that any withholding tax imposed on a Foreign
Lender as a result of a Change in Law or regulation or interpretation thereof occurring after the time such Foreign Lender became a party to this Agreement
shall not be an Excluded Tax).

“Existing Credit Agreement” means that certain Credit Agreement dated as of December 17, 2004 by and among the Borrower, the lenders party
thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, as the same has been amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
prior to the Effective Date.

“Existing Letters of Credit” means the letters of credit set forth on Schedule 2.06 hereto and deemed issued under Section 2.06.
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“Federal Funds Effective Rate” means, for any day, the weighted average (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) of the rates on
overnight Federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funds brokers, as published on the next succeeding
Business Day by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not so published for any day that is a Business Day, the average (rounded
upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) of the quotations for such day for such transactions received by the Administrative Agent from three
Federal funds brokers of recognized standing selected by it.

“Fee Owned Real Property” means any real property, to which the record or beneficial owner has fee title.

“Financial Assistance Problem” means, with respect to any Foreign Subsidiary, the inability of such Foreign Subsidiary to become a Subsidiary
Guarantor or to permit its Capital Stock from being pledged pursuant to a Pledge Agreement on account of legal or financial limitations imposed by the
jurisdiction of organization of such Foreign Subsidiary or other relevant jurisdictions having authority over such Foreign Subsidiary.

“Financial Officer” means, as to any Person, the president, chief financial officer, treasurer or controller of such Person.

“Financials” means the annual or quarterly financial statements, and accompanying certificates and other documents, of the Borrower required to be
delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(a) or 5.01(b).

“First Tier Foreign Subsidiary” means each Foreign Subsidiary with respect to which any one or more of the Borrower and its Domestic Subsidiaries
directly owns or controls more than 50% of such Foreign Subsidiary’s Capital Stock.

“Fiscal Year” means the 52-week fiscal year of any Person ending September 30 of each calendar year.

“Foreign Lender” means any Lender that is organized under the laws of a jurisdiction other than that in which the Borrower is located. For purposes
of this definition, the United States of America, each State thereof and the District of Columbia shall be deemed to constitute a single jurisdiction.

“Foreign Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary which is not a Domestic Subsidiary.
“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

“General Partnership Commitment” with respect to each Lender, the commitment of such Lender to make General Partnership Loans. On the
Effective Date, the aggregate amount of General Partnership Commitments is Four Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($450,000,000).

“General Partnership Credit Exposure” means, with respect to any Lender at any time, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such Lender’s
General Partnership Loans.

“General Partnership Loans” means Revolving Loans made pursuant to Section 2.01.01.
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“Governmental Approvals” means all authorizations, consents, approvals, licenses and exemptions of, registrations and filings with, and reports to,
all Governmental Authorities.

“Governmental Authorities” means any nation, province, state or political subdivision thereof, and any government or any Person exercising
executive, legislative, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to government, and any corporation or other entity owned or controlled,
through stock or capital ownership or otherwise, by any of the foregoing.

“Guaranty” by any Person means any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of guaranteeing
any Debt of any other Person (the “primary obligor”) (excluding endorsements of checks for collection or deposit in the ordinary course of business) in any
manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including any obligation of such Person, direct or indirect, (i) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for
the purchase or payment of) such Debt or to purchase (or to advance or supply funds for the purchase of) any security for the payment of such Debt, (ii) to
purchase property, securities or services for the purpose of assuring the owner of such Debt of the payment of such Debt or (iii) to maintain working
capital, equity capital or other financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Debt.

“Hazardous Materials” means all explosive or radioactive substances or wastes and all hazardous or toxic substances, wastes or other pollutants,
including petroleum or petroleum distillates, asbestos or asbestos containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, radon gas, infectious or medical wastes
and all other substances or wastes of any nature regulated pursuant to any Environmental Law.

“Hedging Agreement” means any agreement with respect to any swap, forward, future or derivative transaction or option or similar agreement
involving, or settled by reference to, one or more rates, currencies, commodities, equity or debt instruments or securities, or economic, financial or pricing
indices or measures of economic, financial or pricing risk or value or any similar transaction or any combination of these transactions; provided that no
phantom stock or similar plan providing for payments only on account of services provided by current or former directors, officers, employees or
consultants of the Borrower or the Subsidiaries shall be a Hedging Agreement.

“Holders of Secured Obligations” means the holders of the Obligations from time to time and shall include (i) each Lender and each Issuing Bank in
respect of its Loans and LC Exposure, (ii) the Administrative Agent and the Lenders in respect of all other present and future obligations and liabilities of
the Borrower and each Subsidiary of every type and description arising under or in connection with the Credit Agreement or any other Credit Document,
(iii) each Lender and each Affiliate of such Lender, in each case in respect of Hedging Agreements and Banking Services Agreements entered into with
such Person by the Borrower or any Subsidiary, (iv) each indemnified party under Section 9.03 in respect of the obligations and liabilities of the Borrower
to such Person hereunder and under the other Credit Documents, and (v) their respective successors and (in the case of a Lender, permitted) transferees and
assigns.

“Increasing Lender” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 2.20.
“Incremental Credits” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.02.
“Indemnified Taxes” means Taxes other than Excluded Taxes.

“Indemnitee” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.03.
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“Inergy Finance” has the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “Senior Unsecured Notes”.
“Inergy GP” means Inergy GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

“Inergy Holdings” means Inergy Holdings, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership.

“Inergy Holdings GP” means Inergy Holdings GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

“Inergy Propane” means Inergy Propane, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

“Information” has mean meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.12.

“Interest Coverage Ratio” means, at any time, the ratio of (i) Consolidated EBITDA of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries to
(ii) Consolidated Interest Expense of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, in each case for the four fiscal quarters then most recently ended.

“Interest Election Request” means a request by the Borrower to convert or continue a Revolving Borrowing in accordance with Section 2.08.

“Interest Payment Date” means (a) with respect to any ABR Loan, the last day of each March, June, September and December and (b) with respect to
any Eurodollar Loan, the last day of the Interest Period applicable to the Borrowing of which such Loan is a part and, in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing
with an Interest Period of more than three months’ duration, each day prior to the last day of such Interest Period that occurs at intervals of three months’
duration after the first day of such Interest Period.

“Interest Period” means, with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Borrowing and ending on the
numerically corresponding day in the calendar month that is one, two, three or six (or with the consent of each Lender, nine or twelve months) thereafter, as
the Borrower may elect; provided, that (i) if any Interest Period would end on a day other than a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the
next succeeding Business Day unless, in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing only, such next succeeding Business Day would fall in the next calendar
month, in which case such Interest Period shall end on the next preceding Business Day and (ii) any Interest Period pertaining to a Eurodollar Borrowing
that commences on the last Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the last calendar month
of such Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of the last calendar month of such Interest Period. For purposes hereof, the date of a Borrowing
initially shall be the date on which such Borrowing is made and, in the case of a Revolving Borrowing, thereafter shall be the effective date of the most
recent conversion or continuation of such Borrowing.

“Investment” means, as applied to any Person, any direct or indirect purchase or other acquisition by such Person of stock or other securities of any
other Person, or any direct or indirect loan, advance or capital contribution by such Person to any other Person and any other item which would be
classified as an “investment” on a balance sheet of such Person prepared in accordance with GAAP, including without limitation any direct or indirect
contribution by such Person of property or assets to a joint venture, partnership or other business entity in which such Person retains an interest (it being
understood that a direct or indirect purchase or other acquisition by such Person of assets of any other Person (other than stock or other securities) shall not
constitute an “Investment” for purposes of this Agreement).
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“Issuing Bank” means each of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and any other bank acceptable to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, in its
capacity as an issuer of Letters of Credit hereunder, and its successors in such capacity as provided in Section 2.06(i). Each Issuing Bank may;, in its
discretion, arrange for one or more Letters of Credit to be issued by Affiliates of such Issuing Bank, in which case the term “Issuing Bank” shall include
any such Affiliate with respect to Letters of Credit issued by such Affiliate.

“JV Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary that is not a wholly owned Subsidiary and that is a joint venture with a third party unaffiliated with the
Borrower or any other Subsidiary.

“LC Disbursement” means a payment made by an Issuing Bank pursuant to a Letter of Credit.

“LC Exposure” means, at any time, the sum of (a) the aggregate undrawn amount of all outstanding Letters of Credit at such time plus (b) the
aggregate amount of all LC Disbursements that have not yet been reimbursed by or on behalf of the Borrower at such time. The LC Exposure of any
Lender at any time shall be its Applicable Percentage of the total LC Exposure at such time.

“Lenders” means the Persons listed on Schedule 2.01 and any other Person that shall have become a Lender hereunder pursuant to Section 2.20 or
pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption, other than any such Person that ceases to be a party hereto pursuant to an Assignment and Assumption. Unless
the context otherwise requires, the term “Lenders” includes the Swingline Lender.

“Letter of Credit” means any letter of credit issued, or deemed to be issued, pursuant to this Agreement.

“LIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowing for any Interest Period, the rate appearing on Reuters Screen LIBORO01 Page (or on
any successor or substitute page of such Service, or any successor to or substitute for such Service, providing rate quotations comparable to those currently
provided on such page of such Service, as determined by the Administrative Agent from time to time for purposes of providing quotations of interest rates
applicable to dollar deposits in the London interbank market) at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, two Business Days prior to the commencement of
such Interest Period, as the rate for dollar deposits with a maturity comparable to such Interest Period. In the event that such rate is not available at such
time for any reason, then the “LIBO Rate” with respect to such Eurodollar Borrowing for such Interest Period shall be the rate at which dollar deposits of
$3,000,000 and for a maturity comparable to such Interest Period are offered by the principal London office of the Administrative Agent in immediately
available funds in the London interbank market at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, two Business Days prior to the commencement of such Interest
Period.

“Lien” means any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, security interest, hypothecation, assignment, deposit arrangement, encumbrance, lien (statutory or
other), or preference, priority, or other security agreement or preferential arrangement, charge or encumbrance of any kind or nature whatsoever (including,
without limitation, any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any financing lease having substantially the same economic effect as any of the
foregoing, and the filing of any financing statement under the UCC or comparable law of any jurisdiction to evidence any of the foregoing).

“Loans” means the loans made by the Lenders to the Borrower pursuant to this Agreement.
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“Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (a) the business, assets, operations, or financial condition of the Borrower and the
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (b) the ability of the Borrower to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or (c) the rights of or benefits available
to the Lenders under this Agreement and the other Credit Documents.

“Material Debt” means Debt (other than the Loans and the Letters of Credit), or obligations in respect of one or more Hedging Agreements, of any
one or more of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries in an aggregate principal amount exceeding $10,000,000. For purposes of determining Material Debt, the
“principal amount” of the obligations of the Borrower or any Subsidiary in respect of any Hedging Agreement at any time shall be the maximum aggregate
amount (giving effect to any netting agreements) that the Borrower or such Subsidiary would be required to pay if such Hedging Agreement were
terminated at such time.

“Material Project” means, collectively, the following projects: (i) the Thomas Corners natural gas storage expansion projects located in Steuben
County, New York, (ii) the US Salt—LPG storage expansion project located in Watkins Glen, New York, (iii) the US Salt—natural gas storage expansion
project located in Watkins Glen, New York and (iv) the Marc I Hub Line and North-South project located in the Marcellus Shale.

“Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Amount” has the meaning specified in the definition of “Consolidated EBITDA”.

“Material Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary (i) which, as of the most recent fiscal quarter of the Borrower for the period of four consecutive fiscal
quarters then ended, contributes greater than three percent (3%) of the Borrower’s Consolidated EBITDA for such period or (ii) the consolidated total
assets of which as of the end of such fiscal quarter were greater than three percent (3%) of the Borrower’s Consolidated Total Assets as of such date;
provided that, if at any time the aggregate amount of the Consolidated EBITDA contributed by, or consolidated total assets of, all Subsidiaries that are not
Material Subsidiaries exceeds five percent (5%) of the Borrower’s Consolidated EBITDA for any such period or five percent (5%) of the Borrower’s
Consolidated Total Assets as of the end of any such fiscal quarter, the Borrower (or, in the event the Borrower has failed to do so within ten days, the
Administrative Agent) shall designate sufficient Subsidiaries as “Material Subsidiaries” to eliminate such excess, and such designated Subsidiaries shall for
all purposes of this Agreement constitute Material Subsidiaries.

“Maturity Date” means November 22, 2013.

“Midstream Business” means the business of storage, processing, marketing and/or transmission of gas, oil or products thereof, including, without
limitation, owning and operating pipelines, storage facilities, processing plants and facilities and gathering systems, and other assets related thereto.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

“Mortgage” means each of those certain mortgages and deeds of trust entered into by the Credit Parties pursuant hereto or in connection herewith, in
each case as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Mortgage and Vehicle Title Requirement” means the requirement that the Credit Parties shall have granted to the Administrative Agent a perfected
Lien on (a) at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the aggregate book value of all Fee Owned Real Property, as determined by the Administrative Agent in
its reasonable discretion and (b) at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the aggregate book value of all motor vehicles, as determined by the Administrative
Agent in its reasonable discretion.
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“Multiemployer Plan” means a multiemployer plan as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA.

“Obligations” means all Loans, LC Disbursements, advances, debts, liabilities, obligations, covenants and duties owing by the Borrower or any
Subsidiary Guarantor to the Administrative Agent, any Lender, any Issuing Bank, any Affiliate of the Administrative Agent or any Lender, any Issuing
Bank, or any indemnified Person hereunder, of any kind or nature, present or future, arising under this Agreement, the Subsidiary Guaranty, any Collateral
Document, any Hedging Agreement (to the extent such Hedging Agreement is with a Lender or its Affiliate), any Banking Services Agreement (to the
extent such Banking Services Agreement is with a Lender or its Affiliate), or any other Credit Document, whether or not evidenced by any note, Guaranty
or other instrument, whether or not for the payment of money, whether arising by reason of an extension of credit, loan, Guaranty, indemnification, or in
any other manner, whether direct or indirect (including those acquired by assignment), absolute or contingent, due or to become due, now existing or
hereafter arising and however acquired. The term includes, without limitation, all interest, charges, expenses, fees, reasonable attorneys’ fees and
disbursements, reasonable paralegals’ fees (in each case whether or not allowed), and any other sum chargeable to the Borrower or any Subsidiary
Guarantor under this Agreement or any other Credit Document.

“Organic Documents” means, relative to any Credit Party, its partnership agreement, limited liability company or operating agreement, bylaws,
certificate or articles of partnership, certificate or articles of formation, certificate or articles of incorporation and other like documents, and all shareholder
agreements, voting trusts and similar arrangements applicable to any of its authorized shares of Capital Stock or other equity interests.

“Other Taxes” means any and all present or future stamp or documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies (other
than Excluded Taxes) arising from any payment made hereunder or from the execution, delivery or enforcement of, or otherwise with respect to, this
Agreement.

“parent” has the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “subsidiary”.
“Participant” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.04.

“Partnership Agreement” means the Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Borrower, dated as of January 7, 2004, as
amended prior to the Effective Date pursuant to Amendment No. 1 thereto dated as of February 9, 2004, Amendment No. 2 thereto dated as of January 21,
2005 and Amendment No. 3 thereto dated as of August 9, 2005.

“PBGC” means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation referred to and defined in ERISA and any successor entity performing similar functions.

“Permitted Acquisition” means an acquisition (or series of related acquisitions) by the Borrower or any Subsidiary Guarantor of all or any part of the
assets of another Person (such assets being referred to herein as the “Target Assets”) or of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Capital Stock of another
Person (such Person, together with any and all Subsidiaries of such Person, being referred to herein as the “Target”) in each case made in compliance with
all of the following terms and conditions:
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(1) the Target is in, or the Target Assets are employed in, the same line of business as the Borrower or the Subsidiary Guarantor, as applicable,
or in any Midstream Business;

(2) in the case of an acquisition of the Target’s Capital Stock, the Target is (or, immediately after giving effect to such acquisition, will be) a
Controlled Subsidiary of the Borrower (or, in the case of an acquisition of Capital Stock in the form of a merger, (a) the Target is merged with and
into the Borrower or a Controlled Subsidiary, with the Borrower or such Controlled Subsidiary, as the case may be, being the surviving entity, or
(b) the Target is merged with and into a Controlled Subsidiary with the Target being the surviving entity, provided that such surviving entity qualifies
as a Controlled Subsidiary);

(3) no Default or Event of Default exists at the time of the acquisition or would result therefrom;

(4) at the time of and immediately after giving effect (including pro forma effect) to such acquisition, the Borrower shall be in compliance with
the covenants set forth in Section 6.12;

(5) within a reasonable time prior to any such acquisition involving consideration in excess of $50,000,000, the Administrative Agent (and any
Lender, upon request) shall have received a complete copy of the executed purchase agreement (or, in the event that the purchase agreement is not
being executed until closing, then a substantially complete unexecuted version of the purchase agreement, with the complete copy of the executed
purchase agreement to follow promptly upon closing of such acquisition) for the applicable Target or Target Assets, a breakdown of the purchase
price for such acquisition, a detailed schedule of assets being acquired and values reasonably assigned to such assets at the time of such acquisition,
the anticipated amount to be borrowed under the General Partnership Commitments and such other information related to such acquisition as the
Administrative Agent shall reasonably request;

(6) within 90 days (or such later date as is agreed to by the Administrative Agent) after the consummation of such acquisition, the
Administrative Agent shall (i) if and only to the extent required by Section 5.13, have security interests in, and perfected Liens on, the assets of the
Target or the Target Assets, as applicable, (ii) have received revised schedules and exhibits to the applicable Collateral Documents reflecting the
location of the new Collateral; and (iii) in the case of an acquisition of Capital Stock, if the Target qualifies as a Subsidiary Guarantor, the
Administrative Agent shall receive a Guaranty from the Target in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, pursuant
to which such Target guarantees, in favor of the Administrative Agent, the payment and performance of all Obligations;

(7) the Borrower shall have paid all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Administrative Agent and its counsel in connection with
such acquisition, including, without limitation, all such costs and expenses incurred to satisfy the conditions set forth in subpart 6 above; and

(8) the Administrative Agent shall have received such other assurances and documentation as the Administrative Agent may reasonably
request from time to time in connection with the acquisition and the conditions set forth above.

“Permitted Debt” means:
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(1) Debt under this Agreement (including, Guaranties of Debt under this Agreement) and Debt under the Existing Credit Agreement on or prior
to the Effective Date;

(2) Permitted Junior Debt and Guaranties of Permitted Junior Debt;
(3) Debt of any Credit Party to any other Credit Party;

(4) Debt of the type described in clause (i) of the definition “Debt,” provided such Debt is incurred in connection with interest rate protection
agreements (including, Hedging Agreements) entered into for bona fide hedging purposes and not for speculative purposes;

(5) Other Debt in existence on the Effective Date and set forth on Schedule 6.01 hereto and refinancings or renewals thereof; provided that any
such refinancing Debt is of the same type, of the same tenor, and in an aggregate principal amount not greater than the aggregate principal amount of
the Debt being renewed or refinanced, plus the amount of any premiums required to be paid thereon and reasonable fees and expenses associated
therewith;

(6) Guaranties of Debt otherwise permitted under this definition;
(7) Debt arising in connection with endorsement of instruments for deposit in the ordinary course of business;

(8) Debt arising from the honoring by a bank or other financial institution of a check, draft or similar instrument inadvertently (except in the
case of daylight overdrafts) drawn against insufficient funds in the ordinary course of business; provided, however, that such Indebtedness is
extinguished within five Business Days of incurrence;

(9) Other Debt, provided that the aggregate outstanding principal amount of such Debt (with respect to all Credit Parties) does not exceed
$50,000,000 at any time;

(10) Other Debt approved in advance by the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders in writing; and
(11) Debt secured by Liens permitted under clause (12) of the definition of “Permitted Liens”.

“Permitted Junior Debt” means (1) (i) the Senior Unsecured Notes so long as the Debt thereunder is incurred on terms and conditions satisfactory to

the Administrative Agent and (ii) other Debt which is issued on terms and conditions substantially similar to the terms and conditions applicable to the
Senior Unsecured Notes and the indenture entered into in connection therewith (it being agreed that changes in the rate, tenor or maturity (other than
changes in maturity which would provide for or cause such Debt to mature within six months after the Effective Date) shall not cause such Debt to not be
on substantially similar terms) and (2) the aggregate Debt of the Borrower and the Borrower’s Subsidiaries, which is either unsecured Debt, or second Lien
Debt that is subordinated to the Obligations pursuant to the terms of a Subordination Agreement. Permitted Junior Debt may be incurred only so long as
each of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) at the time of the incurrence of such Debt (a) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing (or would result from the incurrence of such Debt), and (b) the Total Leverage Ratio is less than the maximum Total Leverage Ratio permitted
under Section 6.12(a) at such time, calculated on a pro forma basis; (ii) such Debt shall not mature, and no installments of principal shall be due and
payable on such Debt, prior to the Termination Date; and (iii) other than in connection with the Senior Unsecured Notes and the other Debt described in
clause (1)(ii) of the preceding sentence, such Debt shall not be incurred upon covenants more restrictive than those set forth in this Agreement.
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“Permitted Junior Debt Documents” means any document, agreement or instrument evidencing any Permitted Junior Debt or entered into in
connection with any Permitted Junior Debt.

“Permitted Liens” means any of the following:

(1) Liens for taxes, assessments or governmental charges not delinquent or being contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings and
for which adequate reserves in accordance with GAAP are maintained on the books of the Borrower or relevant Subsidiary;

(2) Liens arising out of deposits in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, old age pensions or other social security
or retirement benefits legislation;

(3) deposits or pledges to secure bids, tenders, contracts (other than contracts for the payment of money), leases, statutory obligations, surety
and appeal bonds, and other obligations of like nature arising in the ordinary course of the business of the Borrower or relevant Subsidiary;

(4) Liens imposed by law, such as mechanics’, workers’, materialmen’s, carriers’ or other like Liens (excluding, however, any statutory or
other Lien in favor of a landlord under a written or oral lease) arising in the ordinary course of the Borrower’s business which secure the payment of
obligations which are not past due or which are being diligently contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves
in accordance with GAAP are maintained on the books of the Borrower or the relevant Subsidiary;

(5) rights of way, zoning restrictions, easements and similar encumbrances affecting the Borrower’s real property which do not materially
interfere with the use of such property;

(6) Liens in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations and any other Liens created by the Credit
Documents;

(7) bankers’ Liens, rights of setoff and other similar Liens existing solely with respect to cash and cash equivalents on deposit in one or more
accounts maintained by the Borrower or any Subsidiary, in each case granted in the ordinary course of business in favor of the bank or banks with
which such accounts are maintained, securing amounts owing to such bank with respect to cash management and operating account arrangements,
including those involving pooled accounts and netting arrangements;

(8) Liens arising out of conditional sale, title retention, consignment or similar arrangements for the sale of goods entered into by the Company
or any Subsidiary in the ordinary course of business in accordance with past practice;

(9) Liens arising out of judgments, attachments or awards not resulting in a Default and in respect of which the Borrower or such Subsidiary
shall in good faith be prosecuting an appeal or proceedings for review in respect of which there shall be secured a subsisting stay of execution
pending such appeal or proceedings;
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(10) Liens existing on the Effective Date and listed on Schedule 6.02 and any renewals or extensions thereof, provided that the property and
Debt covered thereby is not increased;

(11) second Liens securing Permitted Junior Debt that is subordinated to the Obligations pursuant to the terms of a Subordination Agreement;
and

(12) purchase money security interests for the purchase of equipment to be used in the Borrower’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ business,
encumbering only the equipment so purchased, and which secures only the purchase-money Debt incurred to acquire the equipment so purchased.

“Person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, trust, joint venture, association, company, partnership, Governmental
Authority or other entity.

“PILOT Program” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.03(a).

“Plan” means any employee pension benefit plan (other than a Multiemployer Plan) subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of
the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, and in respect of which the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate is (or, if such plan were terminated, would under
Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an “employer” as defined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

“Pledge Agreements” means the pledge agreements, share mortgages, charges and comparable instruments and documents, including the Pledge and
Security Agreement and the Trademark Security Agreement from time to time executed pursuant to the terms hereof in favor of the Administrative Agent
for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Pledge and Security Agreement” means that certain Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of the Effective Date, by and between the Credit
Parties and the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, or
otherwise modified from time to time.

“Pledge Subsidiary” means each Domestic Subsidiary and First Tier Foreign Subsidiary.

“Prime Rate” means the rate of interest per annum publicly announced from time to time by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as its prime rate in effect at
its principal office; each change in the Prime Rate shall be effective from and including the date such change is publicly announced as being effective.

“Ratings” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.10(b).
“Register” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 9.04.

“Related Parties” means, with respect to any specified Person, such Person’s Affiliates and the respective directors, officers, employees, agents and
advisors of such Person and such Person’s Affiliates.

“Required Lenders” means, at any time, Lenders having Revolving Credit Exposures and unused Commitments representing more than 50% of the
sum of the total Revolving Credit Exposures and unused Commitments at such time.
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“Revolving Credit Exposure” means, with respect to any Lender at any time, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such Lender’s
Revolving Loans and its LC Exposure and Swingline Exposure at such time.

“Revolving L.oan” means a Loan made pursuant to Sections 2.01 and 2.03 and which is either a General Partnership Loan or a Working Capital Loan.

“Risk Management Policy” means that certain Trading and Risk Management Policy dated October 1, 2002 of Inergy Propane and its Subsidiaries, as
the same may be amended from time to time and adopted by the Board of Directors of Inergy Propane; provided that a copy of each amendment shall be
delivered to the Administrative Agent prior to the effective date thereof.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.

“Senior Secured Funded Debt” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries at any time, the total amount of secured Debt
at such time, whether such Debt is matured, unmatured, absolute, contingent or otherwise minus the aggregate outstanding principal amount at such time of
such secured Debt which is Permitted Junior Debt.

“Senior Secured Leverage Ratio” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries at any time, the ratio of (i) Senior Secured
Funded Debt (other than Debt under clause (i) of the definition of “Debt”), at such time, to (ii) Consolidated EBITDA for the four fiscal quarters most
recently ended. For purposes of calculating the Senior Secured Leverage Ratio of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries under Section 6.12(b), the
Senior Secured Funded Debt shall not include any outstanding Working Capital Loans, Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans if the Borrower is in
compliance with Section 2.11(b)(ii).

“Senior Unsecured Notes” means (i) the $425,000,000 of 6.875% Senior Notes of the Borrower and Inergy Finance Corp. (“Inergy Finance”) due
December 15, 2014 issued pursuant to that certain Indenture dated as of December 22, 2004 between the Borrower and Inergy Finance, as issuers, certain
subsidiaries of the Borrower, as guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank”), as trustee, (ii) the $200,000,000 of 8.25% Senior Notes of
the Borrower and Inergy Finance due March 1, 2016 issued on January 11, 2006, (iii) the $200,000,000 of 8.25% Senior Notes of the Borrower and Inergy
Finance due March 1, 2016 issued pursuant to that certain Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 24, 2008 between the Borrower and Inergy Finance, as
issuers, certain subsidiaries of the Borrower, as guarantors, and U.S. Bank, as trustee, and (iv) the $225,000,000 of 8.75% Senior Notes of the Borrower
and Inergy Finance due March 1, 2015 issued pursuant to that certain Indenture dated as of February 2, 2009 between the Borrower and Inergy Finance, as
issuers, certain subsidiaries of the Borrower, as guarantors, and U.S. Bank, as trustee, in each case including any notes issued from time to time in
substitution, replacement, supplement or refinancing thereof.

“Solvent” means, with respect to any Person, that such Person (a) has capital sufficient to carry on its business and transactions and all business and
transactions in which it is about to engage and is able to pay its debts as they mature, (b) owns property having a value, both at fair valuation and at present
fair saleable value, greater than the amount required to pay its probable liabilities (including contingencies), and (c) does not believe that it will incur debts
or liabilities beyond its ability to pay such debts or liabilities as they mature.

“Statutory Reserve Rate” means a fraction (expressed as a decimal), the numerator of which is the number one and the denominator of which is the
number one minus the aggregate of the
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maximum reserve percentages (including any marginal, special, emergency or supplemental reserves) expressed as a decimal established by the Board to
which the Administrative Agent is subject, with respect to the Adjusted LIBO Rate, for eurocurrency funding (currently referred to as “Eurocurrency
Liabilities” in Regulation D of the Board). Such reserve percentages shall include those imposed pursuant to such Regulation D. Eurodollar Loans shall be
deemed to constitute eurocurrency funding and to be subject to such reserve requirements without benefit of or credit for proration, exemptions or offsets
that may be available from time to time to any Lender under such Regulation D or any comparable regulation. The Statutory Reserve Rate shall be adjusted
automatically on and as of the effective date of any change in any reserve percentage.

“Subordination Agreement” means a subordination agreement between the Administrative Agent (on behalf of itself and the Lenders) and the holders
of any second Lien Permitted Junior Debt, in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders, pursuant to which
such second Lien Permitted Junior Debt is subordinated to the Obligations, with only such modifications as are approved by the Administrative Agent and
the Required Lenders.

“subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person (the “parent”) at any date, any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association or other
entity the accounts of which would be Consolidated with those of the parent in the parent’s Consolidated financial statements if such financial statements
were prepared in accordance with GAAP as of such date, as well as any other corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association or other entity
(a) of which securities or other ownership interests representing more than 50% of the equity or more than 50% of the ordinary voting power or, in the case
of a partnership, more than 50% of the general partnership interests are, as of such date, owned, controlled or held, or (b) that is, as of such date, otherwise
Controlled, by the parent or one or more subsidiaries of the parent or by the parent and one or more subsidiaries of the parent.

“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Borrower.

“Subsidiary Guarantor” means each Subsidiary (other than an Excluded Subsidiary). The Subsidiary Guarantors on the Effective Date are identified
as such in Schedule 3.01 hereto.

“Subsidiary Guaranty” means that certain Guaranty dated as of the Effective Date (and any and all supplements thereto) executed by each Subsidiary
Guarantor, and in the case of any Guaranty by a Foreign Subsidiary, any other Guaranty agreements as are requested by the Administrative Agent and its
counsel, in each case as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

“Swingline Exposure” means, at any time, the aggregate principal amount of all Swingline Loans outstanding at such time. The Swingline Exposure
of any Lender at any time shall be its Applicable Percentage of the total Swingline Exposure at such time.

“Swingline Lender” means JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as lender of Swingline Loans hereunder.

«

Swingline L.oan” means a Loan made pursuant to Section 2.05.

I

Target” has the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “Permitted Acquisition”.

I

‘Target Assets” has the meaning assigned to such term in the definition of “Permitted Acquisition”.
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“Taxes” means any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, deductions, charges or withholdings imposed by any Governmental
Authority.

“Total Funded Debt” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries at any time, the total amount of Debt at such time,
whether such Debt is matured, unmatured, absolute, contingent or otherwise.

“Total Leverage Ratio” means, with respect to the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries at any time, the ratio of (i) Total Funded Debt (other
than Debt under clause (i) of the definition of “Debt”), at such time, to (ii) Consolidated EBITDA for the four fiscal quarters most recently ended. For
purposes of calculating the Total Leverage Ratio of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries under Section 6.12(a), Total Funded Debt shall not
include any outstanding Working Capital Loans, Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans if the Borrower is in compliance with Section 2.11(b)(ii).

“Trademark Security Agreement” means that certain Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of the Effective Date, by and between the Credit
Parties and the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, or
otherwise modified from time to time.

“Transactions” means the execution, delivery and performance by the Credit Parties of this Agreement and the other Credit Documents, the
borrowing of Loans, the use of the proceeds thereof, the issuance of Letters of Credit hereunder, and all other transactions contemplated hereby or by any
of the other Credit Documents.

“Type”, when used in reference to any Loan or Borrowing, refers to whether the rate of interest on such Loan, or on the Loans comprising such
Borrowing, is determined by reference to the Adjusted LIBO Rate or the Alternate Base Rate.

“UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of New York, as amended or modified from time to time.
“United States” means the United States of America.

“Withdrawal Liability” means liability to a Multiemployer Plan as a result of a complete or partial withdrawal from such Multiemployer Plan, as
such terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA.

“Working Capital Commitment” means, with respect to each Lender, the commitment of such Lender to make Working Capital Loans and to acquire
participations in Letters of Credit and Swingline Loans hereunder. On the Effective Date, the aggregate amount of the Working Capital Commitments is
Seventy Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000).

“Working Capital Credit Exposure” means, with respect to any Lender at any time, the sum of the outstanding principal amount of such Lender’s
Working Capital Loans and its LC Exposure and Swingline Exposure at such time.

“Working Capital Loans” means Revolving Loans made pursuant to Section 2.01.02.

SECTION 1.02. Classification of Loans and Borrowings. For purposes of this Agreement, Loans may be classified and referred to by Class (e.g., a

“Revolving Loan”) or by Type (e.g., a “Eurodollar Loan”) or by Class and Type (e.g., a “Eurodollar Revolving Loan”). Borrowings also may be classified and
referred to by Class (e.g., a “Revolving Borrowing”) or by Type (e.g., a “Eurodollar Borrowing”) or by Class and Type (e.g., a “Eurodollar Revolving
Borrowing”).
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SECTION 1.03. Terms Generally. The definitions of terms herein shall apply equally to the singular and plural forms of the terms defined. Whenever the
context may require, any pronoun shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine and neuter forms. The words “include”, “includes” and “including” shall
be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without limitation”. The word “will” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect as the word “shall”. Unless
the context requires otherwise (a) any definition of or reference to any agreement, instrument or other document herein shall be construed as referring to such
agreement, instrument or other document as from time to time amended, supplemented or otherwise modified (subject to any restrictions on such amendments,
supplements or modifications set forth herein), (b) any reference herein to any Person shall be construed to include such Person’s successors and assigns, (c) the
words “herein”, “hereof” and “hereunder”, and words of similar import, shall be construed to refer to this Agreement in its entirety and not to any particular
provision hereof, (d) all references herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules shall be construed to refer to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and
Schedules to, this Agreement and (e) the words “asset” and “property” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect and to refer to any and all tangible
and intangible assets and properties, including cash, securities, accounts and contract rights.

SECTION 1.04. Accounting Terms; GAAP. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms of an accounting or financial nature shall be construed
in accordance with GAAP, as in effect from time to time; provided that, if the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent that the Borrower requests an
amendment to any provision hereof to eliminate the effect of any change occurring after the date hereof in GAAP or in the application thereof on the operation of
such provision (or if the Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower that the Required Lenders request an amendment to any provision hereof for such purpose),
regardless of whether any such notice is given before or after such change in GAAP or in the application thereof, then such provision shall be interpreted on the
basis of GAAP as in effect and applied immediately before such change shall have become effective until such notice shall have been withdrawn or such
provision amended in accordance herewith. Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, all terms of an accounting or financial nature used herein shall
be construed, and all computations of amounts and ratios referred to herein shall be made, without giving effect to any election under Accounting Standards
Codification 825-10-25 (previously referred to as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 159) (or any other Accounting Standards Codification or
Financial Accounting Standard having a similar result or effect) to value any Indebtedness or other liabilities of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries at “fair
value”, as defined therein.

ARTICLE II
The Credits

SECTION 2.01. Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and as further described in Sections 2.01.01 and 2.01.02 below, each
Lender agrees to make Revolving Loans to the Borrower from time to time during the Availability Period in an aggregate principal amount that will not result in
(a) such Lender’s Revolving Credit Exposure exceeding such Lender’s Commitment and (b) the sum of the total Revolving Credit Exposures exceeding the
Aggregate Commitment. Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Borrower may borrow, prepay and reborrow
Revolving Loans.

SECTION 2.01.01 General Partnership Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, each Lender agrees to make
General Partnership Loans to the Borrower from
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time to time during the Availability Period in an aggregate principal amount that will not result in (a) such Lender’s General Partnership Credit
Exposure exceeding such Lender’s General Partnership Commitment and (b) the sum of the total General Partnership Credit Exposures exceeding
the total General Partnership Commitments. Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Borrower may
borrow, prepay and reborrow General Partnership Loans.

SECTION 2.01.02 Working Capital Commitments. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, each Lender agrees to make Working
Capital Loans to the Borrower from time to time during the Availability Period in an aggregate principal amount that will not result in (a) such
Lender’s Working Capital Credit Exposure exceeding such Lender’s Working Capital Commitment and (b) the sum of the total Working Capital
Credit Exposures exceeding the total Working Capital Commitments. Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein, the Borrower may borrow, prepay and reborrow Working Capital Loans.

SECTION 2.02. Loans and Borrowings. (a) Each Revolving Loan shall be made as part of a Borrowing consisting of Revolving Loans made by the
applicable Lenders ratably in accordance with their respective General Partnership Commitment or Working Capital Commitment (as applicable). The failure of
any Lender to make any Loan required to be made by it shall not relieve any other Lender of its obligations hereunder; provided that the Commitments of the
Lenders are several and no Lender shall be responsible for any other Lender’s failure to make Loans as required.

(b) Subject to Section 2.14, each Revolving Borrowing shall be comprised entirely of ABR Loans or Eurodollar Loans as the Borrower may
request in accordance herewith. Each Swingline Loan shall be an ABR Loan. Each Lender at its option may make any Eurodollar Loan by causing
any domestic or foreign branch or Affiliate of such Lender to make such Loan; provided that any exercise of such option shall not affect the
obligation of the Borrower to repay such Loan in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(c) At the commencement of each Interest Period for any Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, such Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount
that is an integral multiple of $1,000,000 and not less than $3,000,000. At the time that each ABR Revolving Borrowing is made, such Borrowing
shall be in an aggregate amount that is an integral multiple of $500,000 and not less than $3,000,000; provided that an ABR Revolving Borrowing
may be in an aggregate amount that is equal to the entire unused balance of the Aggregate Commitment or that is required to finance the
reimbursement of an LC Disbursement as contemplated by Section 2.06(e). Each Swingline Loan shall be in an amount that is an integral multiple of
$100,000 and not less than $100,000. Borrowings of more than one Type and Class may be outstanding at the same time; provided that there shall
not at any time be more than a total of eight (8) Eurodollar Revolving Borrowings outstanding in the aggregate.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Borrower shall not be entitled to request, or to elect to convert or continue, any
Borrowing if the Interest Period requested with respect thereto would end after the Maturity Date.

SECTION 2.03. Requests for Revolving Borrowings. To request a Revolving Borrowing, the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of such
request by telephone (a) in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing, not later than 11:00 a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, three Business Days before the date of the
proposed Borrowing or (b) in the case of an ABR Borrowing, not later than 10:00 a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the date of the proposed Borrowing. Each such
telephonic Borrowing Request shall be irrevocable and shall be confirmed promptly by hand delivery or telecopy to the Administrative Agent of a written
Borrowing Request
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in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and signed by the Borrower. Each such telephonic and written Borrowing Request shall specify the following
information in compliance with Section 2.02:

(i) the aggregate amount of the requested Borrowing;

(ii) the date of such Borrowing, which shall be a Business Day;

(iii) whether such Borrowing is composed of General Partnership Loans or Working Capital Loans;
(iv) whether such Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing or a Eurodollar Borrowing;

(v) in the case of a Eurodollar Borrowing, the initial Interest Period to be applicable thereto, which shall be a period contemplated by the
definition of the term “Interest Period”; and

(vi) the location and number of the Borrower’s account to which funds are to be disbursed, which shall comply with the requirements of
Section 2.07.

If no election as to the Type of Revolving Borrowing is specified, then the requested Revolving Borrowing shall be an ABR Borrowing. If no Interest
Period is specified with respect to any requested Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, then the Borrower shall be deemed to have selected an Interest Period of
one month’s duration. Promptly following receipt of a Borrowing Request in accordance with this Section, the Administrative Agent shall advise each
Lender of the details thereof and of the amount of such Lender’s Loan to be made as part of the requested Borrowing.

SECTION 2.04. Intentionally Omitted.

SECTION 2.05. Swingline Loans. (a) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Swingline Lender agrees to make Swingline Loans to the
Borrower from time to time during the Availability Period, in an aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding that will not result in (i) the aggregate
principal amount of outstanding Swingline Loans exceeding $10,000,000, (ii) the sum of the total Working Capital Credit Exposures exceeding the total Working
Capital Commitments or (iii) the sum of the total Revolving Credit Exposures exceeding the Aggregate Commitment; provided that the Swingline Lender shall
not be required to make a Swingline Loan to refinance an outstanding Swingline Loan. Within the foregoing limits and subject to the terms and conditions set
forth herein, the Borrower may borrow, prepay and reborrow Swingline Loans.

(b) To request a Swingline Loan, the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of such request by telephone (confirmed by telecopy), not
later than 3:00 p.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the day of a proposed Swingline Loan. Each such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the
requested date (which shall be a Business Day and which may be the same day as the request is submitted by the Borrower) and amount of the
requested Swingline Loan. The Administrative Agent will promptly advise the Swingline Lender of any such notice received from the Borrower. The
Swingline Lender shall make each Swingline Loan available to the Borrower by means of a credit to the general deposit account of the Borrower
with the Swingline Lender (or, in the case of a Swingline Loan made to finance the reimbursement of an LC Disbursement as provided in
Section 2.06(e), by remittance to the relevant Issuing Bank), or such other account as is designated by the Borrower in the applicable Borrowing
Request, by 4:00 p.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the requested date of such Swingline Loan.
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(c) The Swingline Lender may by written notice given to the Administrative Agent not later than 12:00 noon, Chicago, Illinois time, on any
Business Day require the Lenders to acquire participations on such Business Day in all or a portion of the Swingline Loans outstanding. Such notice
shall specify the aggregate amount of Swingline Loans in which Lenders will participate. Promptly upon receipt of such notice, the Administrative
Agent will give notice thereof to each Lender, specifying in such notice such Lender’s Applicable Percentage (with respect to the Working Capital
Commitments) of such Swingline Loan or Loans. Each Lender hereby absolutely and unconditionally agrees, upon receipt of notice as provided
above, to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Swingline Lender, such Lender’s Applicable Percentage (with respect to the
Working Capital Commitments) of such Swingline Loan or Loans. Each Lender acknowledges and agrees that its obligation to acquire participations
in Swingline Loans pursuant to this paragraph is absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever, including the
occurrence and continuance of a Default or reduction or termination of the Commitments, and that each such payment shall be made without any
offset, abatement, withholding or reduction whatsoever. Each Lender shall comply with its obligation under this paragraph by wire transfer of
immediately available funds, in the same manner as provided in Section 2.07 with respect to Loans made by such Lender (and Section 2.07 shall
apply, mutatis mutandis, to the payment obligations of the Lenders), and the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to the Swingline Lender the
amounts so received by it from the Lenders. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower of any participations in any Swingline Loan
acquired pursuant to this paragraph, and thereafter payments in respect of such Swingline Loan shall be made to the Administrative Agent and not to
the Swingline Lender. Any amounts received by the Swingline Lender from the Borrower (or other party on behalf of the Borrower) in respect of a
Swingline Loan after receipt by the Swingline Lender of the proceeds of a sale of participations therein shall be promptly remitted to the
Administrative Agent; any such amounts received by the Administrative Agent shall be promptly remitted by the Administrative Agent to the
Lenders that shall have made their payments pursuant to this paragraph and to the Swingline Lender, as their interests may appear; provided that any
such payment so remitted shall be repaid to the Swingline Lender or to the Administrative Agent, as applicable, if and to the extent such payment is
required to be refunded to the Borrower for any reason. The purchase of participations in a Swingline Loan pursuant to this paragraph shall not
relieve the Borrower of any default in the payment thereof.

SECTION 2.06. Letters of Credit. (a) General. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein (including without limitation Section 5.08), the
Borrower may request the issuance of Letters of Credit for its own account or the account of a Subsidiary Guarantor, in a form reasonably acceptable to the
Administrative Agent and the relevant Issuing Bank, at any time and from time to time during the Availability Period. In the event of any inconsistency between
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the terms and conditions of any form of letter of credit application or other agreement submitted by the Borrower
to, or entered into by the Borrower with, the relevant Issuing Bank relating to any Letter of Credit, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.
Schedule 2.06 contains a schedule of the Existing Letters of Credit issued for the account of the Borrower or certain of its Subsidiaries prior to the Effective Date.
Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions contained in Sections 4.01 and 4.02, from and after the Effective Date, the Existing Letters of Credit shall be deemed
to be Letters of Credit issued pursuant to this Section 2.06. Upon the initial expiration of each Existing Letter of Credit, the Borrower shall terminate and cancel
each such Existing Letter of Credit and request a new Letter of Credit to be issued in replacement thereof.

(b) Notice of Issuance, Amendment, Renewal, Extension; Certain Conditions. To request the issuance of a Letter of Credit (or the amendment,
renewal or extension of an outstanding Letter of Credit), the Borrower shall hand deliver or telecopy to the relevant Issuing Bank and the Administrative

Agent (reasonably in advance of the requested date of issuance, amendment, renewal or extension) a notice requesting the issuance of a Letter of Credit, or
identifying the Letter of Credit to be amended, renewed or extended, and specifying the date of issuance, amendment, renewal or extension (which shall be

a Business Day), the date on which such Letter of Credit is to expire (which shall
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comply with paragraph (c) of this Section), the amount of such Letter of Credit, the name and address of the beneficiary thereof and such other information
as shall be necessary to prepare, amend, renew or extend such Letter of Credit. If requested by an Issuing Bank, the Borrower also shall submit a letter of
credit application on such Issuing Bank’s standard form in connection with any request for a Letter of Credit. A Letter of Credit shall be issued, amended,
renewed or extended only if (and upon issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of each Letter of Credit the Borrower shall be deemed to represent and
warrant that), after giving effect to such issuance, amendment, renewal or extension (i) the LC Exposure shall not exceed the total Working Capital
Commitments, (ii) the sum of the total Working Capital Credit Exposures shall not exceed the total Working Capital Commitments and (iii) the sum of the
total Revolving Credit Exposures shall not exceed the Aggregate Commitment.

(c) Expiration Date. Each Letter of Credit shall expire at or prior to the close of business on the earlier of (i) the date one year after the date of the
issuance of such Letter of Credit (or, in the case of any renewal or extension thereof, one year after such renewal or extension provided that such renewal or
extension does not extend beyond the date referenced in the following clause (ii)) and (ii) the date that is five Business Days prior to the Maturity Date;
provided that a Letter of Credit with a one-year tenor may provide for the automatic renewal thereof for additional one-year periods (which shall in no
event extend beyond the date referred to in the preceding clause (ii)).

(d) Participations. By the issuance of a Letter of Credit (or an amendment to a Letter of Credit increasing the amount thereof) and without any further
action on the part of any Issuing Bank or the Lenders, each Issuing Bank issuing such Letter of Credit hereby grants to each Lender, and each Lender
hereby acquires from such Issuing Bank, a participation in such Letter of Credit equal to such Lender’s Applicable Percentage of the aggregate amount
available to be drawn under such Letter of Credit. In consideration and in furtherance of the foregoing, each Lender hereby absolutely and unconditionally
agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the relevant Issuing Bank, such Lender’s Applicable Percentage of each LC Disbursement
made by such Issuing Bank and not reimbursed by the Borrower on the date due as provided in paragraph (e) of this Section, or of any reimbursement
payment required to be refunded to the Borrower for any reason. Each Lender acknowledges and agrees that its obligation to acquire participations
pursuant to this paragraph in respect of Letters of Credit is absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever, including
any amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit or the occurrence and continuance of a Default or reduction or termination of the
Commitments, and that each such payment shall be made without any offset, abatement, withholding or reduction whatsoever.

(e) Reimbursement. If an Issuing Bank shall make any LC Disbursement in respect of a Letter of Credit, the Borrower shall reimburse such LC
Disbursement by paying to the Administrative Agent an amount equal to such LC Disbursement not later than 12:00 noon, Chicago, Illinois time, on the
date that such LC Disbursement is made, if the Borrower shall have received notice of such LC Disbursement prior to 10:00 a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on
such date, or, if such notice has not been received by the Borrower prior to such time on such date, then not later than 12:00 noon, Chicago, Illinois time,
on (i) the Business Day that the Borrower receives such notice, if such notice is received prior to 10:00 a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the day of receipt, or
(ii) the Business Day immediately following the day that the Borrower receives such notice, if such notice is not received prior to such time on the day of
receipt; provided that the Borrower may, subject to the conditions to borrowing set forth herein, request in accordance with Section 2.03 or 2.05 that such
payment be financed with an ABR Revolving Borrowing composed of Working Capital Loans or a Swingline Loan in an equivalent amount and, to the
extent so financed, the Borrower’s obligation to make such payment shall be discharged and replaced by the resulting ABR Revolving Borrowing or
Swingline Loan. If the Borrower fails to make such payment when due, the Administrative Agent shall notify each Lender of the applicable LC
Disbursement,

28



the payment then due from the Borrower in respect thereof and such Lender’s Applicable Percentage thereof. Promptly following receipt of such notice,
each Lender shall pay to the Administrative Agent its Applicable Percentage of the payment then due from the Borrower, in the same manner as provided
in Section 2.07 with respect to Loans made by such Lender (and Section 2.07 shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the payment obligations of the Lenders), and
the Administrative Agent shall promptly pay to the relevant Issuing Bank the amounts so received by it from the Lenders. Promptly following receipt by
the Administrative Agent of any payment from the Borrower pursuant to this paragraph, the Administrative Agent shall distribute such payment to such
Issuing Bank or, to the extent that Lenders have made payments pursuant to this paragraph to reimburse such Issuing Bank, then to such Lenders and such
Issuing Bank as their interests may appear. Any payment made by a Lender pursuant to this paragraph to reimburse an Issuing Bank for any LC
Disbursement (other than the funding of ABR Revolving Loans or a Swingline Loan as contemplated above) shall not constitute a Loan and shall not
relieve the Borrower of its obligation to reimburse such LC Disbursement.

(f) Obligations Absolute. The Borrower’s obligation to reimburse LC Disbursements as provided in paragraph (e) of this Section shall be absolute,
unconditional and irrevocable, and shall be performed strictly in accordance with the terms of this Agreement under any and all circumstances whatsoever
and irrespective of (i) any lack of validity or enforceability of any Letter of Credit or this Agreement, or any term or provision therein, (ii) any draft or
other document presented under a Letter of Credit proving to be forged, fraudulent or invalid in any respect or any statement therein being untrue or
inaccurate in any respect, (iii) payment by an Issuing Bank under a Letter of Credit against presentation of a draft or other document that does not comply
with the terms of such Letter of Credit, or (iv) any other event or circumstance whatsoever, whether or not similar to any of the foregoing, that might, but
for the provisions of this Section, constitute a legal or equitable discharge of, or provide a right of setoff against, the Borrower’s obligations hereunder.
Neither the Administrative Agent, the Lenders nor any Issuing Bank, nor any of their Related Parties, shall have any liability or responsibility by reason of
or in connection with the issuance or transfer of any Letter of Credit or any payment or failure to make any payment thereunder (irrespective of any of the
circumstances referred to in the preceding sentence), or any error, omission, interruption, loss or delay in transmission or delivery of any draft, notice or
other communication under or relating to any Letter of Credit (including any document required to make a drawing thereunder), any error in interpretation
of technical terms or any consequence arising from causes beyond the control of any Issuing Bank; provided that the foregoing shall not be construed to
excuse an Issuing Bank from liability to the Borrower to the extent of any direct damages (as opposed to consequential damages, claims in respect of which
are hereby waived by the Borrower to the extent permitted by applicable law) suffered by the Borrower that are caused by such Issuing Bank’s failure to
exercise care when determining whether drafts and other documents presented under a Letter of Credit comply with the terms thereof. The parties hereto
expressly agree that, in the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of an Issuing Bank (as finally determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction), such Issuing Bank shall be deemed to have exercised care in each such determination. In furtherance of the foregoing and without limiting the
generality thereof, the parties agree that, with respect to documents presented which appear on their face to be in substantial compliance with the terms of a
Letter of Credit, each Issuing Bank may, in its sole discretion, either accept and make payment upon such documents without responsibility for further
investigation, regardless of any notice or information to the contrary, or refuse to accept and make payment upon such documents if such documents are not
in strict compliance with the terms of such Letter of Credit.

(g) Disbursement Procedures. Each Issuing Bank shall, promptly following its receipt thereof, examine all documents purporting to represent a
demand for payment under a Letter of Credit. Each Issuing Bank shall promptly notify the Administrative Agent and the Borrower by telephone (confirmed
by telecopy) of such demand for payment and whether such Issuing Bank has made or will make an LC Disbursement thereunder; provided that any failure
to give or delay in giving such notice shall not relieve the Borrower of its obligation to reimburse such Issuing Bank and the Lenders with respect to any
such LC Disbursement.
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(h) Interim Interest. If any Issuing Bank shall make any LC Disbursement, then, unless the Borrower shall reimburse such LC Disbursement in full
on the date such LC Disbursement is made, the unpaid amount thereof shall bear interest, for each day from and including the date such LC Disbursement
is made to but excluding the date that the Borrower reimburses such LC Disbursement, at the rate per annum then applicable to ABR Revolving Loans;
provided that, if the Borrower fails to reimburse such LC Disbursement when due pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section, then Section 2.13(d) shall
apply. Interest accrued pursuant to this paragraph shall be for the account of the relevant Issuing Bank, except that interest accrued on and after the date of
payment by any Lender pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section to reimburse an Issuing Bank shall be for the account of such Lender to the extent of such
payment.

(i) Replacement of the Issuing Bank. Each Issuing Bank may be replaced at any time by written agreement among the Borrower, the Administrative
Agent, the replaced Issuing Bank and the successor Issuing Bank. The Administrative Agent shall notify the Lenders of any such replacement of an Issuing
Bank. At the time any such replacement shall become effective, the Borrower shall pay all unpaid fees accrued for the account of the replaced Issuing Bank
pursuant to Section 2.12(b). From and after the effective date of any such replacement, (i) the successor Issuing Bank shall have all the rights and
obligations of an Issuing Bank under this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit to be issued thereafter and (ii) references herein to the term “Issuing
Bank” shall be deemed to refer to such successor or to any previous Issuing Bank, or to such successor and all previous Issuing Banks, as the context shall
require. After the replacement of an Issuing Bank hereunder, the replaced Issuing Bank shall remain a party hereto and shall continue to have all the rights
and obligations of an Issuing Bank under this Agreement with respect to Letters of Credit issued by it prior to such replacement, but shall not be required to
issue additional Letters of Credit.

(j) Cash Collateralization. If any Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, on the Business Day that the Borrower receives notice from the
Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders (or, if the maturity of the Loans has been accelerated, Lenders with LC Exposure representing greater than
50% of the total LC Exposure) demanding the deposit of cash collateral pursuant to this paragraph, the Borrower shall deposit in an account with the
Administrative Agent, in the name of the Administrative Agent and for the benefit of the Lenders, an amount in cash equal to the LC Exposure as of such
date plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon; provided that the obligation to deposit such cash collateral shall become effective immediately, and such
deposit shall become immediately due and payable, without demand or other notice of any kind, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default with respect
to the Borrower described in clause (h) or (i) of Article VII. Such deposit shall be held by the Administrative Agent as collateral for the payment and
performance of the Obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement. The Administrative Agent shall have exclusive dominion and control, including the
exclusive right of withdrawal, over such account. Other than any interest earned on the investment of such deposits, which investments shall be made at the
option and sole discretion of the Administrative Agent and at the Borrower’s risk and expense, such deposits shall not bear interest. Interest or profits, if
any, on such investments shall accumulate in such account. Moneys in such account shall be applied by the Administrative Agent to reimburse each Issuing
Bank for LC Disbursements for which it has not been reimbursed and, to the extent not so applied, shall be held for the satisfaction of the reimbursement
obligations of the Borrower for the LC Exposure at such time or, if the maturity of the Loans has been accelerated (but subject to the consent of Lenders
with LC Exposure representing greater than 50% of the total LC Exposure), be applied to satisfy other obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement. If
the Borrower is required to provide an amount of cash collateral hereunder as a result of the occurrence of an Event of Default, such amount (to the extent
not applied as aforesaid) shall be returned to the Borrower within three Business Days after all Events of Default have been cured or waived.
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(k) Issuing Bank Agreements. Each Issuing Bank agrees that, unless otherwise requested by the Administrative Agent, such Issuing Bank shall report
in writing to the Administrative Agent (i) on the first Business Day of each week, the daily activity (set forth by day) in respect of Letters of Credit during
the immediately preceding week, including all issuances, extensions, amendments and renewals, all expirations and cancellations and all disbursements and
reimbursements, (ii) on or prior to each Business Day on which such Issuing Bank expects to issue, amend, renew or extend any Letter of Credit, the date
of such issuance, amendment, renewal or extension, and the aggregate face amount of the Letters of Credit to be issued, amended, renewed or extended by
it and outstanding after giving effect to such issuance, amendment, renewal or extension occurred (and whether the amount thereof changed), it being
understood that such Issuing Bank shall not permit any issuance, renewal, extension or amendment resulting in an increase in the amount of any Letter of
Credit to occur without first obtaining written confirmation from the Administrative Agent that it is then permitted under this Agreement, (iii) on each
Business Day on which such Issuing Bank makes any LC Disbursement, the date of such LC Disbursement and the amount of such LC Disbursement,

(iv) on any Business Day on which any Borrower fails to reimburse an LC Disbursement required to be reimbursed to such Issuing Bank on such day, the
date of such failure and the amount and currency of such LC Disbursement and (v) on any other Business Day, such other information as the
Administrative Agent shall reasonably request.

SECTION 2.07. Funding of Borrowings. (a) Each Lender shall make each Loan to be made by it hereunder on the proposed date thereof by wire transfer of
immediately available funds by 1:00 p.m., Chicago, Illinois time, to the account of the Administrative Agent most recently designated by it for such purpose by
notice to the Lenders; provided that Swingline Loans shall be made as provided in Section 2.05. The Administrative Agent will make such Loans available to the
Borrower by promptly crediting the amounts so received, in like funds, to an account of the Borrower maintained with the Administrative Agent in Chicago,
[llinois or such other account, in each case, as is designated by the Borrower in the applicable Borrowing Request; provided that ABR Revolving Loans made to
finance the reimbursement of an LC Disbursement as provided in Section 2.06(e) shall be remitted by the Administrative Agent to the relevant Issuing Bank.

(b) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a Lender prior to the proposed date and time of any Borrowing that such Lender
will not make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender’s share of such Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has
made such share available on such date in accordance with paragraph (a) of this Section and may, in reliance upon such assumption, make available to the
Borrower a corresponding amount. In such event, if a Lender has not in fact made its share of the applicable Borrowing available to the Administrative
Agent, then the applicable Lender and the Borrower severally agree to pay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such corresponding amount
with interest thereon, for each day from and including the date such amount is made available to the Borrower to but excluding the date of payment to the
Administrative Agent, at (i) in the case of such Lender, the greater of the Federal Funds Effective Rate and a rate determined by the Administrative Agent
in accordance with banking industry rules on interbank compensation or (ii) in the case of the Borrower, the interest rate applicable to ABR Loans. If such
Lender pays such amount to the Administrative Agent, then such amount shall constitute such Lender’s Loan included in such Borrowing.

SECTION 2.08. Interest Elections. (a) Each Revolving Borrowing initially shall be of the Type specified in the applicable Borrowing Request and, in the
case of a Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, shall have an initial Interest Period as specified in such Borrowing Request. Thereafter, the Borrower may elect to
convert such Borrowing to a different Type or to continue such Borrowing and, in the case of a
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Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, may elect Interest Periods therefor, all as provided in this Section. The Borrower may elect different options with respect to
different portions of the affected Borrowing, in which case each such portion shall be allocated ratably among the Lenders holding the Loans comprising such
Borrowing, and the Loans comprising each such portion shall be considered a separate Borrowing. This Section shall not apply to Swingline Borrowings, which
may not be converted or continued.

(b) To make an election pursuant to this Section, the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of such election by telephone by the time that a
Borrowing Request would be required under Section 2.03 if the Borrower were requesting a Revolving Borrowing of the Type resulting from such election
to be made on the effective date of such election. Each such telephonic Interest Election Request shall be irrevocable and shall be confirmed promptly by
hand delivery or telecopy to the Administrative Agent of a written Interest Election Request in a form approved by the Administrative Agent and signed by
the Borrower.

(c) Each telephonic and written Interest Election Request shall specify the following information in compliance with Section 2.02:

(i) the Borrowing to which such Interest Election Request applies and, if different options are being elected with respect to different portions
thereof, the portions thereof to be allocated to each resulting Borrowing (in which case the information to be specified pursuant to clauses (iii) and
(iv) below shall be specified for each resulting Borrowing);

(ii) the effective date of the election made pursuant to such Interest Election Request, which shall be a Business Day;
(iii) whether the resulting Borrowing is to be an ABR Borrowing or a Eurodollar Borrowing; and
(iv) if the resulting Borrowing is a Eurodollar Borrowing, the Interest Period to be applicable thereto after giving effect to such election, which
shall be a period contemplated by the definition of the term “Interest Period”.
If any such Interest Election Request requests a Eurodollar Borrowing but does not specify an Interest Period, then the Borrower shall be deemed to have

selected an Interest Period of one month’s duration.

(d) Promptly following receipt of an Interest Election Request, the Administrative Agent shall advise each Lender of the details thereof and of such
Lender’s portion of each resulting Borrowing.

(e) If the Borrower fails to deliver a timely Interest Election Request with respect to a Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing prior to the end of the
Interest Period applicable thereto, then, unless such Borrowing is repaid as provided herein, at the end of such Interest Period such Borrowing shall be
converted to an ABR Borrowing. Notwithstanding any contrary provision hereof, if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and the
Administrative Agent, at the request of the Required Lenders, so notifies the Borrower, then, so long as an Event of Default is continuing (i) no outstanding
Revolving Borrowing may be converted to or continued as a Eurodollar Borrowing and (ii) unless repaid, each Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing shall be
converted to an ABR Borrowing at the end of the Interest Period applicable thereto.

SECTION 2.09. Termination and Reduction of Commitments. (a) Unless previously terminated, the Commitments shall terminate on the Maturity Date.

32



(b) The Borrower may at any time terminate, or from time to time reduce, the General Partnership Commitments or the Working Capital
Commitments; provided that (i) each reduction of the applicable Commitments shall be in an amount that is an integral multiple of $5,000,000 and not less
than $5,000,000 and (ii) the Borrower shall not terminate or reduce the applicable Commitments if, after giving effect to any concurrent prepayment of the
Loans in accordance with Section 2.11, (1) the sum of the Revolving Credit Exposures would exceed the Aggregate Commitment, (2) the sum of the
General Partnership Credit Exposures would exceed the total General Partnership Commitments or (3) the sum of the Working Capital Exposures would
exceed the total Working Capital Commitments.

(c) The Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent of any election to terminate or reduce the applicable Commitments under paragraph (b) of
this Section at least three Business Days prior to the effective date of such termination or reduction, specifying such election and the effective date thereof.
Promptly following receipt of any notice, the Administrative Agent shall advise the Lenders of the contents thereof. Each notice delivered by the Borrower
pursuant to this Section shall be irrevocable; provided that a notice of termination of the applicable Commitments delivered by the Borrower may state that
such notice is conditioned upon the effectiveness of other credit facilities, in which case such notice may be revoked by the Borrower (by notice to the
Administrative Agent on or prior to the specified effective date) if such condition is not satisfied. Any termination or reduction of any of the Commitments
shall be permanent. Each reduction of any of the Commitments shall be made ratably among the Lenders in accordance with their respective Commitments.

SECTION 2.10. Repayment of Loans; Evidence of Debt. (a) The Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay (i) to the Administrative Agent for the
account of each Lender the then unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Loan on the Maturity Date and (ii) to the Swingline Lender the then unpaid principal
amount of each Swingline Loan on the earlier of the Maturity Date and the first date after such Swingline Loan is made that is five (5) Business Days after such
Swingline Loan is made; provided that on each date that a Revolving Borrowing is made, the Borrower shall repay all Swingline Loans then outstanding.

(b) Each Lender shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice an account or accounts evidencing the indebtedness of the Borrower to such
Lender resulting from each Loan made by such Lender, including the amounts of principal and interest payable and paid to such Lender from time to time
hereunder.

(c) The Administrative Agent shall maintain accounts in which it shall record (i) the amount of each Loan made hereunder, the Class and Type
thereof, the Interest Period applicable thereto and whether such Loan is a General Partnership Loan or a Working Capital Loan, (ii) the amount of any
principal or interest due and payable or to become due and payable from the Borrower to each Lender hereunder and (iii) the amount of any sum received
by the Administrative Agent hereunder for the account of the Lenders and each Lender’s share thereof.

(d) The entries made in the accounts maintained pursuant to paragraph (b) or (c) of this Section shall, absent manifest error, be prima facie evidence
of the existence and amounts of the obligations recorded therein; provided that the failure of any Lender or the Administrative Agent to maintain such
accounts or any error therein shall not in any manner affect the obligation of the Borrower to repay the Loans in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

(e) Any Lender may request that Loans made by it be evidenced by one or more promissory notes. In such event, the Borrower shall execute and
deliver to such Lender promissory note(s) payable to the order of such Lender (or, if requested by such Lender, to such Lender and its registered assigns)
and in a form approved by the Administrative Agent. Thereafter, the Loans evidenced
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by such promissory note(s) and interest thereon shall at all times (including after assignment pursuant to Section 9.04) be represented by such promissory
note(s) in such form payable to the order of the payee named therein (or, if any such promissory note is a registered note, to such payee and its registered
assigns).

SECTION 2.11. Prepayment of L.oans.

(a) Voluntary Prepayments. The Borrower shall have the right at any time and from time to time to prepay any Borrowing in whole or in part, subject
to prior notice as follows: the Borrower shall notify the Administrative Agent (and, in the case of prepayment of a Swingline Loan, the Swingline Lender)
by telephone (confirmed by telecopy) of any prepayment hereunder (i) in the case of prepayment of a Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, not later than 11:00
a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, three Business Days before the date of prepayment, (ii) in the case of prepayment of an ABR Revolving Borrowing, not later
than 11:00 a.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the date of prepayment or (iii) in the case of prepayment of a Swingline Loan, not later than 4:00 p.m., Chicago,
Illinois time, on the date of prepayment. Each such notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the prepayment date and the principal amount of each
Borrowing or portion thereof to be prepaid; provided that, if a notice of prepayment is given in connection with a conditional notice of termination of the
Commitments as contemplated by Section 2.09, then such notice of prepayment may be revoked if such notice of termination is revoked in accordance with
Section 2.09. Promptly following receipt of any such notice relating to a Revolving Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall advise the Lenders of the
contents thereof. Each partial prepayment of any Revolving Borrowing shall be in an amount that would be permitted in the case of an advance of a
Revolving Borrowing of the same Type as provided in Section 2.02. Each prepayment of a Revolving Borrowing shall be applied ratably to the Loans
included in the prepaid Borrowing. Prepayments shall be accompanied by accrued interest to the extent required by Section 2.13.

(b) Mandatory Prepayments.

(i) Excess Loans. If at any time (x) the outstanding principal amount of all General Partnership Loans exceeds the sum of the General
Partnership Commitments or (y) the outstanding principal amount of (1) the Working Capital Loans, plus (2) the Swingline Loans, plus (3) the LC
Exposure exceeds the sum of the Working Capital Commitments, then the Borrower shall in each case repay immediately upon notice from the
Administrative Agent, by payment to the Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders, the General Partnership Loans or the Working Capital
Loans (as applicable) in an amount equal to such excess; it being understood and agreed that, after repayment of the Working Capital Loans, any
such remaining excess shall be applied as cash collateral in respect of the then outstanding LC Exposure in a comparable manner to that specified in
Section 2.06(j). Each such prepayment shall be accompanied by (x) accrued interest to the extent required by Section 2.13 and (y) any amount
required to be paid pursuant to Section 2.16.

(ii) Cleandown Period. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and commencing with the Fiscal Year beginning October 1,
2009, the Borrower must reduce to and/or maintain at $10,000,000 or less, as the case may be, the aggregate outstanding principal balance of all
Working Capital Loans and Swingline Loans for a period of not less than thirty (30) consecutive days during each Cleandown Period.

SECTION 2.12. Fees. (a) The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender a commitment fee, which shall accrue at
the Applicable Rate on the daily unused amount of the Commitment of such Lender during the period from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the
date on which such Commitment terminates; provided that, (i) outstanding Letters of Credit
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shall be considered usage of the Commitment for purposes of calculating the commitment fee and (ii) Swingline Loans shall not be considered usage of the
Commitment for purposes of calculating the commitment fee. Accrued commitment fees shall be payable in arrears on the last day of March, June, September
and December of each year and on the date on which the Commitments terminate, commencing on the first such date to occur after the date hereof. All
commitment fees shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days and shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but
excluding the last day).

(b) The Borrower agrees to pay (i) to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender a participation fee with respect to its participations in
Letters of Credit, which shall accrue at the same Applicable Rate used to determine the interest rate applicable to Eurodollar Revolving Loans on the
average daily amount of such Lender’s LC Exposure (excluding any portion thereof attributable to unreimbursed LC Disbursements) during the period
from and including the Effective Date to but excluding the later of the date on which such Lender’s Commitment terminates and the date on which such
Lender ceases to have any LC Exposure and (ii) to each Issuing Bank, a fronting fee, which shall accrue at the rate or rates per annum separately agreed
upon between the Borrower and such Issuing Bank on the average daily amount of the LC Exposure (excluding any portion thereof attributable to
unreimbursed LC Disbursements) attributable to Letters of Credit issued by such Issuing Bank during the period from and including the Effective Date to
but excluding the later of the date of termination of the Commitments and the date on which there ceases to be any LC Exposure, as well as such Issuing
Bank’s standard fees with respect to the issuance, amendment, negotiation, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit or processing of drawings
thereunder. Participation fees and fronting fees accrued through and including the last day of March, June, September and December of each year shall be
payable on the third Business Day following such last day, commencing on the first such date to occur after the Effective Date; provided that all such fees
shall be payable on the date on which the Commitments terminate and any such fees accruing after the date on which the Commitments terminate shall be
payable on demand. Any other fees payable to any Issuing Bank pursuant to this paragraph shall be payable within 10 days after demand. All participation
fees and fronting fees shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days and shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first
day but excluding the last day).

(c) The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, for its own account, fees payable in the amounts and at the times separately agreed upon
between the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

(d) All fees payable hereunder shall be paid on the dates due, in immediately available funds, to the Administrative Agent (or to the Issuing Banks, in
the case of fees payable to them) for distribution, in the case of facility fees and participation fees, to the Lenders. Fees paid shall not be refundable under
any circumstances.

SECTION 2.13. Interest. (a) The Loans comprising each ABR Borrowing (including each Swingline Loan) shall bear interest at the Alternate Base Rate
plus the Applicable Rate.

(b) The Loans comprising each Eurodollar Borrowing shall bear interest at the Adjusted LIBO Rate for the Interest Period in effect for such
Borrowing plus the Applicable Rate.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any principal of or interest on any Loan or any fee or other amount payable by the Borrower hereunder is not
paid when due, whether at stated maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise, such overdue amount shall bear interest, after as well as before judgment, at a
rate per annum equal to (i) in the case of overdue principal of any Loan, 2% plus the rate otherwise applicable to such Loan as provided in the preceding
paragraphs of this Section or (ii) in the case of any other amount, 2% plus the rate applicable to ABR Loans as provided in paragraph (a) of this Section.
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(d) Accrued interest on each Loan shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date for such Loan and, in the case of Revolving Loans, upon
termination of the Commitments; provided that (i) interest accrued pursuant to paragraph (c) of this Section shall be payable on demand, (ii) in the event of
any repayment or prepayment of any Loan (other than a prepayment of an ABR Revolving Loan prior to the end of the Availability Period), accrued
interest on the principal amount repaid or prepaid shall be payable on the date of such repayment or prepayment and (iii) in the event of any conversion of
any Eurodollar Revolving Loan prior to the end of the current Interest Period therefor, accrued interest on such Loan shall be payable on the effective date
of such conversion.

(e) All interest hereunder shall be computed on the basis of a year of 360 days, except that interest computed by reference to the Alternate Base Rate
at times when the Alternate Base Rate is based on the Prime Rate shall be computed on the basis of a year of 365 days (or 366 days in a leap year), and in
each case shall be payable for the actual number of days elapsed (including the first day but excluding the last day). The applicable Alternate Base Rate,
Adjusted LIBO Rate or LIBO Rate shall be determined by the Administrative Agent, and such determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

SECTION 2.14. Alternate Rate of Interest. If prior to the commencement of any Interest Period for a Eurodollar Borrowing:

(a) the Administrative Agent determines (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error) that adequate and reasonable means do not
exist for ascertaining the Adjusted LIBO Rate or the LIBO Rate, as applicable, for such Interest Period; or

(b) the Administrative Agent is advised by the Required Lenders that the Adjusted LIBO Rate or the LIBO Rate, as applicable, for such Interest
Period will not adequately and fairly reflect the cost to such Lenders (or Lender) of making or maintaining their Loans (or its Loan) included in such
Borrowing for such Interest Period;

then the Administrative Agent shall give notice thereof to the Borrower and the Lenders by telephone or telecopy as promptly as practicable thereafter and,
until the Administrative Agent notifies the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances giving rise to such notice no longer exist, (i) any Interest
Election Request that requests the conversion of any Revolving Borrowing to, or continuation of any Revolving Borrowing as, a Eurodollar Borrowing
shall be ineffective and (ii) if any Borrowing Request requests a Eurodollar Revolving Borrowing, such Borrowing shall be made as an ABR Borrowing;
provided that if the circumstances giving rise to such notice affect only one Type of Borrowings, then the other Type of Borrowings shall be permitted.

SECTION 2.15. Increased Costs. (a) If any Change in Law shall:

(i) impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve, special deposit or similar requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the account of,
or credit extended by, any Lender (except any such reserve requirement reflected in the Adjusted LIBO Rate) or any Issuing Bank; or

(ii) impose on any Lender or any Issuing Bank or the London interbank market any other condition affecting this Agreement or Eurodollar
Loans made by such Lender or any Letter of Credit or participation therein;
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and the result of any of the foregoing shall be to increase the cost to such Lender of making or maintaining any Eurodollar Loan (or of maintaining its
obligation to make any such Loan) or to increase the cost to such Lender or such Issuing Bank of participating in, issuing or maintaining any Letter of
Credit or to reduce the amount of any sum received or receivable by such Lender or such Issuing Bank hereunder (whether of principal, interest or
otherwise), then the Borrower will pay to such Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case may be, such additional amount or amounts as will compensate
such Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case may be, for such additional costs incurred or reduction suffered.

(b) If any Lender or any Issuing Bank determines that any Change in Law regarding capital requirements has or would have the effect of reducing the
rate of return on such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s capital or on the capital of such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s holding company, if any, as a
consequence of this Agreement or the Loans made by, or participations in Letters of Credit held by, such Lender, or the Letters of Credit issued by such
Issuing Bank, to a level below that which such Lender or such Issuing Bank or such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s holding company could have achieved
but for such Change in Law (taking into consideration such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s policies and the policies of such Lender’s or such Issuing
Bank’s holding company with respect to capital adequacy), then from time to time the Borrower will pay to such Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case
may be, such additional amount or amounts as will compensate such Lender or such Issuing Bank or such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s holding
company for any such reduction suffered.

(c) A certificate of a Lender or an Issuing Bank setting forth the amount or amounts necessary to compensate such Lender or such Issuing Bank or its
holding company, as the case may be, as specified in paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section shall be delivered to the Borrower and shall be conclusive absent
manifest error. The Borrower shall pay such Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case may be, the amount shown as due on any such certificate within 10
days after receipt thereof.

(d) Failure or delay on the part of any Lender or any Issuing Bank to demand compensation pursuant to this Section shall not constitute a waiver of
such Lender’s or such Issuing Bank’s right to demand such compensation; provided that the Borrower shall not be required to compensate a Lender or an
Issuing Bank pursuant to this Section for any increased costs or reductions incurred more than 180 days prior to the date that such Lender or such Issuing
Bank, as the case may be, notifies the Borrower of the Change in Law giving rise to such increased costs or reductions and of such Lender’s or such Issuing
Bank’s intention to claim compensation therefor; provided further that, if the Change in Law giving rise to such increased costs or reductions is retroactive,
then the 180-day period referred to above shall be extended to include the period of retroactive effect thereof.

SECTION 2.16. Break Funding Payments. In the event of (a) the payment of any principal of any Eurodollar Loan other than on the last day of an Interest

Period applicable thereto (including as a result of an Event of Default), (b) the conversion of any Eurodollar Loan other than on the last day of the Interest Period
applicable thereto, (c) the failure to borrow, convert, continue or prepay any Eurodollar Loan on the date specified in any notice delivered pursuant hereto
(regardless of whether such notice may be revoked under Section 2.11(a) and is revoked in accordance therewith) or (d) the assignment of any Eurodollar Loan
other than on the last day of the Interest Period applicable thereto as a result of a request by the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.19, then, in any such event, the
Borrower shall compensate each Lender for the loss, cost and expense attributable to such event. In the case of a Eurodollar Loan, such loss, cost or expense to
any Lender shall be deemed to include an amount reasonably determined by such Lender to be the excess, if any, of (i) the amount of interest which would have
accrued on the principal amount of such Loan had such event not occurred, at the Adjusted LIBO Rate that would have been applicable to such Loan, for the
period from the date of such event to the last day of the then current Interest Period therefor (or, in the case of a failure to borrow, convert or continue, for the
period that would have been the Interest Period for such Loan), over (ii) the amount of interest which would accrue on such principal amount for such period at
the interest
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rate which such Lender would bid were it to bid, at the commencement of such period, for dollar deposits of a comparable amount and period from other banks in
the eurodollar market. A certificate of any Lender setting forth any amount or amounts that such Lender is entitled to receive pursuant to this Section shall be
delivered to the Borrower and shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The Borrower shall pay such Lender the amount shown as due on any such certificate
within 10 days after receipt thereof.

SECTION 2.17. Taxes. (a) Any and all payments by or on account of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder shall be made free and clear of and without
deduction for any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes; provided that if the Borrower shall be required to deduct any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes from such
payments, then (i) the sum payable shall be increased as necessary so that after making all required deductions (including deductions applicable to additional
sums payable under this Section) the Administrative Agent, Lender or Issuing Bank (as the case may be) receives an amount equal to the sum it would have
received had no such deductions been made, (ii) the Borrower shall make such deductions and (iii) the Borrower shall pay the full amount deducted to the
relevant Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law.

(b) In addition, the Borrower shall pay any Other Taxes to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance with applicable law.

(c) The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent, each Lender and each Issuing Bank, within 10 days after written demand therefor, for
the full amount of any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes paid by the Administrative Agent, such Lender or such Issuing Bank, as the case may be, on or
with respect to any payment by or on account of any obligation of the Borrower hereunder (including Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes imposed or
asserted on or attributable to amounts payable under this Section) and any penalties, interest and reasonable expenses arising therefrom or with respect
thereto, whether or not such Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the relevant Governmental Authority. A
certificate as to the amount of such payment or liability, together with evidence of such payment, delivered to the Borrower by a Lender or an Issuing Bank,
or by the Administrative Agent on its own behalf or on behalf of a Lender or an Issuing Bank, shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

(d) As soon as practicable after any payment of Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes by the Borrower to a Governmental Authority, the Borrower shall
deliver to the Administrative Agent the original or a certified copy of a receipt issued by such Governmental Authority evidencing such payment, a copy of
the return reporting such payment or other evidence of such payment reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

(e) Any Foreign Lender that is entitled to an exemption from or reduction of withholding tax under the law of the jurisdiction in which the Borrower
is located, or any treaty to which such jurisdiction is a party, with respect to payments under this Agreement shall deliver to the Borrower (with a copy to
the Administrative Agent), at the time or times prescribed by applicable law, such properly completed and executed documentation prescribed by
applicable law or reasonably requested by the Borrower as will permit such payments to be made without withholding or at a reduced rate.

(f) If the Administrative Agent or a Lender reasonably determines that it has received a refund of any Taxes or Other Taxes as to which it has been
indemnified by the Borrower or with respect to which the Borrower has paid additional amounts pursuant to this Section 2.17, it shall pay over such refund
to the Borrower (but only to the extent of indemnity payments made, or additional amounts paid, by the Borrower under this Section 2.17 with respect to
the Taxes or Other Taxes giving rise to such refund), net of all out-of-pocket expenses of the Administrative Agent or such Lender and without interest
(other than any interest paid by the relevant Governmental Authority with respect to such refund);
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provided, that the Borrower, upon the request of the Administrative Agent or such Lender, agrees to repay the amount paid over to the Borrower (plus any
penalties, interest or other charges imposed by the relevant Governmental Authority) to the Administrative Agent or such Lender in the event the
Administrative Agent or such Lender is required to repay such refund to such Governmental Authority. This Section shall not be construed to require the
Administrative Agent or any Lender to make available its tax returns (or any other information relating to its taxes which it deems confidential) to the
Borrower or any other Person.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in Section 2.11, the Borrower shall make each payment required to be made by it hereunder (whether of principal,
interest, fees or reimbursement of LC Disbursements, or of amounts payable under Section 2.15, 2.16, 2.17, 9.03 or otherwise) prior to 12:00 noon
Chicago, Illinois time, on the date when due, in immediately available funds, without set-off or counterclaim. Any amounts received after such time on any
date may, in the discretion of the Administrative Agent, be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding Business Day for purposes of calculating
interest thereon. All such payments shall be made to the Administrative Agent at its main office at Chicago, Illinois, except payments to be made directly to
an Issuing Bank or Swingline Lender as expressly provided herein and except that payments pursuant to Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03 shall be made
directly to the Persons entitled thereto. The Administrative Agent shall distribute any such payments received by it for the account of any other Person to
the appropriate recipient promptly following receipt thereof. If any payment hereunder shall be due on a day that is not a Business Day, the date for
payment shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day, and, in the case of any payment accruing interest, interest thereon shall be payable for the
period of such extension. All payments hereunder shall be made in dollars.

(b) If at any time insufficient funds are received by and available to the Administrative Agent to pay fully all amounts of principal, unreimbursed LC
Disbursements, interest and fees then due hereunder, such funds shall be applied (i) first, towards payment of interest and fees then due hereunder, ratably
among the parties entitled thereto in accordance with the amounts of interest and fees then due to such parties, and (ii) second, towards payment of
principal and unreimbursed L.C Disbursements then due hereunder, ratably among the parties entitled thereto in accordance with the amounts of principal
and unreimbursed LC Disbursements then due to such parties.

(c) If any Lender shall, by exercising any right of set-off or counterclaim or otherwise, obtain payment in respect of any principal of or interest on
any of its Revolving Loans or participations in LC Disbursements or Swingline Loans resulting in such Lender receiving payment of a greater proportion of
the aggregate amount of its Revolving Loans and participations in LC Disbursements and Swingline Loans and accrued interest thereon than the proportion
received by any other Lender, then the Lender receiving such greater proportion shall purchase (for cash at face value) participations in the Revolving
Loans and participations in LC Disbursements and Swingline Loans of other Lenders to the extent necessary so that the benefit of all such payments shall
be shared by the Lenders ratably in accordance with the aggregate amount of principal of and accrued interest on their respective Revolving Loans and
participations in LC Disbursements and Swingline Loans; provided that (i) if any such participations are purchased and all or any portion of the payment
giving rise thereto is recovered, such participations shall be rescinded and the purchase price restored to the extent of such recovery, without interest, and
(ii) the provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed to apply to any payment made by the Borrower pursuant to and in accordance with the express
terms of this Agreement or any payment obtained by a Lender as consideration for the assignment of or sale of a participation in any of its Loans or
participations in LC Disbursements to any assignee or Participant, other than to the Borrower or any Subsidiary or Affiliate thereof (as to which the
provisions of this paragraph shall apply). The Borrower
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consents to the foregoing and agrees, to the extent it may effectively do so under applicable law, that any Lender acquiring a participation pursuant to the
foregoing arrangements may exercise against the Borrower rights of set-off and counterclaim with respect to such participation as fully as if such Lender
were a direct creditor of the Borrower in the amount of such participation.

(d) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the Borrower prior to the date on which any payment is due to the
Administrative Agent for the account of the Lenders or any Issuing Bank hereunder that the Borrower will not make such payment, the Administrative
Agent may assume that the Borrower has made such payment on such date in accordance herewith and may, in reliance upon such assumption, distribute to
the Lenders or any Issuing Bank, as the case may be, the amount due. In such event, if the Borrower has not in fact made such payment, then each Lender
or Issuing Bank, as the case may be, severally agrees to repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand the amount so distributed to such Lender
or Issuing Bank with interest thereon, for each day from and including the date such amount is distributed to it to but excluding the date of payment to the
Administrative Agent, at the greater of the Federal Funds Effective Rate and a rate determined by the Administrative Agent in accordance with banking
industry rules on interbank compensation.

(e) If any Lender shall fail to make any payment required to be made by it pursuant to Section 2.05(c), 2.06(d) or (e), 2.07(b), 2.18(d) or 9.03(c), then
the Administrative Agent may, in its discretion (notwithstanding any contrary provision hereof), (i) apply any amounts thereafter received by the
Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender and for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, the Swingline Lender or any Issuing Bank to satisfy
such Lender’s obligations under such Sections until all such unsatisfied obligations are fully paid and/or (ii) hold any such amounts in a segregated account
as cash collateral for, and application to, any future funding obligations of such Lender under such Sections; in the case of each of (i) and (ii) above, in any
order as determined by the Administrative Agent in its discretion.

SECTION 2.19. Mitigation Obligations; Replacement of Lenders. (a) If any Lender requests compensation under Section 2.15, or if the Borrower is
required to pay any additional amount to any Lender or any Governmental Authority for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.17, then such Lender
shall use reasonable efforts to designate a different lending office for funding or booking its Loans hereunder or to assign its rights and obligations hereunder to
another of its offices, branches or Affiliates, if, in the judgment of such Lender, such designation or assignment (i) would eliminate or reduce amounts payable
pursuant to Section 2.15 or 2.17, as the case may be, in the future and (ii) would not subject such Lender to any unreimbursed cost or expense and would not
otherwise be disadvantageous to such Lender. The Borrower hereby agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by any Lender in
connection with any such designation or assignment.

(b) If any Lender requests compensation under Section 2.15, or if the Borrower is required to pay any additional amount to any Lender or any
Governmental Authority for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 2.17, or if any Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender, then the Borrower may, at
its sole expense and effort, upon notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, require such Lender to assign and delegate, without recourse (in
accordance with and subject to the restrictions contained in Section 9.04), all its interests, rights and obligations under this Agreement to an assignee that
shall assume such obligations (which assignee may be another Lender, if a Lender accepts such assignment); provided that (i) the Borrower shall have
received the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld, (ii) such Lender shall have received
payment of an amount equal to the outstanding principal of its Loans and participations in LC Disbursements and Swingline Loans, accrued interest
thereon, accrued fees and all other amounts payable to it hereunder, from the assignee (to the extent of such outstanding principal and accrued interest and
fees) or the Borrower (in the case of all other amounts) and (iii) in the case of any such assignment
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resulting from a claim for compensation under Section 2.15 or payments required to be made pursuant to Section 2.17, such assignment will result in a
reduction in such compensation or payments. A Lender shall not be required to make any such assignment and delegation if, prior thereto, as a result of a
waiver by such Lender or otherwise, the circumstances entitling the Borrower to require such assignment and delegation cease to apply.

SECTION 2.20. Expansion Option. The Borrower may from time to time elect, not more than six (6) times during the term of this Agreement, to increase
the General Partnership Commitments in minimum increments of $10,000,000 so long as, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate amount of such increases does
not exceed $100,000,000. The Borrower may arrange for any such increase to be provided by one or more Lenders (each Lender so agreeing to an increase in its
Commitment an “Increasing Lender”), or by one or more new banks, financial institutions or other entities (each such new bank, financial institution or other
entity, an “Augmenting Lender”), to increase their existing Commitments or extend new Commitments, as the case may be; provided that (i) each Augmenting
Lender, shall be subject to the approval of the Borrower and the Administrative Agent and (ii) (x) in the case of an Increasing Lender, the Borrower and such
Increasing Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit F hereto, and (y) in the case of an Augmenting Lender, the Borrower and such
Augmenting Lender execute an agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto. No consent of any Lender (other than the Lenders participating in the
increase) shall be required for any increase in Commitments pursuant to this Section 2.20. Increases and new Commitments created pursuant to this Section 2.20
shall become effective on the date agreed by the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the relevant Increasing Lenders or Augmenting Lenders, and the
Administrative Agent shall notify each Lender thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no increase in the Commitments (or in the Commitment of any Lender)
shall become effective under this paragraph unless, (i) on the proposed date of the effectiveness of such increase, (A) the conditions set forth in Section 4.02 shall
be satisfied or waived by the Required Lenders, and the Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate to that effect dated as of such date and executed by
a Financial Officer of the Borrower and (B) the Borrower shall be in compliance (on a pro forma basis reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent) with
the covenants contained in Section 6.12 and (ii) the Administrative Agent shall have received documents consistent with those delivered on the Effective Date as
to the corporate power and authority of the Borrower to borrow hereunder after giving effect to such increase. On the effective date of any increase in the
Commitments, (i) each relevant Increasing Lender and Augmenting Lender shall make available to the Administrative Agent such amounts in immediately
available funds as the Administrative Agent shall determine, for the benefit of the other Lenders, as being required in order to cause, after giving effect to such
increase and the use of such amounts to make payments to such other Lenders, each Lender’s portion of the outstanding General Partnership Loans of all the
Lenders to equal its Applicable Percentage of such outstanding General Partnership Loans, and (ii) the Administrative Agent shall reallocate all outstanding
General Partnership Loans as of the date of any increase in the General Partnership Commitments (with any related borrowings to consist of the Types of
Revolving Loans, with related Interest Periods if applicable, specified in a notice delivered by the Borrower, in accordance with the requirements of Section 2.03).
The reallocation made pursuant to clause (ii) of the immediately preceding sentence shall be accompanied by payment of all accrued interest on the reallocated
amount and, in respect of each Eurodollar Loan, shall be subject to compensation by the Borrower in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.16 if the
reallocation occurs other than on the last day of the related Interest Periods.

SECTION 2.21. Defaulting Lenders. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if any Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender, then
the following provisions shall apply for so long as such Lender is a Defaulting Lender:

(a) fees shall cease to accrue on the daily unused amount of the Commitment of such Defaulting Lender pursuant to Section 2.12(a);
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(b) the Commitment and Revolving Credit Exposure of such Defaulting Lender shall not be included in determining whether all Lenders or the
Required Lenders have taken or may take any action hereunder (including any consent to any amendment or waiver pursuant to Section 9.02); provided
that (i) any waiver, amendment or modification requiring the consent of all Lenders or each affected Lender which affects such Defaulting Lender
differently than other affected Lenders shall require the consent of such Defaulting Lender and (ii) any amendment or modification that increases, or
extends the maturity of, such Defaulting Lender’s Commitment shall require the consent of such Defaulting Lender;

(c) if any Swingline Exposure or LC Exposure exists at the time a Lender becomes a Defaulting Lender then:

(i) the Borrower shall within one (1) Business Day following notice by the Administrative Agent (x) first, prepay such Swingline Exposure and
(y) second, cash collateralize such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.06(j) for so long as
such LC Exposure is outstanding;

(ii) if the Borrower cash collateralizes any portion of such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure pursuant to Section 2.21(c), the Borrower shall
not be required to pay any fees to such Defaulting Lender pursuant to Section 2.12(b) with respect to such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure during
the period such Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure is cash collateralized;

(iii) if any Defaulting Lender’s LC Exposure is not cash collateralized pursuant to Section 2.21(c), then, without prejudice to any rights or
remedies of the Issuing Bank or any Lender hereunder, all letter of credit fees payable under Section 2.12(b) with respect to such Defaulting
Lender’s LC Exposure shall be payable to the Issuing Bank until such LC Exposure is cash collateralized; and

(d) so long as any Lender is a Defaulting Lender, the Swingline Lender shall not be required to fund any Swingline Loan and the Issuing Bank shall
not be required to issue, amend or increase any Letter of Credit, unless it is satisfied that cash collateral will be provided by the Borrower in accordance
with Section 2.21(c).

In the event that the Administrative Agent, the Borrower, each Issuing Bank and the Swingline Lender each agree that a Defaulting Lender has adequately
remedied all matters that caused such Lender to be a Defaulting Lender, then on such date such Lender shall purchase at par such of the Loans of the other
Lenders as the Administrative shall determine may be necessary in order for such Lender to hold such Loans in accordance with its Applicable Percentage.

ARTICLE III

Representations and Warranties

The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lenders that:

jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation, has the power and authority to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being and hereafter proposed to
be conducted and is duly qualified and authorized to do business in each jurisdiction in which the character of its properties or the nature of its business requires
such qualification and authorization, except where the failure to so qualify would not have a Material Adverse Effect. The jurisdictions of formation and the
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jurisdictions in which the Borrower and each Subsidiary of the Borrower is organized and qualified to do business, and whether such Subsidiary is an Excluded
Subsidiary and its Capital Stock is Excluded Assets, are matters described on Schedule 3.01 hereto (as supplemented from time to time). The capitalization of the
Borrower and each Subsidiary of the Borrower consists of the Capital Stock, authorized, issued and outstanding, of such classes and series, with or without par
value, described on Schedule 3.01 hereto. All such outstanding Capital Stock has been duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.
The owners of the Capital Stock of the Borrower and each Subsidiary of the Borrower and the percentage of Capital Stock owned by each are described on
Schedule 3.01 hereto.

SECTION 3.02. Authorization; Enforceability. Each of the Credit Parties has the right, power and authority and has taken all necessary corporate and other
action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents to which it is a party in accordance with
their respective terms. This Agreement and each of the other Credit Documents have been duly executed and delivered by the duly authorized officers of each
Credit Party thereto, and each such Credit Document constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Credit Party thereto, enforceable in accordance with
its terms, except as such enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar state or federal debtor relief laws from
time to time in effect which affect the enforcement of creditors’ rights in general and the availability of equitable remedies.

SECTION 3.03. Governmental Approvals; No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance by the Credit Parties of the Credit Documents to which
each such Person is a party, in accordance with their respective terms, the borrowings hereunder and the Transactions do not and will not, by the passage of time,
the giving of notice or otherwise, (i) require any Governmental Approval or violate any Applicable Law relating to any Credit Party, (ii) conflict with, result in a
breach of or constitute a default under the articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational documents of any Credit Party or any indenture, material
agreement or other material instrument to which such Person is a party or by which any of its properties may be bound or any Governmental Approval relating to
such Person, or (iii) result in or require the creation or imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property now owned or hereafter acquired by such
Person other than Liens arising under the Credit Documents.

SECTION 3.04. Financial Condition; No Material Adverse Change. (a) The audited Consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower and its Consolidated
Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2009, and the related statements of income and retained earnings and cash flows for the Fiscal Year then ended, copies of which
have been furnished to the Administrative Agent and each Lender, fairly present in all material respects the assets, liabilities and financial position of the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of such dates, and the results of the operations and changes of financial position for the periods then ended in
accordance with GAAP. All such financial statements, including the related schedules and notes thereto, have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The
Borrower and its Subsidiaries have no Debt, obligation or other unusual forward or long-term commitment which is not fairly reflected in the foregoing financial
statements or in the notes thereto.

(b) Since September 30, 2009, there has been no material adverse change in the business, assets, operations, prospects or financial condition of the
Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

SECTION 3.05. Properties. (a) Each Credit Party has good and defensible title to all assets and other property purported to be owned by it, except for
minor defects in title that do not interfere with its ability to conduct its business as currently conducted or to utilize such properties for their intended purposes.
Set forth on Part 1 of Schedule 3.05 hereto is a complete list by Credit Party of each parcel of real property by street address owned or leased by a Credit Party, as
of the date of the most recent update to such Schedule delivered by the Borrower with the officer’s compliance certificate pursuant to Section 5.01. Set forth on
Part 2 of Schedule 3.05 hereto is a complete list by Credit Party of all motor vehicles owned by a Credit Party, as
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of the date of the most recent update to such Schedule delivered by the Borrower with the officer’s compliance certificate pursuant to Section 5.01. None of the
properties and assets of the Credit Parties is subject to any Lien, except Permitted Liens. Except as permitted hereunder, the Administrative Agent, for the benefit
of the Holders of Secured Obligations, has a perfected first priority Lien on all of the Collateral subject to no other Liens except for Permitted Liens.

(b) Each Credit Party owns or possesses rights to use all franchises, licenses, copyrights, copyright applications, patents, patent rights or licenses,
patent applications, trademarks, trademark rights, trade names, trade name rights, copyrights and rights with respect to the foregoing which are required to
conduct its business, except where the failure to own or possess any such right could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. No
event has occurred which permits, or after notice or lapse of time or both would permit, the revocation or termination of any such rights, and no Credit
Party is liable to any Person for infringement under Applicable Law with respect to any such rights as a result of its business operations, except where the
loss of any such right or the liability for any such infringement could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

pending nor, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened against or in any other way relating adversely to or affecting any Credit Party or any Credit Party’s
respective properties in any court or before any arbitrator of any kind or before or by any Governmental Authority, except for actions, suits, investigations or
proceedings that, if adversely determined, could, individually or in the aggregate, not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) There are no pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened, material strikes, material work stoppages, material unfair labor practice
claims, or other material labor disputes against or affecting any Credit Party or ERISA Affiliate or their respective employees; provided, however, that if
any such event is pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened, then the Borrower shall provide prompt written notice of the specifics of such
event to the Administrative Agent, and the Administrative Agent, in its reasonable discretion, may waive such representation and warranty as it relates to
such event. The hours worked and payments made to employees of each Credit Party and ERISA Affiliate have not been in violation of the Fair Labor
Standards Act or any other Applicable Law dealing with such matters except for violations that either alone or in the aggregate could not reasonably be
expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. All material payments due from a Credit Party, or for which any claim may be made against a Credit Party,
on account of wages and employee health and welfare insurance and other benefits have been paid or accrued as a liability on the books of the applicable
Credit Party, in compliance with GAAP.

(c) Each Credit Party has complied in all respects with all Environmental Laws except for violations that either alone or in the aggregate could not
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. No Credit Party manages or handles any hazardous wastes, hazardous substances, hazardous
materials, toxic substances or toxic pollutants referred to in or regulated by Environmental Laws in violation of such laws or of any other applicable law
where such violation could reasonably be expected to result, individually or together with other violations, in a Material Adverse Effect. There are no
outstanding or threatened citations, notices or orders of non-compliance issued to any Credit Party or relating to its facilities, leaseholds, assets or other
property that either alone or in the aggregate could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Each Credit Party has been issued all
licenses, certificates, permits or other authorizations required under any Environmental Law or by any federal, state or local governmental or quasi-
governmental entity, except where the failure to have such licenses, certificates, permits or other authorizations either individually or in the aggregate could
not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. There are no liabilities or contingent liabilities relating to environmental or employee
health and safety matters (including on-site or off-site

44



contamination) relating to any Credit Party or any property owned, leased or used by any Credit Party, which, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

for it to conduct its business, each of which is in full force and effect, is final and not subject to review on appeal and is not the subject of any pending or, to its
knowledge, threatened attack by direct or collateral proceeding, and (ii) is in compliance with each Governmental Approval applicable to it and in compliance
with all other Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, the BSA, relating to it or any of its respective properties, except, in each case, to the extent that such
non-compliance would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.08. Investment Company Status. No Credit Party is an “investment company” or a company “controlled” by an “investment company” (as
each such term is defined or used in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended) and neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or after giving
effect to any Borrowing will be, subject to regulation under the Interstate Commerce Act, as amended, or any other Applicable Law which limits its ability to
incur or consummate the Transactions.

SECTION 3.09. Taxes. Each Credit Party has duly filed or caused to be filed all material federal, state and local tax returns required by Applicable Law to
be filed, and has paid, or made adequate provision for the payment of, all federal, state, local and other taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies
upon it and its property, income, profits and assets which are due and payable, other than those the validity of which the applicable Credit Party is contesting in
good faith by appropriate proceedings and with respect to which the applicable Credit Party shall, to the extent required by GAAP, have set aside on its books
adequate reserves. No Governmental Authority has asserted any Lien or other claim against any Credit Party with respect to unpaid taxes which has not been
discharged or resolved, other than those the validity of which the applicable Credit Party is contesting in good faith by appropriate proceedings and with respect
to which the applicable Credit Party shall, to the extent required by GAAP, have set aside on its books adequate reserves. The charges, accruals and reserves on
the books of Credit Parties in respect of federal, state, local and other taxes for all Fiscal Years and portions thereof since the organization of each such Credit
Party are in the judgment of the Borrower adequate, and the Borrower does not anticipate any additional taxes or assessments for any of such years.

SECTION 3.10. ERISA. The Borrower and each ERISA Affiliate is in material compliance with all applicable provisions of ERISA and the regulations
and published interpretations thereunder.

SECTION 3.11. Disclosure. All written information, reports and other papers and data produced by or on behalf of each Credit Party and furnished to the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders (other than financial projections concerning the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, all of which have been prepared in good
faith based upon reasonable assumptions) were, at the time the same were so furnished, complete and correct in all material respects. No document furnished or
written statement made to the Administrative Agent or the Lenders by any Credit Party in connection with the negotiation, preparation or execution of this
Agreement or any of the Credit Documents contains or will contain any untrue statement of a fact material to the creditworthiness of any Credit Party or omits or
will omit to state a fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein not misleading.

SECTION 3.12. No Default. No event has occurred or is continuing which constitutes (i) a Default or an Event of Default or (ii) which constitutes, or
which with the passage of time or giving of notice or both would constitute, a default or event of default by any Credit Party under any material agreement or
contract, judgment, decree or order by which any Credit Party or any of their respective properties may be bound or which would require a Credit Party to make
any payment thereunder prior to the scheduled maturity
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date therefore, where (in the case of this clause (ii)) such default could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.13. Margin Stock. No Credit Party is engaged principally or as one of its activities in the business of extending credit for the purpose of
“purchasing” or “carrying” any “margin stock” (as each such term is defined or used in the regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System).
No part of the proceeds of any of the Loans will be used for purchasing or carrying margin stock in violation of, or for any purpose which violates, the provisions
of Regulation T, U or X of such Board of Governors.

SECTION 3.14. No Burdensome Restrictions. No Credit Party is a party to any agreement or instrument or subject to any restriction in its organizational
documents that (i) will have the effect of prohibiting or restraining, or will impose adverse conditions upon, any of the Transactions or the payment of dividends
or the making of any loans, investments or transfers by any Subsidiary to or in the Borrower or (ii) has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect. No Credit Party is subject to any Governmental Approval or Applicable Law which is so unusual or burdensome as in the foreseeable
future could be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The Borrower does not presently anticipate that future expenditures of the Credit Parties
needed to meet the provisions of any statutes, orders, rules or regulations of a Governmental Authority will be so burdensome as to have a Material Adverse
Effect.

SECTION 3.15. Solvency. As of the Effective Date and after giving effect to each Borrowing made hereunder, the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, will be Solvent.

SECTION 3.16. Debt and Permitted Investments. No Credit Party has any Debt other than Permitted Debt. No Credit Party has made any Investments
other than Investments permitted under Section 6.04 of this Agreement.

SECTION 3.17. Fiscal Year. The Fiscal Year of each Credit Party begins on October 1 and ends on September 30 of the following calendar year.

ARTICLE IV

Conditions

SECTION 4.01. Effective Date. The obligations of the Lenders to make Loans and of an Issuing Bank to issue Letters of Credit hereunder shall not become
effective until the date on which each of the following conditions is satisfied (or waived in accordance with Section 9.02):

(a) The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received from each party hereto either (i) a counterpart of this Agreement signed on behalf
of such party or (ii) written evidence satisfactory to the Administrative Agent (which may include telecopy transmission of a signed signature page of this
Agreement) that such party has signed a counterpart of this Agreement.

(b) The Administrative Agent shall have received a favorable written opinion (addressed to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders and dated the
Effective Date) of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., counsel for the Credit Parties, substantially in the form of Exhibit B, and covering such other matters relating to
the Credit Parties, this Agreement or the Transactions as the Required Lenders shall reasonably request. The Borrower hereby requests such counsel to
deliver such opinion.
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(c) The Administrative Agent shall have received such documents and certificates as the Administrative Agent or its counsel may reasonably request
relating to the organization, existence and good standing of each Credit Party, the authorization of the Transactions and any other legal matters relating to
the Credit Parties, this Agreement or the Transactions, as set forth in Exhibit D and all in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative
Agent and its counsel.

(d) The Administrative Agent shall have received a schedule, updated as of the Effective Date, specifying the holders of the Capital Stock of Inergy
Holdings GP and their units and percentage interest therein.

(e) The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate, dated the Effective Date and signed by the President, a Vice President or a Financial
Officer of the Borrower, confirming compliance with the conditions set forth in Section 4.02.

(f) The Administrative Agent shall have received evidence reasonably satisfactory to it that all commitments under the Existing Credit Agreement
have been terminated and cancelled, that all Debt outstanding thereunder has been fully repaid or will be fully repaid with the proceeds of the initial
Revolving Loans and that all Liens and security interests granted pursuant thereto have been fully released and terminated.

(g) The Administrative Agent shall have received all fees and other amounts due and payable on or prior to the Effective Date, including, to the
extent invoiced, reimbursement or payment of all out-of-pocket expenses required to be reimbursed or paid by the Borrower hereunder.

The Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders of the Effective Date, and such notice shall be conclusive and binding. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the obligations of the Lenders to make Loans and of an Issuing Bank to issue Letters of Credit hereunder shall not become effective unless each of the
foregoing conditions is satisfied (or waived pursuant to Section 9.02) at or prior to 3:00 p.m., Chicago, Illinois time, on the Effective Date (and, in the event such
conditions are not so satisfied or waived, the Commitments shall terminate at such time).

SECTION 4.02. Each Credit Event. The obligation of each Lender to make a Loan, and of each Issuing Bank to issue, amend, renew or extend any Letter
of Credit, is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

(a) The representations and warranties of the Borrower set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct on and as of the date of the making of
such Loan or the date of the issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of such Letter of Credit, as applicable, except to the extent that such
representations and warranties specifically refer to an earlier date, in which case they shall be true and correct as of such earlier date.

(b) At the time of and immediately after giving effect to such Loan or the issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of such Letter of Credit, as
applicable, no Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

The making of each Loan and each issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of a Letter of Credit shall be deemed to constitute a representation and warranty
by the Borrower on the date thereof as to the matters specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section.
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ARTICLE V

Affirmative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or been terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable hereunder shall have been paid
in full and all Letters of Credit shall have expired or terminated and all LC Disbursements shall have been reimbursed, the Borrower covenants and agrees with
the Lenders that:

SECTION 5.01. Financial Statements and Other Information. The Borrower will furnish to the Administrative Agent for distribution to each Lender:

(a) as soon as practicable and in any event within ninety (90) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, audited Consolidated balance sheet of the
Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such Fiscal Year and audited Consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and cash
flows for the Fiscal Year then ended, including the notes thereto, all in reasonable detail setting forth in comparative form the corresponding figures for the
preceding Fiscal Year and audited by Ernst & Young, LLP or other independent certified public accountants of national standing reasonably acceptable to
the Administrative Agent in accordance with GAAP and, if applicable, containing disclosure of the effect on the financial position or results of operation of
any change in the application of accounting principles and practices during the year, and accompanied by a report thereon by such certified public
accountants that is not qualified with respect to scope limitations imposed by the Borrower or any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries or with respect to
accounting principles followed by the Borrower or any of its Consolidated Subsidiaries not in accordance with GAAP (it being agreed that for purposes
hereof, the filing of the Borrower’s appropriately completed Annual Report in Form 10-K will be sufficient in lieu of delivery of the Consolidated financial
statements of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries) and (ii) as soon as practicable and in any event within ninety (90) days after the end of each
Fiscal Year, unaudited consolidating balance sheet of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such Fiscal Year and unaudited
consolidating statements of income, retained earnings and cash flows for the Fiscal Year then ended, including the notes thereto, all in reasonable detail
setting forth in comparative form the corresponding figures for the preceding Fiscal Year, certified by a Financial Officer of the Borrower as having been
prepared in accordance with GAAP;

(b) as soon as practicable and in any event within forty-five (45) days after the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters, unaudited Consolidated
balance sheet of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of the close of such fiscal quarter and unaudited Consolidated statements of income,
retained earnings and cash flows for the fiscal quarter then ended and that portion of the Fiscal Year then ended, all in reasonable detail setting forth in
comparative form the corresponding figures for the preceding Fiscal Year and prepared by the Borrower in accordance with GAAP other than the absence
of footnotes and subject to year-end audit and adjustments and, if applicable, containing disclosure of the effect on the financial position or results of
operations of any change in the application of accounting principles and practices during the period, and certified by a Financial Officer of the Borrower to
present fairly in all material respects the financial condition of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of their respective dates and the results of
operations of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for the respective periods then ended other than the absence of footnotes and subject to year-
end audit and adjustments (it being agreed that for purposes hereof, the filing of the Borrower’s appropriately completed Quarterly Report in Form 10-Q
will be sufficient in lieu of delivery of the Consolidated financial statements of the Borrower and its Consolidated Subsidiaries);
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(c) concurrently with any delivery of financial statements under clause (a) or (b) above, a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Borrower in the
form of Exhibit E hereto (i) certifying as to whether a Default has occurred and, if a Default has occurred, specifying the details thereof and any action
taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto, (ii) setting forth reasonably detailed calculations demonstrating (A) compliance with Sections 5.10
(solely in conjunction with the delivery of audited financial statements under clause (a) above and commencing with the audited financial statements for
the Borrower’s Fiscal Year ending on or about September 30, 2010), 6.01, 6.03, 6.04, 6.06 and 6.12 and (B) the determination of the Applicable Rate and
(iii) stating whether any change in GAAP or in the application thereof has occurred since the date of the audited financial statements referred to in
Section 3.04 and, if any such change has occurred, specifying the effect of such change on the financial statements accompanying such certificate; and

(d) as soon as practicable, but in any event no later than November 30 of the applicable Fiscal Year, the Borrower shall submit to the Administrative
Agent the Annual Budget for the then current Fiscal Year, approved by the board of directors (or analogous governing board) of the Borrower;

(e) promptly following any request therefor, such other information regarding the operations, business affairs and financial condition of the Borrower
or any Subsidiary, or compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as the Administrative Agent or any Lender may reasonably request.
SECTION 5.02. Notices of Material Events. The Borrower will furnish to the Administrative Agent for distribution to each Lender prompt (but in no event
later than ten (10) days after an officer of a Credit Party obtains knowledge thereof) written notice of the following:

(a) the commencement of all proceedings and investigations by or before any Governmental Authority and all actions and proceedings in any court
or before any arbitrator against or involving any Credit Party or any of their respective properties, assets or businesses, which could reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect;

(b) any notice of any violation received by any Credit Party from any Governmental Authority including, without limitation, any notice of violation
of Environmental Laws or ERISA which, in any such case, could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

(c) any labor controversy that has resulted in a strike or other work action against any Credit Party that could reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect;

(d) any dispositions of any Collateral or other assets or property of any Credit Party (other than (i) dispositions in the ordinary course of its business,
(ii) sales of assets between Credit Parties and (iii) sales or dispositions of obsolete or worn-out equipment);

(e) any Default or Event of Default;

(f) any event which makes any of the representations set forth in Article III inaccurate in any respect; and
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(g) any other development that has resulted in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, a Material Adverse Effect.

Each notice delivered under this Section shall be accompanied by a statement of a Financial Officer or other executive officer of the Borrower setting forth
the details of the event or development requiring such notice and any action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto.

SECTION 5.03. Existence; Conduct of Business. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (i) carry on and conduct its principal
business substantially as it is now being conducted, (ii) maintain in good standing its existence and its right to transact business in those states in which it is now
or may after the Effective Date be doing business, and (iii) maintain all licenses, permits and registrations necessary to the conduct of its business, except where
the failure to so maintain its right to transact business or to maintain such licenses, permits or registrations would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.04. Payment of Obligations. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, pay and discharge, before they become delinquent,
all taxes, assessments and other governmental charges imposed upon it, its properties, or any part thereof, or upon the income or profits therefrom and all claims
for labor, materials or supplies which if unpaid might be or become a Lien or charge upon any of its property and other material obligations, except such items as
it is in good faith appropriately contesting and as to which adequate reserves have been provided to the Administrative Agent’s satisfaction.

SECTION 5.05. Maintenance of Properties; Insurance. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (a) (i) maintain, preserve and keep its
properties and every part thereof in good repair, working order and condition (except for such properties as the Borrower in good faith determines are not useful
in the conduct of its or its Subsidiaries’ business), (ii) from time to time make all necessary and proper repairs, renewals, replacements, additions and
improvements thereto so that at all times the efficiency thereof shall be fully preserved and maintained (ordinary wear and tear excepted), and (iii) maintain all
leases of real or personal property in good standing, free of any defaults by the Credit Party that is party thereto, except, in each case, where the failure to do so
could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect and (b) keep insured at all times with financially sound and reputable insurers which are
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent (i) all of its property of an insurable nature (other than residential tanks and racks and cylinders on a cylinder exchange
program), including, without limitation, all real estate, equipment, fixtures and inventories, against fire and other casualties in such a manner and to the extent that
like properties are usually insured by others owning properties of a similar character in a similar locality or as otherwise reasonably required by the
Administrative Agent, with the proceeds of such casualty insurance payable to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenders, and (ii) against liability on
account of damage to persons or property (including product liability insurance, pollution legal liability insurance and all insurance required under all applicable
worker’s compensation laws) caused by it or its officers, members, employees, agents or contractors in such a manner and to the extent that like risks are usually
insured by others conducting similar businesses in the places where it conducts its business or as otherwise required by the Administrative Agent; provided,
however, that the Borrower may self-insure against casualty all of its property of an insurable nature, so long as (y) no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing under this Agreement, and (z) adequate reserves (as are customary in the case of self-insured entities of similarly situated companies engaged in the
same or a similar line of business in accordance with GAAP) are maintained for such purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that any property of
the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries is not accepted by the applicable insurer for inclusion under the Borrower’s or the applicable Subsidiary’s pollution legal
liability policy, the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall not be required to maintain pollution legal liability insurance coverage on such property provided that
(i) the Borrower provides the Administrative Agent with notice of the rejection of such property by the insurer, and (ii) at the Administrative Agent’s option, such
property shall not be included in the Collateral. The Borrower shall cause the insurers under all of its and its Subsidiaries’ insurance policies to (a) provide the
Administrative
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Agent at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of the termination of any such policy before such termination shall be effective and (b) agree to such other
matters in respect of any such casualty insurance as provided in the Administrative Agent’s loss payee endorsement. In addition, the Borrower will, upon request
of the Administrative Agent at any time, furnish a written summary of the amount and type of insurance carried by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, the names
of the insurers and the policy numbers, and deliver to the Administrative Agent certificates with respect thereto.

SECTION 5.06. Books and Records; Inspection Rights. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to (i) maintain complete and accurate
books and financial records in accordance with GAAP; (ii) during normal working hours permit the Administrative Agent and Persons designated by the
Administrative Agent to visit and inspect its properties and to conduct any environmental tests or audits thereon, to perform audits of its accounts receivable and
inventory and to inspect its books and financial records (including its journals, orders, receipts and correspondence which relate to its accounts receivable and
inventory), to make copies and to take extracts therefrom, and to discuss its affairs, finances and accounts receivable and operations with its members, officers,
employees and agents and its independent public accountants at the expense of the Borrower; (iii) permit the Administrative Agent and Persons designated by the
Administrative Agent to perform audits of such books and financial records at the expense of the Borrower when and as requested by the Administrative Agent.

SECTION 5.07. Compliance with Laws. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, comply with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and all orders of any Governmental Authority, applicable to it or any of its property, business, operations or transactions (including ERISA and all
Environmental Laws), except where the failure to so comply could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect, and provide prompt written
notice to the Administrative Agent following the receipt of any notice of any violation of any such laws, rules, regulations or orders from any Governmental
Authority charged with enforcing the same where such violation could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 5.08. Use of Proceeds. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, only use the proceeds of (a) the General Partnership Loans
to (i) refinance the indebtedness under the Existing Credit Agreement, (ii) finance Permitted Acquisitions, (iii) finance Capital Expenditures, (iv) finance the
working capital needs of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and (v) for any other general partnership purpose; and (b) the Working Capital Loans and the
Swingline Loans to (i) refinance the indebtedness under the Existing Credit Agreement and (ii) finance the working capital needs of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries. No proceeds of any Loans shall be used to acquire or carry any “margin stock” (as such term is defined or used in the regulations of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System).

SECTION 5.09. Subsidiary Guaranty. As promptly as possible but in any event within thirty (30) days (or such later date as may agreed upon by the
Administrative Agent) after any Person becomes a Subsidiary, other than an “Excluded Subsidiary,” or a Subsidiary ceases to be an “Excluded Subsidiary” (in
each case under definition of that term), the Borrower shall provide the Administrative Agent with written notice thereof setting forth information in reasonable
detail describing the material assets of such Person and shall cause each such Subsidiary to deliver to the Administrative Agent the Subsidiary Guaranty pursuant
to which such Subsidiary agrees to be bound by the terms and provisions of thereof, such Subsidiary Guaranty to be accompanied by appropriate authorizing
resolutions, other Organic Documents and legal opinions in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and its counsel.

SECTION 5.10. Collateral.

(a) Subject to the limitations on property or assets acquired after the Effective Date set forth in Section 5.13, the Borrower will, and will cause each
other Credit Party to, (i) cause all of its
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owned property (subject to the exceptions contained herein and in any Collateral Document and excluding the Excluded Assets) to be subject at all times to
first priority, perfected Liens in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations to secure the Obligations in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents, subject in all cases to Permitted Liens. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Borrower will cause the Applicable Pledge Percentage of the issued and outstanding Capital Stock (other than Excluded Assets) of each
Pledge Subsidiary directly owned by the Borrower or any other Credit Party to be subject at all times to a first priority, perfected Lien in favor of the
Administrative Agent to secure the Obligations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents to the extent, and within such time
period as is, reasonably required by the Administrative Agent. Notwithstanding the foregoing: (1) no Pledge Agreement in respect of the Capital Stock of
any Pledge Subsidiary shall be required hereunder to the extent such pledge thereunder would be prohibited by applicable law, or the Administrative Agent
or its counsel reasonably determines that such pledge would not provide material credit support for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations
pursuant to legally valid, binding and enforceable Pledge Agreements; (2) no Mortgages covering real property other than Fee Owned Real Property shall
be required hereunder, and no Mortgages shall be required hereunder to the extent such Mortgages are not readily obtainable under relevant applicable law
or if the Administrative Agent or its counsel reasonably determines that such Mortgage would not provide material credit support for the benefit of the
Holders of Secured Obligations pursuant to legally valid, binding and enforceable Mortgages; (3) no Mortgages are required to be delivered hereunder until
December 31, 2009 or such later date as the Administrative Agent may agree in the exercise of its reasonable discretion (it being understood and agreed
that the failure to deliver such Mortgages by the date ultimately required by the Administrative Agent shall constitute a Default under clause (d)(i) of
Article VII hereof) with respect to the Fee Owned Real Property owned by the Credit Parties on the Effective Date; provided that the Borrower hereby
agrees to use its best efforts to cause the delivery of such Mortgages as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Date; (4) no vehicle titles for the
motor vehicles owned by the Credit Parties and titled to reflect the Administrative Agent as the lienholder on the Effective Date need to be retitled to
reflect the Administrative Agent as the lienholder; and (5) no Mortgages or vehicle titles shall be required hereunder to the extent the Borrower is in
compliance with the Mortgage and Vehicle Title Requirement).

(b) The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, keep all Collateral, other than inventory in transit, motor vehicles, residential tanks
and bulk storage tanks, at one or more of the locations set forth on Schedule 5.10 hereto and not remove any such Collateral therefrom except for,
(i) inventory sold in the ordinary course of business; (ii) dispositions of obsolete or worn out equipment to the extent permitted under this Agreement and
the other Credit Documents; and (iii) the storage of inventory or equipment at locations within the continental United States other than those described on
Schedule 5.10 hereto; provided that (a) this Section 5.10 shall be deemed inapplicable during the continuation of the Collateral Release Event (as defined
below) that has not been followed by the Collateral Regrant Event (as defined below) and (b) the Borrower shall take all actions necessary for the
Administrative Agent’s Lien on such inventory and equipment to continue to be a perfected first priority Lien subject to no other Lien other than Permitted
Liens. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained in this Agreement or any other Credit Document to the contrary, the parties hereto
acknowledge and agree that in the event the Borrower receives, after the Effective Date, ratings for its senior unsecured long-term debt securities (without
third-party credit enhancement) (the “Ratings™) that are investment grade from both S&P (at least BBB-) and Moody’s (at least Baa3) (the “Collateral
Release Event”), the security interests and Liens described in clause (a) of this Section 5.10 and granted pursuant to the Collateral Documents will be
released; provided that (i) if either such Rating subsequently falls below BB+ or Bal respectively, the Borrower and each other Credit Party will re-grant
the security interests in the Collateral pursuant to comparable Collateral Documents (the “Collateral Regrant Event”) and no further Ratings-based
collateral releases will be permissible and (ii) notwithstanding the foregoing clause (i), no re-granting of the security interests in and the Liens on the
Collateral will be required if the Borrower receives Ratings of BBB (stable or better outlook) or higher from S&P and Baa2 (stable or better outlook) from
Moody’s.
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SECTION 5.11. Performance of Obligations; Further Assurances. If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Borrower will, and will cause
each of its Subsidiaries to, permit the Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders, if the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders so elects in their sole
discretion, to pay or perform any of the Borrower’s Obligations hereunder or under any other Credit Documents and to reimburse the Administrative Agent, on
demand, or, if the Administrative Agent so elects, by the Administrative Agent making one or more Loans (as the Administrative Agent may elect) on the
Borrower’s behalf and charging the accounts of any Credit Party held by the Administrative Agent accordingly, for all amounts expended by or on behalf of the
Administrative Agent in connection therewith, and all costs and expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Administrative Agent in connection therewith. Subject
to the limitations contained in Section 5.13, the Borrower further agrees to, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to, other than during the continuation of the
Collateral Release Event that has not been followed by the Collateral Regrant Event, execute, deliver or perform, or cause to be executed, delivered or performed,
all such Collateral Documents and other documents, agreements or acts, as the case may be, as the Administrative Agent may reasonably request from time to
time to create, perfect, continue or otherwise assure the Administrative Agent with respect to any Lien on all assets of each Credit Party or created or purported to
be created by any of the Credit Documents or to otherwise create, evidence, assure or enhance the Administrative Agent’s and the Lender’s rights and remedies
under, or as contemplated by, the Credit Documents or at law or in equity.

SECTION 5.12. Risk Management Policy. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, comply, and require its Subsidiaries to comply,
with (i) the retail and wholesale inventory distribution and trading procedures, (ii) the dollar and volume limits, and (iii) all other material provisions of the Risk
Management Policy.

SECTION 5.13. Acquisition of Property and Assets. At all times following the Effective Date and (i) during the continuation of a Collateral Release Event
that has not been followed by the Collateral Regrant Event and (ii) following the occurrence of the Collateral Regrant Event, if any assets or properties are
acquired by any Credit Party, and, after giving effect to such acquisition, the Borrower shall not be in compliance with Section 5.10 then, the Borrower and the
Subsidiary Guarantors, as applicable, shall (within 90 days (or such later date as is agreed to by the Administrative Agent) after the consummation of such
acquisition) execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, to the Administrative Agent at the Borrower’s reasonable expense, such documents
(including, without limitation, Collateral Documents, UCC financing statements, fixture filings and opinions of counsel) and other assurances as the
Administrative Agent may request in order to create and perfect Liens in such assets and properties in favor of the Administrative Agent, subject to no other Liens
other than Permitted Liens as are necessary for the Borrower to be in compliance with Section 5.10.

SECTION 5.14. ERISA. The Borrower will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, (i) notify the Administrative Agent promptly of the establishment or
joinder of any Plan, except that prior to the establishment of any “welfare benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(1) of ERISA) covering any employee of any
Credit Party or ERISA Affiliate for any period after such employee’s termination of employment other than such period required by the Consolidated Omnibus
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 or “defined benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(35) of ERISA) or joinder of, or contribution to, any “multiemployer plan”
(as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA), it will obtain the Administrative Agent’s prior written approval of such establishment; (ii) at all times make prompt
payments or contributions to meet the minimum funding standards of Section 412 of the Code, with respect to each Plan; (iii) promptly after the filing thereof,
furnish to the Administrative Agent a copy of any report required to be filed pursuant to Section 103 of ERISA in connection with each Plan for each plan year,
including but not limited to the Schedule B attached
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thereto, if applicable; (iv) notify the Administrative Agent promptly of any “reportable event” (as defined in Section 4043 of ERISA) or any circumstances arising
in connection with any Plan that might constitute grounds for the termination thereof by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation or for the appointment by the
appropriate United States District Court of a trustee to administer the Plan, the initiation of any audit or inquiry by the Internal Revenue Service or the
Department of Labor of any Plan or transaction(s) involving or related to any Plan, or any “prohibited transaction” as defined in Section 406 of ERISA or

Section 4975(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; (v) notify the Administrative Agent prior to any action that could result in the assertion of
liability under Subtitle E of Title IV of ERISA caused by the complete or partial withdrawal from any multiemployer plan or the termination of any defined
benefit plan sponsored by a Credit Party or any ERISA Affiliate, if such assertion of liability could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and
(vi) promptly furnish such additional information concerning any Plan as the Administrative Agent may from time to time reasonably request.

SECTION 5.15. Environmental Reports. If an Event of Default caused by reason of a breach of Section 5.07 (as such Section relates to Environmental
Laws) shall have occurred and be continuing, at the request of the Required Lenders through the Administrative Agent, the Borrower will, and will cause each of
its Subsidiaries to, provide to the Lenders within forty-five (45) days after such request, at the expense of the Borrower, an environmental site assessment report
for the properties which are the subject of such Event of Default prepared by an environmental consulting firm acceptable to the Administrative Agent and
consented to by the Borrower (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), indicating the presence or absence of hazardous materials and the
estimated cost of any compliance or remedial action in connection with such properties.

ARTICLE VI

Negative Covenants

Until the Commitments have expired or terminated and the principal of and interest on each Loan and all fees payable hereunder have been paid in full and
all Letters of Credit have expired or terminated and all LC Disbursements shall have been reimbursed, the Borrower covenants and agrees with the Lenders that:

SECTION 6.01. Debt. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Debt, except Permitted
Debt.

SECTION 6.02. Liens. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien on any property or
asset now owned or hereafter acquired by it, or assign or sell any income or revenues (including accounts receivable) or rights in respect of any thereof, except
Permitted Liens.

SECTION 6.03. Mergers; Sales of Assets; Sale-Leasebacks and other Fundamental Changes. (a) The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary
to, (i) merge or consolidate with or otherwise acquire, or be acquired by, any other Person; provided that (a) the Borrower may consummate Permitted
Acquisitions and (b) any Credit Party may merge or consolidate with or acquire or be acquired by another Credit Party provided that any such transaction
involving the Borrower shall result in the Borrower as the surviving entity; and (ii) sell, lease or otherwise transfer all or any part of its assets other than, (a) the
sale of inventory in the ordinary course of such Person’s business, (b) the disposition of obsolete or worn out equipment, (c) for so long as there exists no Event of
Default, the sale of motor vehicles in the ordinary
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course of such Person’s business, (d) sales of assets between Credit Parties, or (e) the sale of other assets not in the ordinary course of business in an amount not
to exceed $50,000,000 in any Fiscal Year.

(b) The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any arrangement with any lender or investor or to which such
lender or investor is a party, providing for the leasing by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries of real or personal property which has been or is to be sold
or transferred by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries to such lender or investor or to any Person to whom funds have been or are to be advanced by such
lender or investor on the security of such property or rental obligations of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, except for such transactions which,
together with all other such transactions entered into by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, involve real and personal property having a fair market value not
exceeding $10,000,000 in the aggregate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 6.03, Borrower and its Subsidiaries may enter into any
sale, lease or other transfer of assets in connection with the Borrower’s or any Subsidiary’s participation in any “Payment in Lieu of Tax Program” or any
other similar program as Borrower may, in its discretion, decide to participate in (each such program, a “PILOT Program”). As of the Effective Date, all
such PILOT Programs in which the Borrower or any of its Subsidiary’s participate in are listed on Schedule 6.03.

(c) The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, create any Subsidiary or manufacture any goods, render any services or
otherwise enter into any business which is not substantially similar to that existing on the Effective Date; provided, however, that the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries may engage in, or create one or more Controlled Subsidiaries to engage in, Midstream Business.

(a) subject to clause (b) below, make or permit to exist any loans or advances to or any other investment in any Person (including any equity holders
of the Borrower or of any of its Affiliates), except (1) investments in (i) interest-bearing United States Government obligations, (ii) certificates of deposit
issued by or time deposits with any commercial bank organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state thereof having capital and
surplus of not less than $25,000,000, (iii) prime commercial paper rated AAA by S&P or Prime P-1 by Moody’s and (iv) agreements involving the sale and
guaranteed repurchase of United States Government securities, (2) investments in securities of trade creditors or customers in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with the Borrower’s or such Subsidiaries’ past practices that are received in settlement of bona fide disputes or pursuant to any plan
of reorganization or liquidation or similar arrangement upon the bankruptcy or insolvency of such trade creditors or customers, (3) loans and advances to
directors, employees and officers of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries for bona fide business purposes, in aggregate amount not to exceed $1,000,000 at
any time outstanding, (4) investments made after the Effective Date in Excluded Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount not to exceed $100,000,000,

(5) investments in the Borrower, (6) the Borrower and the Subsidiaries may (i) acquire and hold accounts receivables owing to any of them if created or
acquired in the ordinary course of business and payable or dischargeable in accordance with customary terms, (ii) endorse negotiable instruments held for
collection in the ordinary course of business and (iii) make lease, utility and other similar deposits in the ordinary course of business, (7) investments in a
Subsidiary, provided that (i) such Subsidiary is a wholly owned Subsidiary (directly or indirectly) of the Borrower; (ii) such Subsidiary guarantees the
Obligations under the Credit Agreement and the other Credit Documents pursuant to the Subsidiary Guaranty, (iii) such Subsidiary grants to the
Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenders a first priority security interest in all assets and properties of such Subsidiary (subject only to Permitted
Liens and the limitations described in Section 5.13) in accordance with Section 5.13 pursuant to the Pledge and Security Agreement and, in the case of Fee
Owned Real
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Property owned by such Subsidiary, a Mortgage, and (iv) the Capital Stock of such Subsidiary is pledged to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the
Holders of Secured Obligations pursuant to the Pledge and Security Agreement, (8) Guaranties permitted under Section 6.01, (9) Permitted Acquisitions
and (10) other investments in an aggregate amount not to exceed $10,000,000 in any Fiscal Year. All instruments and documents evidencing such
investments shall be pledged to the Administrative Agent promptly after the relevant Person’s receipt thereof, shall be security for the Obligations, and
shall be Collateral hereunder; and

(b) acquire any assets or property of any other Person (other than a Credit Party) other than (i) pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition or for an
aggregate purchase price not exceeding $25,000,000, (ii) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices and (iii) as part of a Capital
Expenditure.

Agreement, except (a) Hedging Agreements entered into to hedge or mitigate risks to which the Borrower or any Subsidiary has actual exposure regardless of
maturity (other than those in respect of Capital Stock of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries), and (b) Hedging Agreements entered into in order to effectively
cap, collar or exchange interest rates (from fixed to floating rates, from one floating rate to another floating rate or otherwise) with respect to any interest-bearing
liability or investment of the Borrower or any Subsidiary. Furthermore, the Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any put
agreement or similar agreement with any other Person granting such Person put rights or similar arrangements with respect to the Capital Stock of the Borrower
or its Subsidiaries (other than in connection with compensation arrangements with directors, officers or employees of the Borrower or any Subsidiary).

SECTION 6.06. Restricted Payments. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries (other than JV Subsidiaries) to, declare or pay any
cash dividends on or make any other cash distributions in respect of any membership interests or other equity interests (other than in connection with
compensation arrangements with directors, officers or employees of the Borrower or any Subsidiary) or redeem or otherwise acquire for cash any such
membership or other equity interests without in each instance obtaining the prior written consent of the Required Lenders; provided, however, that (i) any Credit
Party which is a Subsidiary of the Borrower may pay regularly scheduled dividends or make other distributions to any other Credit Party and (ii) if no Default or
Event of Default exists or would result therefrom, the Borrower may pay cash distributions, free of any Lien, to its unitholders in an aggregate amount not to
exceed Available Cash.

SECTION 6.07. Transactions with Affiliates. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into or be a party to any
transaction or arrangement, including without limitation, the purchase, sale or exchange of property of any kind or the rendering of any service, with any Affiliate,
except in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of such Person’s business and upon fair and reasonable terms substantially as
favorable to such Person as those which would be obtained in a comparable arms-length transaction with a non-Affiliate except that the following shall be
permitted: (1) investments permitted by Sections 6.04(a)(3)-(7), (2) reasonable and customary director, officer and employee compensation (including bonuses)
and other benefits (including retirement, health, stock option and other benefit plans) and indemnification arrangements, (3) the existence of, and the performance
by any Credit Party of its obligations under the terms of, any limited liability company, limited partnership or other Organic Document or securityholders
agreement (including any registration rights agreement or purchase agreement related thereto) to which it is a party on the Effective Date, and which has been
disclosed to the Lenders as in effect on the Effective Date, and similar agreements that it may enter into thereafter; provided, however, that the existence of, or the
performance by any Credit Party of obligations under, any amendment to any such existing agreement or any such similar agreement entered into after the
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Effective Date shall only be permitted by this Section 6.07 to the extent not more adverse to the interest of the Lenders in any material respect than the provisions
of any of such documents and agreements as in effect on the Effective Date and (4) transactions between and among the Credit Parties. The foregoing shall not
prohibit the creation of, or an arrangement with, a Subsidiary or other Affiliate in connection with a Permitted Acquisition or other acquisition of assets and
properties pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, provided, that the structure of any such proposed transaction is disclosed to the Administrative
Agent and is acceptable to the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion.

SECTION 6.08. Restrictive Agreements. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, enter into, incur or
permit to exist any agreement or other arrangement that prohibits, restricts or imposes any condition upon (a) the ability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to
create, incur or permit to exist any Lien upon any of its property or assets (other than Excluded Assets), or (b) the ability of any Subsidiary to pay dividends or
other distributions with respect to any shares of its Capital Stock or to make or repay loans or advances to the Borrower or any Subsidiary or to Guaranty
indebtedness of the Borrower or any Subsidiary; provided that (i) the foregoing shall not apply to restrictions and conditions imposed by law or by any Credit
Document, (ii) the foregoing shall not apply to restrictions and conditions existing on the Effective Date and identified on Schedule 6.08 (but shall apply to any
extension or renewal of, or any amendment or modification expanding the scope of, any such restriction or condition), (iii) the foregoing shall not apply to
customary restrictions and conditions contained in agreements relating to the sale of any Subsidiary pending such sale, provided such restrictions and conditions
apply only to the Subsidiary that is to be sold and such sale is permitted hereunder, (iv) clause (a) of the foregoing shall not apply to restrictions or conditions
imposed by any agreement relating to secured indebtedness permitted by this Agreement if such restrictions or conditions apply only to the property or assets
securing such indebtedness and (v) clause (a) of the foregoing shall not apply to customary provisions in leases and other contracts restricting the assignment
thereof.

SECTION 6.09. Changes in Accounting Principles; Fiscal Year. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, make any change in
its principles or methods of accounting as currently in effect, except such changes that may be allowed by GAAP, nor, without first obtaining the Administrative
Agent’s written consent, change its Fiscal Year.

SECTION 6.10. Lease Obligations. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, permit the aggregate obligations that are due and
payable during any Fiscal Year under leases or agreements to lease (other than obligations under Capital Leases) to exceed $40,000,000.

SECTION 6.11. Amendments to Organic Documents. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, amend or otherwise modify
their respective Organic Documents in any manner that would materially and adversely affect the Administrative Agent or the Lenders without the prior written
consent of the Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders, except for amendments or other modifications that modify administrative provisions or
amendments that reflect the issuance, redemption or transfer of Capital Stock to the extent permitted by and in accordance with this Agreement and the other
Credit Documents.

SECTION 6.12. Financial Covenants.

(a) Maximum Total Leverage Ratio. The Borrower will not permit the Total Leverage Ratio, determined as of the end of each of its fiscal quarters
ending after the Effective Date for the period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal quarter, to be greater than 4.75 to 1.0.

(b) Maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio. The Borrower will not permit the Senior Secured Leverage Ratio, determined as of the end of each of
its fiscal quarters ending after the Effective
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Date for the period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal quarter, to be greater than 3.0 to 1.0.

(c) Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio. The Borrower will not permit the Interest Coverage Ratio, determined as of the end of each of its fiscal
quarters ending after the Effective Date for the period of 4 consecutive fiscal quarters ending with the end of such fiscal quarter, to be less than 2.5 to 1.0.

SECTION 6.13. Permitted Junior Debt and Amendments to Permitted Junior Debt Documents. The Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary
to, directly or indirectly voluntarily prepay, defease or in substance defease, purchase, redeem, retire or otherwise acquire, any Permitted Junior Debt or any Debt
from time to time outstanding under the Permitted Junior Debt Documents. Furthermore, the Borrower will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, amend the
Permitted Junior Debt Documents or any document, agreement or instrument evidencing any Debt incurred pursuant to the Permitted Junior Debt Documents (or
any replacements, substitutions, extensions or renewals thereof) or pursuant to which such Debt is issued where such amendment, modification or supplement
provides for the following or which has any of the following effects:

(a) increases the overall principal amount of any such Debt or increases the amount of any single scheduled installment of principal or interest;

(b) shortens or accelerates the date upon which any installment of principal or interest becomes due or adds any additional mandatory redemption
provisions;

(c) shortens the final maturity date of such Debt or otherwise accelerates the amortization schedule with respect to such Debt;

(d) amends or modifies any financial or negative covenant (or covenant which prohibits or restricts the Borrower or any Subsidiary from taking
certain actions) in a manner which is more onerous or more restrictive in any material respect to the Borrower or such Subsidiary or which is otherwise
materially adverse to the Borrower, any Subsidiary and/or the Lenders or, in the case of any such covenant, which places material additional restrictions on
the Borrower or such Subsidiary or which requires the Borrower or such Subsidiary to comply with more restrictive financial ratios or which requires the

Borrower to better its financial performance, in each case from that set forth in the existing applicable covenants in the Permitted Junior Debt Documents
or the applicable covenants in this Agreement; or

(e) amends, modifies or adds any affirmative covenant in a manner which (i) when taken as a whole, is materially adverse to the Borrower, any
Subsidiary and/or the Lenders or (ii) is more onerous than the existing applicable covenant in the Permitted Junior Debt Documents or the applicable
covenant in this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
Events of Default
If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) shall occur:
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(a) the Borrower shall fail to pay any principal of any Loan or any reimbursement obligation in respect of any LC Disbursement when and as the
same shall become due and payable, whether at the due date thereof or at a date fixed for prepayment thereof or otherwise;

(b) the Borrower shall fail to pay any interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount (other than an amount referred to in clause (a) of this
Article) payable under this Agreement, when and as the same shall become due and payable, and such failure shall continue unremedied for a period of
three (3) Business Days;

(c) any representation or warranty made or deemed made by or on behalf of the Borrower or any Subsidiary in or in connection with this Agreement
or any other Credit Document or any amendment or modification thereof or waiver thereunder, or in any report, certificate, financial statement or other
document furnished pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement or any other Credit Document or any amendment or modification thereof or waiver
thereunder, shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made;

(d)(i) the Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement contained in Section 5.02, 5.03 (with respect to the
Borrower’s existence), 5.08, 5.09 or 5.10 or in Article VI (other than Sections 6.07, 6.09, 6.10 and 6.11) or (ii) any of the Credit Documents shall cease in
any material respect to be in full force and effect or shall be declared to be null and void in whole or in a material part by the final judgment of a court or
other Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction or the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested by, or on behalf of, any Credit Party; or any
Credit Party shall renounce any of the same or deny that it has any or further liability under any Credit Document to which it is a party; or any security
interest purported to be created by any Credit Document shall cease to be, or shall be asserted by any Credit Party not to be, a valid, perfected, first priority
(except as expressly otherwise provided in this Agreement or such Credit Document) security interest in the Collateral covered thereby;

(e) the Borrower shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement contained in this Agreement (other than those specified in
clause (a), (b) or (d) of this Article) or any Credit Party shall be in breach of any of the terms or provisions of any other Credit Document (beyond the
applicable grace period with respect thereto, if any), and such failure or breach shall continue unremedied for a period of 30 days after the earlier to occur
of (i) notice thereof from the Administrative Agent to the Borrower (which notice will be given at the request of any Lender) or (ii) an officer of the
Borrower becomes aware of any such failure or breach;

(f) the Borrower or any Subsidiary shall fail to make any payment (whether of principal or interest and regardless of amount) in respect of any
Material Debt, when and as the same shall become due and payable;

(g) any event or condition occurs that results in any Material Debt (other than Material Debt under Hedging Agreements) becoming due prior to its
scheduled maturity or that enables or permits (with or without the giving of notice, the lapse of time or both) the holder or holders of any Material Debt or
any trustee or agent on its or their behalf to cause any Material Debt to become due, or to require the prepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeasance
thereof, prior to its scheduled maturity; or any default occurs under any Hedging Agreement that constitutes Material Debt which default could enable the
other counterparty to terminate the Hedging Agreement; provided that this clause (g) shall not apply to secured Debt that becomes due as a result of the
voluntary sale or transfer of the property or assets securing such Debt;
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(h) an involuntary proceeding shall be commenced or an involuntary petition shall be filed seeking (i) liquidation, reorganization or other relief in
respect of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary or its debts, or of a substantial part of its assets, under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy,
insolvency, receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect or (ii) the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar
official for the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary or for a substantial part of its assets, and, in any such case, such proceeding or petition shall continue
undismissed for 60 days or an order or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing shall be entered;

(i) the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall (i) voluntarily commence any proceeding or file any petition seeking liquidation, reorganization or
other relief under any Federal, state or foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar law now or hereafter in effect, (ii) consent to the institution
of, or fail to contest in a timely and appropriate manner, any proceeding or petition described in clause (h) of this Article, (iii) apply for or consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, conservator or similar official for the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary or for a substantial
part of its assets, (iv) file an answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) make a general assignment
for the benefit of creditors or (vi) take any action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

(j) the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary shall become unable, admit in writing its inability or fail generally to pay its debts as they become due;

(k) one or more judgments for the payment of money in an aggregate amount in excess of $10,000,000 (to the extent not covered by insurance) shall
be rendered against the Borrower, any Subsidiary or any combination thereof and the same shall remain undischarged for a period of 45 consecutive days
during which execution shall not be effectively stayed, or any action shall be legally taken by a judgment creditor to attach or levy upon any assets of the
Borrower or any Subsidiary to enforce any such judgment;

(1) an ERISA Event shall have occurred that, in the opinion of the Required Lenders, when taken together with all other ERISA Events that have
occurred, could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; or

(m) a Change in Control shall occur.

then, and in every such event (other than an event with respect to the Borrower described in clause (h) or (i) of this Article), and at any time thereafter

during the continuance of such event, the Administrative Agent may, and at the request of the Required Lenders shall, by notice to the Borrower, take either or
both of the following actions, at the same or different times: (i) terminate the Commitments, and thereupon the Commitments shall terminate immediately, and

(ii) declare the Loans then outstanding to be due and payable in whole (or in part, in which case any principal not so declared to be due and payable may
thereafter be declared to be due and payable), and thereupon the principal of the Loans so declared to be due and payable, together with accrued interest thereon
and all fees and other Obligations (other than any Obligations not then due and payable under any Banking Services Agreements) accrued hereunder and under
the other Credit Documents, shall become due and payable immediately, without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby
waived by the Borrower; and in case of any event with respect to the Borrower described in clause (h) or (i) of this Article, the Commitments shall automatically
terminate and the principal of the Loans then outstanding, together with accrued interest thereon and all fees and other Obligations (other than any Obligations not
then due and payable under any Banking Services Agreements) accrued hereunder, shall automatically
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become due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby waived by the Borrower.

ARTICLE VIII
The Administrative Agent

Each of the Lenders and the Issuing Banks hereby irrevocably appoints the Administrative Agent as its agent and authorizes the Administrative Agent to
take such actions on its behalf and on behalf of the Holders of Secured Obligations and to exercise such powers as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by
the terms hereof, together with such actions and powers as are reasonably incidental thereto.

The bank serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall have the same rights and powers in its capacity as a Lender as any other Lender and may
exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent, and such bank and its Affiliates may accept deposits from, lend money to and generally engage
in any kind of business with the Borrower or any Subsidiary or other Affiliate thereof as if it were not the Administrative Agent hereunder.

The Administrative Agent shall not have any duties or obligations except those expressly set forth herein. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
(a) the Administrative Agent shall not be subject to any fiduciary or other implied duties, regardless of whether a Default has occurred and is continuing, (b) the
Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to take any discretionary action or exercise any discretionary powers, except discretionary rights and powers
expressly contemplated hereby that the Administrative Agent is required to exercise in writing as directed by the Required Lenders (or such other number or
percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances as provided in Section 9.02), and (c) except as expressly set forth herein, the
Administrative Agent shall not have any duty to disclose, and shall not be liable for the failure to disclose, any information relating to the Borrower or any of its
Subsidiaries that is communicated to or obtained by the bank serving as Administrative Agent or any of its Affiliates in any capacity. The Administrative Agent
shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it with the consent or at the request of the Required Lenders (or such other number or percentage of the
Lenders as shall be necessary under the circumstances as provided in Section 9.02) or in the absence of its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. The
Administrative Agent shall be deemed not to have knowledge of any Default unless and until written notice thereof is given to the Administrative Agent by the
Borrower or a Lender, and the Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for or have any duty to ascertain or inquire into (i) any statement, warranty or
representation made in or in connection with this Agreement, (ii) the contents of any certificate, report or other document delivered hereunder or in connection
herewith, (iii) the performance or observance of any of the covenants, agreements or other terms or conditions set forth herein, (iv) the validity, enforceability,
effectiveness or genuineness of this Agreement or any other agreement, instrument or document, (v) the satisfaction of any condition set forth in Article IV or
elsewhere herein, other than to confirm receipt of items expressly required to be delivered to the Administrative Agent or (vi) the perfection or priority of any of
the Liens on any of the Collateral.

The Administrative Agent shall be entitled to rely upon, and shall not incur any liability for relying upon, any notice, request, certificate, consent,
statement, instrument, document or other writing believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or sent by the proper Person. The Administrative Agent
also may rely upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone and believed by it to be made by the proper Person, and shall not incur any liability for relying
thereon. The Administrative Agent may consult with legal counsel (who may be counsel for the Borrower),
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independent accountants and other experts selected by it, and shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it in accordance with the advice of any such
counsel, accountants or experts.

The Administrative Agent may perform any and all its duties and exercise its rights and powers by or through any one or more subagents appointed by the
Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent and any such subagent may perform any and all its duties and exercise its rights and powers through their
respective Related Parties. The exculpatory provisions of the preceding paragraphs shall apply to any such subagent and to the Related Parties of the
Administrative Agent and any such subagent, and shall apply to their respective activities in connection with the syndication of the credit facilities provided for
herein as well as activities as Administrative Agent.

Subject to the appointment and acceptance of a successor Administrative Agent as provided in this paragraph, the Administrative Agent may resign at any
time by notifying the Lenders, each Issuing Bank and the Borrower. Upon any such resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, with the consent of the
Borrower (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld), to appoint a successor. If no successor shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders and shall
have accepted such appointment within 30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent gives notice of its resignation, then the retiring Administrative Agent may,
on behalf of the Lenders and each Issuing Bank, appoint a successor Administrative Agent; provided, that if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing,
no consent of the Borrower shall be required. Upon the acceptance of its appointment as Administrative Agent hereunder by a successor, such successor shall
succeed to and become vested with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the retiring Administrative Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent shall
be discharged from its duties and obligations hereunder. The fees payable by the Borrower to a successor Administrative Agent shall be the same as those payable
to its predecessor unless otherwise agreed between the Borrower and such successor. After the Administrative Agent’s resignation hereunder, the provisions of
this Article and Section 9.03 shall continue in effect for the benefit of such retiring Administrative Agent, its sub-agents and their respective Related Parties in
respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by any of them while it was acting as Administrative Agent.

Each Lender acknowledges that it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such
documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement. Each Lender also acknowledges
that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall from
time to time deem appropriate, continue to make its own decisions in taking or not taking action under or based upon this Agreement, any related agreement or
any document furnished hereunder or thereunder.

None of the Lenders, if any, identified in this Agreement as a Co-Syndication Agent or a Documentation Agent shall have any right, power, obligation,
liability, responsibility or duty under this Agreement other than those applicable to all Lenders as such. Without limiting the foregoing, none of such Lenders shall
have or be deemed to have a fiduciary relationship with any Lender. Each Lender hereby makes the same acknowledgments with respect to the relevant Lenders
in their capacity as Co-Syndication Agents or Documentation Agent as it makes with respect to the Administrative Agent in the preceding paragraph.

Except with respect to the exercise of setoff rights of any Lender, including each Issuing Bank, in accordance with Section 9.08, the proceeds of which are
applied in accordance with this Agreement, each Lender agrees that it will not take any action, nor institute any actions or proceedings, against the Borrower or
with respect to any Credit Document, without the prior written consent of the Required Lenders or, as may be provided in this Agreement or the other Credit
Documents, with the consent of the Administrative Agent.
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The Lenders, including each Issuing Bank, are not partners or co-venturers, and no Lender shall be liable for the acts or omissions of, or (except as
otherwise set forth herein in case of the Administrative Agent) authorized to act for, any other Lender. The Administrative Agent shall have the exclusive right on
behalf of the Lenders to enforce the payment of the principal of and interest on any Loan or any Letter of Credit after the date such principal or interest has
become due and payable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

In its capacity, the Administrative Agent is a “representative” of the Holders of Secured Obligations within the meaning of the term “secured party” as
defined in the New York Uniform Commercial Code. Each Lender authorizes the Administrative Agent to enter into each of the Collateral Documents to which it
is a party and to take all action contemplated by such documents. Each Lender agrees that no Holder of Secured Obligations (other than the Administrative
Agent) shall have the right individually to seek to realize upon the security granted by any Collateral Document, it being understood and agreed that such rights
and remedies may be exercised solely by the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations upon the terms of the Collateral
Documents. In the event that any Collateral is hereafter pledged by any Person as collateral security for the Obligations, the Administrative Agent is hereby
authorized, and hereby granted a power of attorney, to execute and deliver on behalf of the Holders of Secured Obligations any Credit Documents necessary or
appropriate to grant and perfect a Lien on such Collateral in favor of the Administrative Agent on behalf of the Holders of Secured Obligations. The Lenders
hereby authorize the Administrative Agent, at its option and in its discretion, to release any Lien granted to or held by the Administrative Agent upon any
Collateral (i) upon termination of the Commitments and payment and satisfaction of all of the Obligations (other than contingent indemnity obligations and
Obligations in respect of Hedging Agreements and Banking Services Agreements) at any time arising under or in respect of this Agreement or the Credit
Documents or the Transactions; (ii) as permitted by, but only in accordance with, the terms of the applicable Credit Document; or (iii) if approved, authorized or
ratified in writing by the Required Lenders, unless such release is required to be approved by all of the Lenders hereunder. Upon request by the Administrative
Agent at any time, the Lenders will confirm in writing the Administrative Agent’s authority to release particular types or items of Collateral pursuant hereto.
Upon any sale or transfer of assets constituting Collateral which is permitted pursuant to the terms of any Credit Document, or consented to in writing by the
Required Lenders or all of the Lenders, as applicable, and upon at least five Business Days’ prior written request by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent,
the Administrative Agent shall (and is hereby irrevocably authorized by the Lenders to) execute such documents as may be necessary to evidence the release of
the Liens granted to the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations herein or pursuant hereto upon the Collateral that was sold or
transferred; provided, however, that (i) the Administrative Agent shall not be required to execute any such document on terms which, in the Administrative
Agent’s opinion, would expose the Administrative Agent to liability or create any obligation or entail any consequence other than the release of such Liens
without recourse or warranty, and (ii) such release shall not in any manner discharge, affect or impair the Obligations or any Liens upon (or obligations of the
Borrower or any Subsidiary in respect of) all interests retained by the Borrower or any Subsidiary, including (without limitation) the proceeds of the sale, all of
which shall continue to constitute part of the Collateral.

ARTICLE IX
Miscellaneous

SECTION 9.01. Notices. (a) Except in the case of notices and other communications expressly permitted to be given by telephone (and subject to
paragraph (b) below), all notices and other
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communications provided for herein shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand or overnight courier service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent
by telecopy, as follows:

(i) if to the Borrower, to it at Two Brush Creek Blvd., Suite 200, Kansas City, Missouri 64112, Attention of Brooks Sherman, Chief Financial
Officer (Telecopy No. (816) 531-3685);

(ii) if to the Administrative Agent, to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Loan and Agency Services Group, 10 South Dearborn, Chicago, Illinois
60603, Attention of Sabana Johnson (Telecopy No. (312) 385-7096), with copies to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., 10 South Dearborn, Chicago,
Illinois 60603, Attention of Kenneth J. Fatur (Telecopy No. (312) 732-1762);

(iii) if to any Issuing Bank, to it at the address most recently specified by it in a notice delivered to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower;

(iv) if to the Swingline Lender, to it at JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Loan and Agency Services Group, 10 South Dearborn, Chicago, Illinois
60603, Attention of Sabana Johnson (Telecopy No. (312) 385-7096); and

(v) if to any other Lender, to it at its address (or telecopy number or e-mail address) set forth in its Administrative Questionnaire.

(b) Notices and other communications to the Lenders hereunder may be delivered or furnished by electronic communications pursuant to procedures
approved by the Administrative Agent; provided that the foregoing shall not apply to notices pursuant to Article II unless otherwise agreed by the
Administrative Agent and the applicable Lender. The Administrative Agent or the Borrower may, in its discretion, agree to accept notices and other
communications to it hereunder by electronic communications pursuant to procedures approved by it; provided that approval of such procedures may be
limited to particular notices or communications.

(c) Any party hereto may change its address or telecopy number for notices and other communications hereunder by notice to the other parties
hereto. All notices and other communications given to any party hereto in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been
given on the date of receipt.

SECTION 9.02. Waivers; Amendments. (a) No failure or delay by the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender in exercising any right or
power hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right or power, or any abandonment or discontinuance of
steps to enforce such a right or power, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or power. The rights and remedies of the
Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank and the Lenders hereunder are cumulative and are not exclusive of any rights or remedies that they would otherwise
have. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement or consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall
be permitted by paragraph (b) of this Section, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the purpose for which given.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the making of a Loan or issuance of a Letter of Credit shall not be construed as a waiver of any Default,
regardless of whether the Administrative Agent, any Lender or any Issuing Bank may have had notice or knowledge of such Default at the time.

(b) Neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof may be waived, amended or modified except pursuant to an agreement or agreements in writing
entered into by the Borrower and the Required Lenders or by the Borrower and the Administrative Agent with the consent of the Required Lenders;
provided that no such agreement shall (i) increase the Commitment of any Lender without the
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written consent of such Lender, (ii) reduce the principal amount of any Loan or LC Disbursement or reduce the rate of interest thereon, or reduce any fees
payable hereunder, without the written consent of each Lender affected thereby, (iii) postpone the scheduled date of payment of the principal amount of any
Loan or LC Disbursement, or any interest thereon, or any fees payable hereunder, or reduce the amount of, waive or excuse any such payment, or postpone
the scheduled date of expiration of any Commitment, without the written consent of each Lender affected thereby, (iv) change Section 2.18(b) or (c) in a
manner that would alter the pro rata sharing of payments required thereby, without the written consent of each Lender, (v) change any of the provisions of
this Section or the definition of “Required Lenders” or any other provision hereof specifying the number or percentage of Lenders required to waive,
amend or modify any rights hereunder or make any determination or grant any consent hereunder, without the written consent of each Lender or (vi) other
than pursuant to a transaction permitted by the terms of this Agreement or any other Credit Document, release any Guarantor which is a Material
Subsidiary or release all or substantially all of the Collateral which is subject to the Credit Documents (other than pursuant to the Collateral Release Event),
without the written consent of each Lender; provided further that no such agreement shall amend, modify or otherwise affect the rights or duties of the
Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lender hereunder without the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent, such Issuing
Bank or the Swingline Lender, as the case may be. Notwithstanding the foregoing (including without limitation clause (v) of this Section 9.02(b)), this
Agreement and any other Credit Document may be amended (or amended and restated) with the written consent of the Required Lenders, Lenders
providing one or more additional credit facilities, the Administrative Agent, the Borrower and each other relevant Credit Party (x) to add one or more
additional credit facilities to this Agreement and to permit the extensions of credit from time to time outstanding thereunder and the accrued interest and
fees in respect thereof (collectively, the “Incremental Credits™) to share ratably in the benefits of this Agreement and the other Credit Documents with

the Revolving Loans and other extensions of credit hereunder and the accrued interest and fees in respect thereof, (y) to include reasonably appropriately
the Lenders holding such credit facilities in any determination of the Required Lenders and (z) to make such other technical amendments as are reasonably
deemed appropriate by the Administrative Agent and the Borrower in connection with the foregoing.

Administrative Agent and its Affiliates, including the reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of counsel for the Administrative Agent, in connection with the
syndication of the credit facilities provided for herein, the preparation and administration of this Agreement or any amendments, modifications or waivers of the
provisions hereof (whether or not the Transactions contemplated hereby or thereby shall be consummated), (ii) all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
each Issuing Bank in connection with the issuance, amendment, renewal or extension of any Letter of Credit or any demand for payment thereunder and (iii) all
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender, including the fees, charges and disbursements of any
counsel for the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender, in connection with the enforcement or protection of its rights in connection with this
Agreement, including its rights under this Section, or in connection with the Loans made or Letters of Credit issued hereunder, including all such out-of-pocket
expenses incurred during any workout, restructuring or negotiations in respect of such Loans or Letters of Credit.

(b) The Borrower shall indemnify the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank and each Lender, and each Related Party of any of the foregoing
Persons (each such Person being called an “Indemnitee”) against, and hold each Indemnitee harmless from, any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities
and related expenses, including the fees, charges and disbursements of any counsel for any Indemnitee, incurred by or asserted against any Indemnitee
arising out of, in connection with, or as a result of (i) the execution or delivery of this Agreement or any agreement or instrument contemplated hereby, the
performance by the parties hereto of their respective obligations hereunder or the
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consummation of the Transactions, (ii) any Loan or Letter of Credit or the use of the proceeds therefrom (including any refusal by any Issuing Bank to
honor a demand for payment under a Letter of Credit if the documents presented in connection with such demand do not strictly comply with the terms of
such Letter of Credit), (iii) any actual or alleged presence or release of Hazardous Materials on or from any property owned or operated by the Borrower or
any of its Subsidiaries, or any Environmental Liability related in any way to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, or (iv) any actual or prospective claim,
litigation, investigation or proceeding relating to any of the foregoing, whether based on contract, tort or any other theory and regardless of whether any
Indemnitee is a party thereto; provided that such indemnity shall not, as to any Indemnitee, be available to the extent that such losses, claims, damages,
liabilities or related expenses are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction by final and nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitee.

(c) To the extent that the Borrower fails to pay any amount required to be paid by it to the Administrative Agent, an Issuing Bank or the Swingline
Lender under paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section, each Lender severally agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent, such Issuing Bank or the Swingline
Lender, as the case may be, such Lender’s Applicable Percentage (determined as of the time that the applicable unreimbursed expense or indemnity
payment is sought) of such unpaid amount; provided that the unreimbursed expense or indemnified loss, claim, damage, liability or related expense, as the
case may be, was incurred by or asserted against the Administrative Agent, such Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lender in its capacity as such.

(d) To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Borrower shall not assert, and hereby waives, any claim against any Indemnitee, on any theory of
liability, for special, indirect, consequential or punitive damages (as opposed to direct or actual damages) arising out of, in connection with, or as a result
of, this Agreement or any other Credit Document, the Transactions, any Loan or Letter of Credit or the use of the proceeds thereof.

(e) All amounts due under this Section shall be payable not later than 15 days after written demand therefor.

SECTION 9.04. Successors and Assigns. (a) The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their

respective successors and assigns permitted hereby (including any Affiliate of any Issuing Bank that issues any Letter of Credit), except that (i) the Borrower may
not assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of each Lender (and any attempted assignment or
transfer by the Borrower without such consent shall be null and void) and (ii) no Lender may assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations hereunder
except in accordance with this Section. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, shall be construed to confer upon any Person (other than the parties
hereto, their respective successors and assigns permitted hereby (including any Affiliate of any Issuing Bank that issues any Letter of Credit), Participants (to the
extent provided in paragraph (c) of this Section) and, to the extent expressly contemplated hereby, the Related Parties of each of the Administrative Agent, each
Issuing Bank and the Lenders) any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement.

(b)(i) Subject to the conditions set forth in paragraph (b)(ii) below, any Lender may assign to one or more assignees (other than the Borrower and its
Affiliates) all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including all or a portion of its Commitment and the Loans at the time owing
to it) with the prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) of:
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(A) the Borrower, provided that no consent of the Borrower shall be required for an assignment to a Lender, an Affiliate of a Lender, an
Approved Fund or, if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, any other assignee; and

(B) the Administrative Agent.
(ii) Assignments shall be subject to the following additional conditions:
(A) except in the case of an assignment to a Lender or an Affiliate of a Lender or an assignment of the entire remaining amount of the
assigning Lender’s Commitment or Loans of any Class, the amount of the Commitment or Loans of the assigning Lender subject to each
such assignment (determined as of the date the executed Assignment and Assumption with respect to such assignment is delivered to the

Administrative Agent) shall not be less than $5,000,000 unless each of the Borrower and the Administrative Agent otherwise consent,
provided that no such consent of the Borrower shall be required if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing;

(B) each partial assignment shall be made as an assignment of a proportionate part of all the assigning Lender’s rights and obligations
under this Agreement;

(C) the parties to each assignment shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent an Assignment and Assumption, together with
a processing and recordation fee of $3,500; and

(D) the assignee, if it shall not be a Lender, shall deliver to the Administrative Agent an Administrative Questionnaire and shall agree
to be bound by Section 9.12 hereof.

For the purposes of this Section 9.04(b), the term “Approved Fund” has the following meaning:

“Approved Fund” means any Person (other than a natural person) that is engaged in making, purchasing, holding or investing in bank loans and similar
extensions of credit in the ordinary course of its business and that is administered or managed by (a) a Lender, (b) an Affiliate of a Lender or (c) an entity or an
Affiliate of an entity that administers or manages a Lender.

(iii) Subject to acceptance and recording thereof pursuant to paragraph (b)(iv) of this Section, from and after the effective date specified in
each Assignment and Assumption the assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent of the interest assigned by such Assignment and
Assumption, have the rights and obligations of a Lender under this Agreement, and the assigning Lender thereunder shall, to the extent of the interest
assigned by such Assignment and Assumption, be released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in the case of an Assignment and
Assumption covering all of the assigning Lender’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, such Lender shall cease to be a party hereto but shall
continue to be entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03). Any assignment or transfer by a Lender of rights or obligations under
this Agreement that does not comply with this Section 9.04 shall be treated for purposes of this Agreement as a sale by such Lender of a participation
in such rights and obligations in accordance with paragraph (c) of this Section.

(iv) The Administrative Agent, acting for this purpose as an agent of the Borrower, shall maintain at one of its offices a copy of each
Assignment and Assumption delivered to it and a register for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders, and the Commitment of,
and principal amount of the Loans and LC Disbursements owing to, each Lender pursuant to the terms hereof from time to time
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(the “Register”). The entries in the Register shall be conclusive, and the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank and the Lenders
may treat each Person whose name is recorded in the Register pursuant to the terms hereof as a Lender hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement,
notwithstanding notice to the contrary. The Register shall be available for inspection by the Borrower, the Issuing Banks and any Lender, at any
reasonable time and from time to time upon reasonable prior notice.

(v) Upon its receipt of a duly completed Assignment and Assumption executed by an assigning Lender and an assignee, the assignee’s
completed Administrative Questionnaire (unless the assignee shall already be a Lender hereunder), the processing and recordation fee referred to in
paragraph (b) of this Section and any written consent to such assignment required by paragraph (b) of this Section, the Administrative Agent shall
accept such Assignment and Assumption and record the information contained therein in the Register; provided that if either the assigning Lender or
the assignee shall have failed to make any payment required to be made by it pursuant to Section 2.05(c), 2.06(d) or (e), 2.07(b), 2.18(d) or 9.03(c),
the Administrative Agent shall have no obligation to accept such Assignment and Assumption and record the information therein in the Register
unless and until such payment shall have been made in full, together with all accrued interest thereon. No assignment shall be effective for purposes
of this Agreement unless it has been recorded in the Register as provided in this paragraph.

(c)(i) Any Lender may, without the consent of the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or the Swingline Lender, sell
participations to one or more banks or other entities (a “Participant”) in all or a portion of such Lender’s rights and obligations under this Agreement
(including all or a portion of its Commitment and the Loans owing to it); provided that (A) such Lender’s obligations under this Agreement shall
remain unchanged, (B) such Lender shall remain solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such obligations and (C) the
Borrower, the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank and the other Lenders shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender in
connection with such Lender’s rights and obligations under this Agreement. Any agreement or instrument pursuant to which a Lender sells such a
participation shall provide that such Lender shall retain the sole right to enforce this Agreement and to approve any amendment, modification or
waiver of any provision of this Agreement; provided that such agreement or instrument may provide that such Lender will not, without the consent
of the Participant, agree to any amendment, modification or waiver described in the first proviso to Section 9.02(b) that affects such Participant.
Subject to paragraph (b)(ii) of this Section, the Borrower agrees that each Participant shall be entitled to the benefits of Sections 2.15, 2.16 and 2.17
to the same extent as if it were a Lender and had acquired its interest by assignment pursuant to paragraph (b) of this Section. To the extent permitted
by law, each Participant also shall be entitled to the benefits of Section 9.08 as though it were a Lender, provided such Participant agrees to be
subject to Section 2.18(c) as though it were a Lender.

(ii) A Participant shall not be entitled to receive any greater payment under Section 2.15 or 2.17 than the applicable Lender would have been
entitled to receive with respect to the participation sold to such Participant, unless the sale of the participation to such Participant is made with the
Borrower’s prior written consent. A Participant that would be a Foreign Lender if it were a Lender shall not be entitled to the benefits of Section 2.17
unless the Borrower is notified of the participation sold to such Participant and such Participant agrees, for the benefit of the Borrower, to comply
with Section 2.17(e) as though it were a Lender.

(d) Any Lender may at any time pledge or assign a security interest in all or any portion of its rights under this Agreement to secure obligations
of such Lender, including without limitation any pledge or assignment to secure obligations to a Federal Reserve Bank, and this Section shall not
apply to any such pledge or assignment of a security interest; provided that no such pledge or assignment of a security interest shall release a Lender
from any of its obligations hereunder or substitute any such pledgee or assignee for such Lender as a party hereto.
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SECTION 9.05. Survival. All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made by the Borrower herein and in the certificates or other
instruments delivered in connection with or pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered to have been relied upon by the other parties hereto and shall survive
the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the making of any Loans and issuance of any Letters of Credit, regardless of any investigation made by any
such other party or on its behalf and notwithstanding that the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender may have had notice or knowledge of any
Default or incorrect representation or warranty at the time any credit is extended hereunder, and shall continue in full force and effect as long as the principal of or
any accrued interest on any Loan or any fee or any other amount payable under this Agreement is outstanding and unpaid or any Letter of Credit is outstanding
and so long as the Commitments have not expired or terminated. The provisions of Sections 2.15, 2.16, 2.17 and 9.03 and Article VIII shall survive and remain in
full force and effect regardless of the repayment of the Loans, the expiration or termination of the Letters of Credit and the Commitments or the termination of
this Agreement or any provision hereof.

SECTION 9.06. Counterparts; Integration; Effectiveness. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (and by different parties hereto on different
counterparts), each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute a single contract. This Agreement and any separate
letter agreements with respect to fees payable to the Administrative Agent constitute the entire contract among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and
supersede any and all previous agreements and understandings, oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof. Except as provided in Section 4.01, this
Agreement shall become effective when it shall have been executed by the Administrative Agent and when the Administrative Agent shall have received
counterparts hereof which, when taken together, bear the signatures of each of the other parties hereto, and thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement by telecopy
shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 9.07. Severability. Any provision of this Agreement held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction,
be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability without affecting the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions
hereof; and the invalidity of a particular provision in a particular jurisdiction shall not invalidate such provision in any other jurisdiction.

SECTION 9.08. Right of Setoff. If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, each Lender and each of its Affiliates is hereby authorized at
any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or
final) at any time held and other obligations at any time owing by such Lender or Affiliate to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower against any of and all
the obligations of the Borrower now or hereafter existing under this Agreement held by such Lender, irrespective of whether or not such Lender shall have made
any demand under this Agreement and although such obligations may be unmatured. The rights of each Lender under this Section are in addition to other rights
and remedies (including other rights of setoff) which such Lender may have.

SECTION 9.09. Governing Law;_Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process. (a) This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by
the law of the State of New York, but giving effect to federal laws applicable to national banks.

(b) The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of
the State of New York sitting in New York County and the United States District Court of the Southern District of New York, and any appellate court from
any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or for
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recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all claims in respect of any
such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in such New York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such Federal court. Each of the
parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the
judgment or in any other manner provided by law. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any
Lender may otherwise have to bring any action or proceeding relating to this Agreement against the Borrower or its properties in the courts of any
jurisdiction.

(c) The Borrower hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively do so, any objection which it
may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any court referred to in
paragraph (b) of this Section. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the defense of an inconvenient
forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court.

(d) Each party to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service of process in the manner provided for notices in Section 9.01. Nothing in this
Agreement will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

SECTION 9.10. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY
APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT
OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR
ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY
HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO
ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO
ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION.

SECTION 9.11. Headings. Article and Section headings and the Table of Contents used herein are for convenience of reference only, are not part of this
Agreement and shall not affect the construction of, or be taken into consideration in interpreting, this Agreement.

SECTION 9.12. Confidentiality. Each of the Administrative Agent, each Issuing Bank and the Lenders agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the
Information (as defined below), except that Information may be disclosed (a) to its and its Affiliates’ directors, officers, employees and agents, including
accountants, legal counsel and other advisors (it being understood that the Persons to whom such disclosure is made will be informed of the confidential nature of
such Information and instructed to keep such Information confidential), (b) to the extent requested by any regulatory authority, (c) to the extent required by
applicable laws or regulations or by any subpoena or similar legal process, (d) to any other party to this Agreement, (e) in connection with the exercise of any
remedies hereunder or any suit, action or proceeding relating to this Agreement or the enforcement of rights hereunder, (f) subject to an agreement containing
provisions substantially the same as those of this Section, to (i) any assignee of or Participant in, or any prospective assignee of or Participant in, any of its rights
or obligations under this Agreement or (ii) any actual or prospective counterparty (or its advisors) to any swap or derivative transaction relating to the Borrower
and its obligations, (g) with the consent of the Borrower or (h) to the extent such Information (i) becomes publicly available other than as a result of a breach of
this Section or (ii) becomes available to the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender on a nonconfidential basis from a source other than the
Borrower.
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For the purposes of this Section, “Information” means all information received from the Borrower relating to the Borrower or its business, other than any such
information that is available to the Administrative Agent, any Issuing Bank or any Lender on a nonconfidential basis prior to disclosure by the Borrower. Any
Person required to maintain the confidentiality of Information as provided in this Section shall be considered to have complied with its obligation to do so if such
Person has exercised the same degree of care to maintain the confidentiality of such Information as such Person would accord to its own confidential information.

SECTION 9.13. USA PATRIOT Act. Each Lender that is subject to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107-56 (signed into law
October 26, 2001)) (the “Act”) hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to the requirements of the Act, it is required to obtain, verify and record information
that identifies the Borrower, which information includes the name and address of the Borrower and other information that will allow such Lender to identify the
Borrower in accordance with the Act.

[Signature Pages to Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year
first above written.

INERGY, L.P,, as the Borrower

By: INERGY GP, LLC,
its managing general partner

By

Name:
Title:

Signature Page to
Credit Agreement
Inergy, L.P.



Signature Page to
Credit Agreement
Inergy, L.P.

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent
and individually as a Lender

By:

Name:
Title:

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as a Co-Syndication Agent and
individually as a Lender

By:

Name:
Title:

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., as a Co-Syndication Agent and
individually as a Lender

By:

Name:
Title:

[OTHER LENDERS TO COME]

By:

Name:
Title:



LENDER
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.

BARCLAYS BANK PLC

CREDIT SUISSE, CAYMAN ISLANDS BRANCH
MORGAN STANLEY BANK, N.A.

SUNTRUST BANK

UBS LOAN FINANCE LLC

THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD.
CITIBANK, N.A.

RAYMOND JAMES BANK, FSB

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

FIFTH THIRD BANK

BANK MIDWEST, N.A.

PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

THE PRIVATEBANK AND TRUST COMPANY
COMMERCE BANK

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 2.01

COMMITMENTS

GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

COMMITMENT

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

42,857,142.86
42,857,142.86
42,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
27,857,142.86
25,714,285.71
21,428,571.43
21,428,571.43
21,428,571.43
17,142,857.14
17,142,857.14
12,857,142.86

8,571,428.56

8,571,428.56

450,000,000

WORKING CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

7,142,857.14
7,142,857.14
7,142,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,642,857.14
4,285,714.29
3,571,428.57
3,571,428.57
3,571,428.57
2,857,142.86
2,857,142.86
2,142,857.14
1,428,571.44
1,428,571.44

75,000,000

AGGREGATE
COMMITMENT

50,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
32,500,000
32,500,000
32,500,000
32,500,000
32,500,000
32,500,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
25,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
525,000,000
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EXHIBIT A
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION

This Assignment and Assumption (the “Assignment and Assumption”) is dated as of the Effective Date set forth below and is entered into by and between
[Insert name of Assignor] (the “Assignor”) and [Insert name of Assignee] (the “Assignee”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
given to them in the Credit Agreement identified below (as amended, the “Credit Agreement”), receipt of a copy of which is hereby acknowledged by the
Assignee. The Standard Terms and Conditions set forth in Annex 1 attached hereto are hereby agreed to and incorporated herein by reference and made a part of
this Assignment and Assumption as if set forth herein in full.

For an agreed consideration, the Assignor hereby irrevocably sells and assigns to the Assignee, and the Assignee hereby irrevocably purchases and assumes
from the Assignor, subject to and in accordance with the Standard Terms and Conditions and the Credit Agreement, as of the Effective Date inserted by the
Administrative Agent as contemplated below (i) all of the Assignor’s rights and obligations in its capacity as a Lender under the Credit Agreement and any other
documents or instruments delivered pursuant thereto to the extent related to the amount and percentage interest identified below of all of such outstanding rights
and obligations of the Assignor under the respective facilities identified below (including any letters of credit, guarantees, and swingline loans included in such
facilities) and (ii) to the extent permitted to be assigned under applicable law, all claims, suits, causes of action and any other right of the Assignor (in its capacity
as a Lender) against any Person, whether known or unknown, arising under or in connection with the Credit Agreement, any other documents or instruments
delivered pursuant thereto or the loan transactions governed thereby or in any way based on or related to any of the foregoing, including contract claims, tort
claims, malpractice claims, statutory claims and all other claims at law or in equity related to the rights and obligations sold and assigned pursuant to clause
(i) above (the rights and obligations sold and assigned pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) above being referred to herein collectively as the “Assigned Interest”). Such
sale and assignment is without recourse to the Assignor and, except as expressly provided in this Assignment and Assumption, without representation or warranty
by the Assignor.

1. Assignor:
2. Assignee:
[and is an Affiliate/Approved Fund of [identify Lender] 1]
3. Borrower: Inergy, L.P.
4. Administrative Agent: JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the administrative agent under the Credit Agreement
5. Credit Agreement: The Credit Agreement dated as of November 24, 2009 among Inergy, L.P., the Lenders parties thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank,

N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the other agents parties thereto

6. Assigned Interest:

1 Select as applicable.



Aggregate Amount of Percentage Assigned

Commitment/Loans for all Amount of of

Lenders Commitment/Loans Assigned Commitment/Ioans?
$ $ %
$ $ %
$ $ %

Effective Date: , 20 [TO BE INSERTED BY ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT AND WHICH SHALL BE THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF
RECORDATION OF TRANSFER IN THE REGISTER THEREFOR.]

The terms set forth in this Assignment and Assumption are hereby agreed to:
ASSIGNOR
[NAME OF ASSIGNOR]

By:

Title:
ASSIGNEE
[NAME OF ASSIGNEE]

By:

Title:

2 Set forth, to at least 9 decimals, as a percentage of the Commitment/Loans of all Lenders thereunder.
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Consented to and Accepted:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A,, as
Administrative Agent

By:

Title:
[Consented to:]3
INERGY, L.P.

By:

Title:

3 To be added only if the consent of the Borrower is required by the terms of the Credit Agreement.
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ANNEX 1
[

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION

1. Representations and Warranties.

1.1 Assignor. The Assignor (a) represents and warrants that (i) it is the legal and beneficial owner of the Assigned Interest, (ii) the Assigned Interest is free
and clear of any lien, encumbrance or other adverse claim and (iii) it has full power and authority, and has taken all action necessary, to execute and deliver this
Assignment and Assumption and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; and (b) assumes no responsibility with respect to (i) any statements,
warranties or representations made in or in connection with the Credit Agreement or any other Credit Document, (ii) the execution, legality, validity,
enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of the Credit Documents or any collateral thereunder, (iii) the financial condition of the Borrower, any of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates or any other Person obligated in respect of any Credit Document or (iv) the performance or observance by the Borrower, any of its
Subsidiaries or Affiliates or any other Person of any of their respective obligations under any Credit Document.

1.2. Assignee. The Assignee (a) represents and warrants that (i) it has full power and authority, and has taken all action necessary, to execute and deliver
this Assignment and Assumption and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and to become a Lender under the Credit Agreement, (ii) it satisfies
the requirements, if any, specified in the Credit Agreement that are required to be satisfied by it in order to acquire the Assigned Interest and become a Lender,
(iii) from and after the Effective Date, it shall be bound by the provisions of the Credit Agreement as a Lender thereunder and, to the extent of the Assigned
Interest, shall have the obligations of a Lender thereunder, (iv) it has received a copy of the Credit Agreement, together with copies of the most recent financial
statements delivered pursuant to Section 5.01 thereof, as applicable, and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own
credit analysis and decision to enter into this Assignment and Assumption and to purchase the Assigned Interest on the basis of which it has made such analysis
and decision independently and without reliance on the Administrative Agent or any other Lender, and (v) if it is a Foreign Lender, attached to the Assignment
and Assumption is any documentation required to be delivered by it pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, duly completed and executed by the Assignee;
and (b) agrees that (i) it will, independently and without reliance on the Administrative Agent, the Assignor or any other Lender, and based on such documents
and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under the Credit Documents, and
(ii) it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the obligations which by the terms of the Credit Documents are required to be performed by it as a Lender.

2. Payments. From and after the Effective Date, the Administrative Agent shall make all payments in respect of the Assigned Interest (including payments
of principal, interest, fees and other amounts) to the Assignor for amounts which have accrued to but excluding the Effective Date and to the Assignee for
amounts which have accrued from and after the Effective Date.

3. General Provisions. This Assignment and Assumption shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective
successors and assigns. This Assignment and Assumption may be executed in any number of counterparts, which together shall constitute one

4Describe Credit Agreement at option of Administrative Agent.



instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Assignment and Assumption by telecopy shall be effective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart of this Assignment and Assumption. This Assignment and Assumption shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the law of
the State of New York.



EXHIBIT B
OPINION OF COUNSEL FOR THE BORROWER
[Attached]
1



EXHIBIT C

[Intentionally Omitted]
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EXHIBIT D
LIST OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS
$525,000,000

SECURED CREDIT FACILITY
INERGY, L.P.

November 24, 2009
LIST OF CLOSING DOCUMENTSS

A. CREDIT DOCUMENTS
1. Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) by and among Inergy, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Borrower”), the institutions from time to time

parties thereto as Lenders (the “Lenders”), and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for itself and the other Lenders (the
“Administrative Agent”).

SCHEDULES:

Schedule 2.01 — Commitments

Schedule 2.06 — Existing Letters of Credit
Schedule 3.01 — Subsidiaries

Schedule 3.05 — Properties

Schedule 5.10 — Location of Collateral
Schedule 6.01 — Existing Debt

Schedule 6.02 — Permitted Liens
Schedule 6.03 — PILOT Programs
Schedule 6.08 — Restrictive Agreements

EXHIBITS:

Exhibit A — Form of Assignment and Assumption
Exhibit B — Form of Opinion of Borrower’s Counsel
Exhibit C — [Intentionally Omitted]

Exhibit D — List of Closing Documents

Exhibit E — Form of Compliance Certificate

Exhibit F — Form of Increasing Lender Supplement
Exhibit G — Form of Augmenting Lender Supplement

2. Promissory notes executed by the Borrower in favor of each of the Lenders, if any, which has requested a note pursuant to Section 2.10(e) of the Credit
Agreement (each a “Requesting Lender”) in the aggregate principal amount of each such Requesting Lender’s Commitment under the Credit Agreement.

5 Each capitalized term used herein and not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the above-defined Credit Agreements. Items appearing
in bold and italics shall be prepared and/or provided by the Borrower and/or Borrower’s counsel.
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Guaranty made by each Subsidiary Guarantor (each such Subsidiary and the Borrower, herein being the “Credit Parties”) in favor of the Administrative
Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations.

Pledge and Security Agreement executed by each Credit Party evidencing its grant of a security interest in substantially all of its respective personal
property in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations, together with the appropriate stock certificates and
stock powers executed in blank.

Exhibit A — Place of Business, Chief Executive Office and Mailing Address; Locations of Real Property, Inventory, Equipment
and Fixtures

Exhibit B — Vehicles; Aircraft, Ships, Railcars and other Vehicles; Patents, Copyrights and Trademarks

Exhibit C — Street Address of Property on which Fixtures are Located

Exhibit D — List of Pledged Securities

Exhibit E — Offices in which Financing Statements have been Filed

Exhibit F — Commercial Tort Claims

Exhibit G — Form of Request for Vehicle Lien Release

Exhibit H — Former Names of Grantors

Trademark Security Agreement made by the Credit Parties, in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Holders of Secured Obligations.

Schedule A — Trademarks; Trademark and Service Mark Applications
Schedule B — License Agreements

B. CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

Certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of each Credit Party certifying (i) that there have been no changes in the Articles or Certificate of
Incorporation, Certificate of Formation or other charter document of such Credit Party, as attached thereto and as certified as of a recent date by the
secretary of state (or the equivalent thereof) of its jurisdiction of organization, if applicable, since the date of the certification thereof by such secretary
of state (or equivalent thereof), if applicable, (ii) the By-Laws, Operating Agreement, or other applicable organizational document, as attached thereto,
of such Credit Party as in effect on the date of such certification, (iii) resolutions of the Board of Directors, Board of Managers, or other governing
body of such Credit Party authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of each Credit Document to which it is a party, and (iv) the names and
true signatures of the incumbent officers of such Credit Party authorized to sign the Credit Documents to which it is a party, and, in the case of the
each of the Borrower, authorized to request borrowings under the Credit Agreements.

Good Standing Certificates (or the equivalent thereof) for each Credit Party from its respective jurisdiction of organization.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

C. UCC DOCUMENTATION
UCG, tax and judgment lien search reports naming each Credit Party from the appropriate offices in the relevant jurisdictions.

UCC financing statements naming each Credit Party as debtor and the Administrative Agent as secured party as filed with the appropriate offices in the
relevant jurisdictions.

D. THIRD PARTY AND MISCELLANEOUS COLLATERAL DOCUMENTS

Payout or Termination Letter evidencing, to the Administrative Agent’s satisfaction, the termination of the Existing Credit Agreement, including, without
limitation, the termination of all liens and security interests granted in connection therewith, together with UCC termination statements and other evidence
of such Lien termination with respect thereto.

Certificates of Insurance listing the Administrative Agent as (x) lender loss payee (standard mortgagee form) for the property, casualty, and business
interruption insurance policies of the Credit Parties, together with a long-form loss payable endorsement, and (y) additional insured with respect to the
liability insurance of the Credit Parties, together with a long-form loss payable endorsement.

Original certificates of title for each motor vehicle required to be pledged in favor of the Administrative Agent pursuant to the Credit Documents (on
file with the Administrative Agent).

Powers of Attorney necessary in connection with recording the name of the Administrative Agent as the lienholder on the original certificates for each
motor vehicle required to be pledged in favor of the Administrative Agent pursuant to the Credit Documents.

Power of Attorney executed by the Administrative Agent with respect to the recording of security interests in motor vehicles.

E. OPINION LETTERS

Opinion letter of Vinson & Elkins LLP, counsel to the Credit Parties, addressed to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders.

F. CLOSING CERTIFICATES AND MISCELLANEOUS

Certificate signed by the President, a Vice President or a Financial Officer of the Borrower, stating that on the date of the initial Borrowing or issuance
of a Letter of Credit under the Credit Agreements (a) no Default has occurred and is continuing and (b) all of the representations and warranties in
Article III of each Credit Agreement shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such date except to the extent that such representations and
warranties specifically refer to an earlier date, in which case they shall be true and correct as of such earlier date.

Schedule, updated as of the Effective Date, specifying the holders of the Capital Stock of Inergy Holdings GP and their units and percentage interest
therein.



18.

19.

G. POST-CLOSING ITEMS
Post-filing UCC search reports.
Mortgages executed by the applicable Credit Parties in favor of the Administrative Agent with respect to each parcel of property required to be mortgaged

in favor of the Administrative Agent pursuant to the Credit Documents, together with related information and documents requested by the Administrative
Agent.



EXHIBIT E

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To: The Administrative Agent, the Issuing Banks and the Lenders under the
Credit Agreement described below

This Compliance Certificate is furnished pursuant to that certain Credit Agreement dated as of November 24, 2009 (as the same may be amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”), by and among Inergy, L.P. (the “Borrower”), JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (the
“Administrative Agent”) and certain financial institutions from time to time party thereto (collectively, the “Lenders”). Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Credit Agreement.

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY CERTIFIES THAT:
1. T am the duly elected of the Borrower;

2. T have reviewed the terms of the Credit Agreement and I have made, or have caused to be made under my supervision, a detailed review of the
transactions and conditions of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries during the accounting period ending on 20 and covered by the attached
financial statements;

_—

3. The examinations described in paragraph 2 did not disclose, and I have no knowledge of, the existence of any condition or event which constitutes a
Default or an Event of Default under the Credit Agreement during or at the end of the accounting period covered by the attached financial statements or as of the
date of this Compliance Certificate [, except as set forth below];

[Described below are the exceptions to paragraph 3 by listing, in detail, the nature of the condition or event, the period during which it has existed and the
action which the Borrower has taken, is taking, or proposes to take with respect to each such condition or event:]

4. The examinations described in paragraph 2 did not disclose, and I have no knowledge of, the existence of any change in GAAP or in the application
thereof that has occurred since September 30, 2009 [, except as set forth below];

[Described below are the exceptions to paragraph 4 by listing each change in GAAP and the effect of such change on the financial accompanying financial
statements:]




5. All of the representations and warranties set forth in Article IIT of the Credit Agreement are true and correct as of the date hereof except to the extent any
such representation or warranty is stated to relate solely to an earlier date, in which case such representation or warranty shall have been true and correct on and as
of such earlier date;

6. Schedule I attached hereto sets forth financial data and computations used in determining whether the Borrower is in compliance with certain covenants
of the Credit Agreement, all of which data and computations are true, complete and correct;

7. Schedule II attached hereto sets forth any new applications to register patentable inventions, trademarks and copyrights filed by the Borrower or any
Subsidiary which have not been previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent;

8. Schedule IITI attached hereto sets forth descriptions of any new commercial tort claims belonging to the Borrower or any Subsidiary, which have not been
previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent;

9. Schedule IV attached hereto updates part 2 of Schedule 3.05 to the Credit Agreement and sets forth any new motor vehicles belonging to the Borrower
or any Subsidiary, which have not been previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent;

10. Schedule V attached hereto updates part 1 of Schedule 3.05 to the Credit Agreement and sets forth the street addresses of any new real property owned
or leased by the Borrower or any Subsidiary, which have not been previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent;

11. Schedule VT attached hereto sets forth the street addresses of any new locations of Collateral, which have not been previously disclosed to the
Administrative Agent;

12. Schedule VII attached hereto updates Schedule 3.01 to the Credit Agreement and sets forth the name and jurisdiction of formation, the jurisdiction in
which the Borrower and each Subsidiary of the Borrower is organized and qualified to do business, whether a Subsidiary is an Excluded Subsidiary, whether a
Subsidiary’s Capital Stock constitutes Excluded Assets, the classes series and par value, as applicable, of the Capital Stock of the Borrower and each Subsidiary,
and the owners of the Borrower’s and each Subsidiary’s Capital Stock, including the percentage of such Capital Stock owned by each such owner, all of which
have not been previously disclosed to the Administrative Agent; and

13. Schedule VIII attached hereto updates Schedule 6.03 to the Credit Agreement and sets forth any new PILOT Programs, which have not been previously
disclosed to the Administrative Agent.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]



The foregoing certifications, together with the information set forth in the schedules hereto and the documents delivered in connection with this
Compliance Certificate in support hereof are made and delivered this day of , 20

INERGY, L.P,, as the Borrower

By: INERGY GP, LLC,
its managing general partner

By

Name:
Title:



SCHEDULE I TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Compliance as of , (the “Compliance Date”) with
Sections 5.10, 6.01, 6.03, 6.04, 6.06 and 6.12 of the Credit Agreement
I. FINANCIAL COVENANTS (Section 6.12 of the Credit Agreement).
A. TOTAL LEVERAGE RATIO (Section 6.12(a) of the Credit Agreement).

(1) Total Funded Debt (other than Debt described in clause (i) of the definition of Debt set forth in the Credit Agreement) as of the
Compliance Date: $

(2) Consolidated EBITDA for the four fiscal quarters most recently ended:
(a) net income for such period: $

(b) amounts deducted in the computation thereof for (i) interest expense, (ii) federal, state and local income taxes and (iii)

depreciation and amortization: +$

(c) gains or losses from the sale of assets in the ordinary course of business: +/-$

(d) extraordinary non-cash gains or losses for such period: +$

(e) [pro forma adjustments related to Permitted Acquisitions]: + 3

(f) [amount of any Material Project Consolidated EBITDA Adjustments]: +$

(g) Consolidated EBITDA (Sum of Line A(2)(a) through Line A(2)(f)): =5
(3) Total Leverage Ratio (Ratio of Line A(1) to Line A(2)(g)): __ tol.00
(4) Maximum Total Leverage Ratio for any fiscal quarter: 4.75t0 1.00

B. MAXIMUM SENIOR SECURED LEVERAGE RATIO (Section 6.12(b) of the Credit Agreement).

(1) Senior Secured Funded Debt (other than Debt described in clause (i) of the definition of Debt set forth in the Credit Agreement)
as of the Compliance Date: $



II.

(2) Consolidated EBITDA as of the Compliance Date (Line (A)(2)(g)): $

(3) Senior Leverage Ratio (Ratio of Line B(1) to Line B(2)): __ tol.00
(4) Maximum Senior Leverage Ratio for any fiscal quarter: 3.00 to 1.00
MINIMUM INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO (Section 6.12(c) of the Credit Agreement).

(1) Consolidated EBITDA as of the Compliance Date (Line (A)(2)(g)): $

(2) Consolidated Interest Expense for the four fiscal quarters most recently ended:
(a) all interest in respect of Debt accrued during such period (whether or not actually paid during such period): $

(b) the net amount payable (or minus the net amount receivable) under interest rate Hedging Agreements accrued during such

period (whether or not actually paid or received during such period): +- $

(c) [pro forma adjustments related to Permitted Acquisitions]: +$

(d) Total: $
(3) Interest Coverage (Ratio of Line (C)(1) to Line (C)(2)(d)): _____ tol.00
(4) Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio for any fiscal quarter: 2.50 to 1.00

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

DEBT (Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreement). As of the Compliance Date, aggregate outstanding principal balance of all Debt (with respect to the Credit
Parties) not otherwise permitted by clauses (1) through (8) and (10) of the definition of Permitted Debt (Maximum: $50,000,000):
$

MERGERS; SALES OF ASSETS, ETC. (Section 6.03 of the Credit Agreement). Aggregate consideration received in connection with the sale of assets not
in the ordinary course of business (excluding transactions permitted by clauses (a) through (d) of Section 6.03(a) of the Credit Agreement) during the
portion of the Fiscal Year ending on the Compliance Date (Maximum: $50,000,000):

$

INVESTMENTS, LOANS, ADVANCES, GUARANTEES AND ACQUISITIONS (Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreement). As of the Compliance Date:



(1) Loans and advances to directors, employees and officers of the Borrower and the Subsidiaries for bona fide business purposes
(Maximum: $1,000,000): $

(2) Investments in Excluded Subsidiaries made after the Effective Date (Maximum: $100,000,000): $

(3) Aggregate investments not otherwise permitted under clauses (1) through (9) of Section 6.04(a) of the Credit Agreement during the
portion of the Fiscal Year ending on the Compliance Date (Maximum: $10,000,000): $

(4) Acquisitions, other than Permitted Acquisitions, acquisitions made in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices or
acquisitions made as part of a Capital Expenditure (Maximum: $25,000,000): $

RESTRICTED PAYMENTS. (Section 6.06 of the Credit Agreement).
(1) Cash distributions made to Borrower’s unit holders during the accounting period ending on the Compliance Date: $

(2) Available Cash (maximum cash distributions permitted to be made to Borrower’s unit holders during the accounting period ending on
the Compliance Date): $

[MORTGAGE AND VEHICLE TITLE REQUIREMENT. (Section 5.10 of the Credit Agreement).

(1) Percentage of aggregate book value of all Fee Owned Real Property of the Credit Parties in which the Administrative Agent has a

perfected Lien is at least 75%: Yes / No
(2) Percentage of aggregate book value of all motor vehicles of the Credit Parties in which the Administrative Agent has a perfected Lien

is at least 75%: Yes / No]!
APPLICABLE RATE
(1) Beginning on 2, the Pricing Level used to determine the Applicable Rate: Pricing Level ____

" For annual covenant compliance only commencing fiscal year 2010.
Insert date that is five days after delivery of the Compliance Certificate.



SCHEDULE II TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

New Applications to Register Patentable Inventions, Trademarks and Copyrights



SCHEDULE III TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

New Commercial Tort Claims



SCHEDULE IV TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Vehicle Identification Numbers of New Motor Vehicles



SCHEDULE V TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Street Addresses of New Real Property



SCHEDULE VI TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Street Addresses of New Locations of Collateral



SCHEDULE VII TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Information on Borrower and Subsidiaries



SCHEDULE VIII TO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Descriptions of New PILOT Programs



EXHIBIT F
FORM OF INCREASING LENDER SUPPLEMENT

INCREASING LENDER SUPPLEMENT, dated , 20 (this “Supplement”), by and among each of the signatories hereto, to the Credit
Agreement, dated as of November 24, 2009 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”), among
Inergy, L.P. (the “Borrower”), the Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.20 of the Credit Agreement, the Borrower has the right, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, to effectuate from
time to time an increase in the General Partnership Commitments under the Credit Agreement by requesting one or more Lenders to increase the amount of its
General Partnership Commitment;

WHEREAS, the Borrower has given notice to the Administrative Agent of its intention to increase the General Partnership Commitments pursuant to such
Section 2.20; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.20 of the Credit Agreement, the undersigned Increasing Lender now desires to increase the amount of its General
Partnership Commitment under the Credit Agreement by executing and delivering to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent this Supplement;

NOW, THEREFORE, each of the parties hereto hereby agrees as follows:

1. The undersigned Increasing Lender agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement, that on the date of this Supplement it shall have
its General Partnership Commitment increased by $[ ], thereby making the aggregate amount of its total General Partnership Commitments equal to

8L 1.
2. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing on and as of the date hereof.
3. Terms defined in the Credit Agreement shall have their defined meanings when used herein.
4. This Supplement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

5. This Supplement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so
executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same document.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused this Supplement to be executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer on the date first
above written.

[INSERT NAME OF INCREASING LENDER]

By:

Name:
Title:

Accepted and agreed to as of the date first written above:
INERGY, L.P.

By:
Name:
Title:

Acknowledged as of the date first written above:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
as Administrative Agent

By:
Name:
Title:




EXHIBIT G
FORM OF AUGMENTING LENDER SUPPLEMENT

AUGMENTING LENDER SUPPLEMENT, dated , 20 (this “Supplement”), to the Credit Agreement, dated as of November 24, 2009 (as
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”), among Inergy, L.P. (the “Borrower”), the Lenders party
thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (in such capacity, the “Administrative Agent”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Credit Agreement provides in Section 2.20 thereof that any bank, financial institution or other entity may extend General Partnership
Commitments under the Credit Agreement subject to the approval of the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, by executing and delivering to the Borrower
and the Administrative Agent a supplement to the Credit Agreement in substantially the form of this Supplement; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned Augmenting Lender was not an original party to the Credit Agreement but now desires to become a party thereto;
NOW, THEREFORE, each of the parties hereto hereby agrees as follows:

1. The undersigned Augmenting Lender agrees to be bound by the provisions of the Credit Agreement and agrees that it shall, on the date of this
Supplement, become a Lender for all purposes of the Credit Agreement to the same extent as if originally a party thereto, with a General Partnership Commitment
with respect to General Partnership Loans of $[ 1.

2. The undersigned Augmenting Lender (a) represents and warrants that it is legally authorized to enter into this Supplement; (b) confirms that it has
received a copy of the Credit Agreement, together with copies of the most recent financial statements delivered pursuant to Section 5.01 thereof, as applicable,
and has reviewed such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Supplement;
(c) agrees that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it
shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under the Credit Agreement or any other instrument or
document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto; (d) appoints and authorizes the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise
such powers and discretion under the Credit Agreement or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto as are delegated to the
Administrative Agent by the terms thereof, together with such powers as are incidental thereto; and (e) agrees that it will be bound by the provisions of the Credit
Agreement and will perform in accordance with its terms all the obligations which by the terms of the Credit Agreement are required to be performed by it as a
Lender.

3. The undersigned’s address for notices for the purposes of the Credit Agreement is as follows:

1

4. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants that no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing on and as of the date hereof.



5. Terms defined in the Credit Agreement shall have their defined meanings when used herein.
6. This Supplement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

7. This Supplement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so
executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same document.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has caused this Supplement to be executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer on the date first
above written.

[INSERT NAME OF AUGMENTING LENDER]

By:

Name:
Title:

Accepted and agreed to as of the date first written above:
INERGY, L.P.

By:
Name:
Title:

Acknowledged as of the date first written above:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
as Administrative Agent

By:
Name:
Title:




SCHEDULE 2.06

Existing Letters of Credit

LC# Issued Exp Date Amount Beneficiary
T-245331 1/11/2004 9/24/2010 982,500 AIG
CPCS-200353 9/1/2005 12/31/2009 4,000,000 Exxon
S-229731 2/21/2006 1/1/2010 25,000 PA Dept-Environmental Protection
CTCS-234192 2/9/2006 2/28/2010 8,358,149 Pacific Employers Ins Co
S-254079 4/13/2006 1/10/2010 33,764 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-254077 4/13/2006 1/10/2010 33,764 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-254076 4/13/2006 1/10/2010 33,764 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-282658 9/15/2006 1/10/2010 35,000 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-313297 1/25/2008 11/3/2010 40,000 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-727395 1/27/2009 1/15/2010 387,000 Old Republic Insurance-US Salt
S-647509 8/11/2005 3/8/2010 1,696,680 Tennessee Gas PL (thru 2011)
S-724134 4/17/2009 4/16/2011 59,830 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation
S-787316 7/29/2009 4/30/2010 880,000 Millennium PL
S-729100 9/10/2009 9/10/2010 40,000 NY Dept.-Environmental Conservation



Inergy Finance Corp.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Inergy Propane, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

SCHEDULE 3.01

Subsidiaries

Delaware

Subsidiary Guarantor

Common

$0.01 per share ($10.00)

Inergy, L.P. — 100%

No.

Delaware

Alabama
Arkansas
California
Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana

Towa
Kentucky
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri

New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Vermont
Virginia

West Virginia
Wisconsin

Subsidiary Guarantor
N/A

N/A

Inergy, L.P. — 100% Membership Interest

No.



Inergy Midstream, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

New York

Subsidiary Guarantor

N/A

N/A

Inergy, L.P. — 100% Membership Interest

No.



L&L Transportation, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Inergy Transportation, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana
Kentucky
Michigan
Ohio

Texas

West Virginia

Subsidiary Guarantor

N/A

N/A

Inergy Propane, LLC — 100% Membership Interest

No.

Delaware

Alabama
Arkansas
Georgia
Indiana
Michigan
Mississippi
New York
Ohio
Pennsylvania
South Carolina
Tennessee
Virginia
West Virginia
Wisconsin

Subsidiary Guarantor
N/A

N/A

Inergy Propane, LLC — 100% Membership Interest



Inergy Sales & Service, Inc.

Jurisdiction of Organization Delaware

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign Alabama

Qualification Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kentucky
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
North Carolina
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Vermont
West Virginia
Wisconsin

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary Subsidiary Guarantor
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of Common
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital $1.00 per share ($1,000)
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital Inergy Propane, LLC — 100% Membership Interest
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute No.
Excluded Assets?



Inergy Gas Marketing, LI.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Stellar Propane Service, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

Subsidiary Guarantor

N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LLC — 100% Membership Interest

No.

Delaware

Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana

Towa
Kentucky
Maine
Michigan
New Hampshire
New York
Ohio
Pennsylvania
Vermont
West Virginia
Wisconsin

Subsidiary Guarantor
N/A

N/A

Inergy Propane, LLC — 100% Membership Interest

No.



10.

Finger Lakes LPG Storage, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Inergy Storage, Inc.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

New York
Pennsylvania
Subsidiary Guarantor
N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LL.C — 100% Membership Interest

No.

Delaware

Subsidiary Guarantor

Common

$1.00 per share ($1,000)

Inergy Midstream, LLC — 100% Membership Interest



11.

12.

Central New York Oil And Gas Company, L.L.C.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

New York

Pennsylvania

Subsidiary Guarantor

N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LLC — 99.9% Membership Interest
Inergy Storage, Inc. - .01% Membership Interest

No.

Delaware

New York

Subsidiary Guarantor

N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LLC — 100% Membership Interest



13.

14.

US Salt, L1.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Inergy Canada Company

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

Kansas

New York
Pennsylvania
Subsidiary Guarantor
N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LL.C — 100% Membership Interest

No.

Nova Scotia

Alberta
Ontario

Excluded Subsidiary

$0.01

Inergy Propane, LLC — 100%

No.



15.

16.

Steuben Gas Storage Company

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Adrian Associates, L.P.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

New York General Partnership

Excluded Subsidiary

N/A

N/A

Arlington Storage Company, LLC — 25% Partnership Interest
Arlington Associates, L.P. — 75% Partnership Interest

Yes

Massachusetts

Excluded Subsidiary

N/A

N/A

Arlington Storage Company, LLC - 33.394% Limited Partnership Interest
Adrian Partners — 66.606% Limited Partnership Interest

Yes



17.

18.

Arlington Associates, L.P.

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Escondido Gas Storage, LL.C

Jurisdiction of Organization

Jurisdiction(s) of Foreign
Qualification

Type of Subsidiary (i.e., Subsidiary
Guarantor or Excluded Subsidiary)

Description of Class and Series of
Capital Stock issued by Subsidiary

Par Value of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock

Owner(s) of Subsidiary’s Capital
Stock and Percentage of Capital
Stock owned by each Owner

Does Capital Stock constitute
Excluded Assets?

Delaware

Excluded Subsidiary

N/A

N/A

Arlington Storage Company, LLC - 1% Limited Partnership Interest
Adrian Partners — 99% Limited Partnership Interest

Yes

Texas

Excluded Subsidiary

N/A

N/A

Inergy Midstream, LLC — 75% Membership Interest
Torch E & P Company — 25% Membership Interest

Yes



SCHEDULE 3.05
Properties
Part 1

See Attached.

Part 2
See Attached.



Part A
of Schedule 3.05

[Attached]



PartB
of Schedule 3.05

[Attached]



Alabama
Arkansas
California
Connecticut
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana

Towa
Kentucky
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri

New Hampshire
New Jersey
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Vermont
Virginia

West Virginia
Wisconsin

SCHEDULE 5.10

Location of Collateral



6.875% Senior Notes due December 15, 2014
8.25% Senior Notes due March 1, 2016
8.75% Senior Notes due March 1, 2016

Bank Credit Agreement
ASC Credit Agreement

Payable under IPC Seller Notes-Wallace

Payable under Johnson Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Mt Vernon Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Direct Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Hometown Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Gaylord Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Petersen Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Groves Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Steinheiser Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Propane Sales Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Bayless Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Atlas Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Graeber Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Delta Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Homestead Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Nittany Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Country Gas Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Deyo Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Fisher Hoosier Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Batesville Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Columbus Butane Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Hometown2 Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Mid-Eastern Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Sunbelt Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Stevens Covenant not to Compete
Payable under F&S Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Quality Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Bay Cities Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Valley Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Decock Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Riverside Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Capitol Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Rice Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Little Covenant not to Compete

Payable under Deerfield Valley Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Blu Gas Covenant not to Compete
Payable under Newtons Gas Covenant not to Compete
Payable under FG White Covenant not to Compete
Payable under First National Covenant not to Compete

Total Covenants not to Compete of 10/31/09

SCHEDULE 6.01

Existing Debt

425,000,000.00
400,000,000.00
225,000,000.00

14,417,647.00
8,328,768.00

11,770.00
33,121.00
231,849.00
82,803.00
41,667.00
62,234.00
99,818.00
255,534.00
156,632.00
399,450.00
148,148.00
1,849,151.00
76,639.00
106,996.00
331,213.00
9,259.00
1,069,959.00
52,064.00
156,143.00
31,482.00
398,148.00
39,927.00
229,866.00
103,084.00
574,664.00
937,033.00
85,560.00
205,826.00
695,818.00
154,636.00
298,091.00
339,153.00
1,654,991.00
1,172,230.00
1,561,722.00
2,498,755.00
671,008.00
885,082.00

51,108.00

17,762,634.00



SCHEDULE 6.02

Permitted Liens

1. Liens created pursuant to that certain First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 16, 2003 among Steuben Gas Storage Company
and Dexia Credit Local, New York Agency, as further amended by Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2.

2. See, also, attached.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Department
of State: UCC/Federal 4 Active Financing Statements No
INERGY, L.P.  DE Division Of  Tax Liens 1072972009 Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
e Federa] 43576529 JPMorgan
INERGY,L.P. DE o8 . LR 101292009 12117/04 Chase Bank,  All assets of Debtor.
HIsion ax Liens Cont. 7/13/2009  N.A.!
Corporations
Department
43576537 JPMorgan
: All ts of Debtor.
INERGY, L.P. DE °Df4 State: of ITJCCL/FEderal 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Chase Bank, . 050 S0
vision OF — Tax Liens Cont. 7/13/2009  N.A2 g uifily Ting
Corporations
Department
of State: UCC/Federal 51984864 Marlin Leasing .
INERGY, L.P. DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/29/2009 6/28/05 Corp. Leased equipment.
Corporations
Trucks and tractors; states that “we do not believe
this transaction is subject to the Uniform
Department M&I Commercial Code bit is filed in the event it is
of State: UCC/Federal 2009 2805007 Equipment subject to the UCC and in such event secured party
INERGY, L.~ DE Division Of  Tax Liens 1072972009 8/31/09 Finance shall have a purchase money security interest.”
Corporations Company Additional Debtors:
Inergy Propane, LLC
L &L Transportation, LLC
New Castle Federal Tax
INERGY, L.P. DE County . 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Liens
Recorder
Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
INERGY, L.P. MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.
Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
gew Eastle State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY, L.P. pE oW Lien/Pending  11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
Superior -
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
INERGY, L.P. DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson Pending Suits No Pending Suits
INERGY, L.P. MO County 11/1/2009
o and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY, L.P. DE usDC - Pending Suit 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
Delaware and Judgments No Judgments
USsDC -
Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
INERGY, L.P. MO District of and Judgments 11/11/2009 No Judgments
Missouri
Department of
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal 40 Active Financing Statements
LLC DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/30/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of 3006228 4 Banc of S o 1fnﬁeeifﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁf&ﬁﬁ
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal America dutpment, .
DE L . 10/30/2009 12/19/02 . thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing & . ; -
. Cont. 8/22/07 . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations Capital, LLC L . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department of 3006230 0 Banc of Spﬁf lfrlleetljltm;(s:kdsezzfil)a:iaf)}rllegcé;l?dllllllir};
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal America quip i .
DE R . 10/30/2009 12/19/02 . thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing & . - -
. Cont. 8/22/07 . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations Capital, LLC i . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department of Banc of Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal 3059340 3 Ame.rlca equipment, as described on. Schedule A
DE A . 10/30/2009 2/10/03 Leasing & thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of Tax Liens . . - .
Corporations Cont. 11/20/07 Capital, Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P L.L.C. provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.




Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Department Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 3084514 2 Fleet Capital cdUiPment, as described on Schedule A
DE . . 10/30/2009 3/27/03 . thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Corporation . : -
. Cont. 1/24/08 Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations L . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department Banc of Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 3127221 3 America equipment, as described on Schedule A
DE . . 10/30/2009 4/29/03 . thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing & . - -
. Cont. 2/26/08 . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations Capital, LLC . . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 8/21/03 National t}?erepto rc’)cee ds of foresoin
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Cont. 7/2/08 Leasing \ereto, p gomg.
. . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations Cont. 7/31/08 Corporation - . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department 4013623 6 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . i 10/30/2009 12/29/03 . L . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
. Cont. 10/21/08 . . L
Corporations Corporation  Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department 4045496 9 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . . 10/30/2009 1/30/04 . L . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
. Cont. 12/4/08 . . . .
Corporations Corporation ~ Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department 4045498 5 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . . 10/30/2009 1/30/04 . L . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Cont. 12/4/08 Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Corporations ) Corporation  Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department 4103171 7 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . . 10/30/2009 3/31/04 . L . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
. Cont. 2/19/09 . . L
Corporations Corporation ~ Note: it appears that the continuation was not

filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department of 4137404 2 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . . 10/30/2009 4/30/04 . . . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
. Cont. 3/12/09 . . . .
Corporations Corporation ~ Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
Department of 4176502 5 LaSalle thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
DE . . 10/30/2009 6/14/04 . . . .
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
. Cont. 5/8/09 . . . .
Corporations Corporation  Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by
the previous Secured Party.
Department of 4314243 9 Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal 11/3/04 Fleet Capital  dUiPment as described on Schedule A
DE L . 10/30/2009 [was scheduled to . thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens Corporation . - -
Corporations lapse as of Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P 11/3/09] provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department of
) 4357654 5 JPMorgan
EI%RGY PROPANE, DE ]S)t.at_e 3 of }FJC(L/Federal 10/30/2009 12/17/04 Chase Bank, All assets of Debtor.
ivision ax Liens Cont. 7/24/09 NAS
Corporations
Department of
4357655 2
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal JPMorgan sy} Assets of Debtor.
LLC DE Division Of  Tax Li 1073012009 12/17/04 Chase Bank, transmitting utility filin,
IVISIOH. ax Liens Cont. 7/4/09 N.A.4 g y g
Corporations

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.
Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.



Original File Date
Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings

Specified trucks and attached ancillary

Department equipment, as described on Schedule A
INERGY PROPANE, | of State: UCC/Federal oo o0 5036549 5 Fleet Capital t}?:rfw e Oflfore o "
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 1/28/05 Corporation  —orer: P gomng. .
Corporations Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
Department equipment, as described on Schedule A
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 5036556 0 Fleet Capital tt?ereio r(’)cee ds of foregoin
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 1/28/05 Corporation oo P gomng.
Corporations Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
Department equipment, as described on Schedule A
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 5080438 6 Fleet Capital t}?er 5{ o rc;)cee ds of foregoin
LLC Division Of = Tax Liens 3/9/05 Corporation . P g & -
Corporations Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
All property delivered in bailment or
Department consigned pursuant to specified
INERGY PROPANE, DE Of. S'ta.te: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 52203728 Mieco Inc. Bailment/Consignment/Security Agreement
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 7/18/05
. between Debtor and Secured Party.
Corporations s e
Notice filing.
Department Financed sale of goods, including, but not
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 5371516 7 Whirlpool limited to inventory and equipment.
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 11/28/05 Corporation ~ Has copy of executed Security Agreement
Corporations between Debtor and Secured Party attached.
Specified motor vehicles with attached
Department Banc of equipment, as described on Schedule A
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 6055015 2 America tl?eurlepto rc’)cee ds of foregoin
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 2/8/06 Leasing & \ereto, p gomg.
Corporations Capital. LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P prtal, provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 6299725 2 Filing for informational purposes only
LLC DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/30/2009 8/29/06 US Bancorp covering specified leased equipment.

Corporations



INERGY PROPANE,
LLC

INERGY PROPANE,
LLC

DE

DE

Department of

State: UCC/Federal

Division Of  Tax Liens 10/30/2009
Corporations

Department of

State: UCC/Federal

Division Of  Tax Liens 10/30/2009
Corporations

6378508 6
10/30/06

6414467 1
11/29/06

Les Schwab
Tire Centers
of Nevada,
Inc.

Banc of
America
Leasing &
Capital, LLC

Contractual Security Agreement in all present
and future products and goods and proceeds
thereof, purchased by Debtor from Secured
Party including/not limited to specified items
(tires, wheels and related items).

Specified service trucks and tractors with
attached equipment, as described therein,
proceeds of foregoing.

Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Contractual Security Agreement in all
Department of Les Schwab present and future products and goods
INERGY PROPANE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2007 0690841 Warehouse and proceeds thereof, purchased by
LLC Division Of Tax Liens 2/22/07 Debtor from Secured Party including/not
. Center, Inc. .. JPR .
Corporations limited to specified items (tires, wheels
and related items).
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of Banc of attached equipment, as described therein,
INERGY PROPANE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2007 3797957 America oceeds (?f f([))re 01;1 ’
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 10/9/07 Leasing & pr gomng. .
Corporations Capital. LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P pla provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Department of
INERGY PROPANE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2008 0222156  Marlin Leasing Precautionary filing covering specified
LLC Division Of Tax Liens 1/17/08 Corp items of leased equipment.
Corporations
Department of Vision
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal 2008 1304540 . . cpe 1 .
LLC DE Division Of Tax Liens 10/30/2009 4/14/08 Financial Specified items of equipment (software).
. Group, Inc.
Corporations
Department of Vision
INERGY PROPANE, State: UCC/Federal 2008 1304557 . . p 1 .
LLC DE Division Of Tax Liens 10/30/2009 4/14/08 Financial Specified items of equipment (software).
. Group, Inc.
Corporations
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of Banc of attached equipment, as described therein
INERGY PROPANE, pp  Stte: UCC/Federal |0 o000 20081653052 America s (?f ff)’re ot ’
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 5/13/08 Leasing & pr golng. .
Corporations Capital, LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
’ provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of Banc of attached equipment, as described therein
INERGY PROPANE, pp  State: UCC/Federal |0 oo 2008 1653326 America e :
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 5/13/08 Leasing & pr going. .
Corporations Caital. LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P pral, provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of SunTrust attached equipment, as described therein,
INERGY PROPANE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2008 1920493 Equipment oceeds (?f f([))re 01;1 ’
LLC Division Of ~ Tax Liens 6/5/08 Finance & pr goms. .
Corporations Leasing Cor Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
p & P: provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of SunTrust attached equipment, as described therein
INERGY PROPANE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2008 1920741 Equipment roceeds c?f fcI:re 0';1 ’
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 6/5/08 Finance & p going.

Corporations

Leasing Corp.

Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department SunTrust attached equipment, as described therein
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2008 1920881 Equipment roceeds (?f fg e 0‘;1 ’
LLC Division Of Tax Liens 6/5/08 Finance & p . going. . -
Corporations Leasing Cor Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P g Lorp- provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
cor Sl popme e it
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2009 0001583 America ?ocze ds o’f foregoin ?
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 1/2/09 Leasing & gomng. N
Corporations Caital, LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P prtal, provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
cor S i nd et
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2009 1161832 America A thereto d - cf)cee ds’o f foreoin
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 4/3/09 Leasing & . P regoing.
Corporations Capital, LLC Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
’ provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Trucks and tractors; states that “we do not
believe this transaction is subject to the
Uniform Commercial Code bit is filed in the
Department Mé&I event it is subject to the UCC and in such event
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2009 2805007 Equipment secured part ]shall have a purchase mone
LLC Division Of ~ Tax Liens 8/31/09 Finance ec party sua P Y
Corporations Company security interest.
P Additional Debtors:
Inergy Propane, LLC
L &L Transportation, LLC
Department First National All equipment identified on Exhibit A thereto
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 2009 3142707 . qup > :
DE L . 10/30/2009 Capital pursuant to specified Master Equipment Lease
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 10/1/09 .
. Corporation ~ between Debtor and Secured Party.
Corporations
Department . . . . o a
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 2009 3156947 ~ [irst National - All equipment identified on Exhibit A thereto
DE . . 10/30/2009 Capital pursuant to specified Master Equipment Lease
LLC Division Of = Tax Liens 10/2/09 .
. Corporation  between Debtor and Secured Party
Corporations
Department First National All equipment identified on Exhibit A thereto
INERGY PROPANE, of State: UCC/Federal 2009 3320394 . quip e .
DE L . 10/30/2009 Capital pursuant to specified Master Equipment Lease
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 10/6/09 .
. Corporation  between Debtor and Secured Party.
Corporations
Department Equipment leased under specific Lease
INERGY PROPANE, DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/30/2009 2009 3341309 Commerce Schedule to Master Lease Agreement between
LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 10/16/09 Bank, N.A. Debtor and Secured Party.

Corporations

Precautionary filing.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
INERGY PROPANE New Castle b eral Tax No Federal Tax
’ DE County . 11/12/2009 .
LLC Liens Liens
Recorder
No Federal Tax
Jackson Federal Tax .
INERGY PROPANE.© \10 County Lien/State Tax  11/1/2009 1enS No State
LLC . Tax Liens No
Recorder Lien/Judgments
Judgments
New Castle State Tax No State Tax
INERGY PROPANE, — , County Lien/Pending  11/52009 L1e1SNO
LLC Superior . Pending Suits No
Suit/Judgments
County Judgments
New Castle
INERGY PROPANE, County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
LLC DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson . . . .
INERGY PROPANE, MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 No Pending Suits
LLC o and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY PROPANE, usDC - Pending Suit No Pending Suits
LLC DE Delaware and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
UsDC -
INERGY PROPANE, Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
LLC MO District of and Judgments 1171172009 No Judgments
Missouri
Department 7 Active
INERGY of gtam' UCC/Federal Financing
TRANSPORTATION, DE o . 10/29/2009 Statements No
Division Of  Tax Liens
LLC . Federal Tax
Corporations .
Liens
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A
DT et g Dol e ol o
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE °) ~W@€ ) 10/29/2009 12/19/02 Cont. : P P y fng
Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing & provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
LLC . 8/22/07 . . . .
Corporations Capital, LLC  Note: it appears that the continuation was

not filed by the Secured Party of record, but
by the previous Secured Party.



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Debartment LaSalle Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY of gtate UCC/Federal 32342841 National equipment, as described on Schedule A thereto,
TRANSPORTATION, DE o . 10/29/2009 8/21/03 Cont. . proceeds of foregoing.
Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing . . -
LLC . 7/31/08 . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations Corporation L . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Specified trucks and attached ancillary
equipment, as described on Schedule A thereto,
INERGY Dfeg:lrttn?ent S Federa] 41765009 ;a?allel g;)c;eds of fcirtegomg. y .
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE 2 >H@ CeCera 10/29/2009  6/14/04 Cont. ationa 'ec pursuant o precautionary fiting
Division Of  Tax Liens Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
LLC . 5/8/09 . . L
Corporations Corporation  Note: it appears that the continuation was not
filed by the Secured Party of record, but by the
previous Secured Party.
Department 43142454 SPEFlfIEd trucks anq attached ancillary
INERGY . equipment, as described on Schedule A thereto,
of State: UCC/Federal 11/3/04 Fleet Capital .
TRANSPORTATION, DE . . 10/29/2009 . proceeds of foregoing.
Division Of  Tax Liens [scheduled to Corporation . . -
LLC Corporations lapse on 11/3/09] Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P P provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
INERGY ];egfr::?em U Federal 43576586 JPMorgan
TRANSPORTATION,  DE >0 (o =7 %% 10292009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank, Al assets of Debtor.
LLC Hvision axLiens 7/14/09 N.AS
Corporations
Department
INERGY of State: UCC/Federal 43576594 JPMorgan All assets of debtor
TRANSPORTATION, DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Cont. Chase Bank, transmitting utility filin
LLC v . 7/14/09 N.AS & Y &
Corporations
Department Specified trucks and attached ancillary
INERGY . . equipment, as described on Schedule A thereto,
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE O St UCC/Federal ) qp009 90365347 Fleet Capital = | ceds of foregoing.
Division Of  Tax Liens 1/28/05 Corporation . . -
LLC . Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
INERGY New Castle
TRANSPORTATION,  DE County Federal Tax 11/12/2009 N Federal Tax
Liens Liens
LLC Recorder
INERGY Jackson Federal Tax E&f:;egaslt?:
TRANSPORTATION, MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009 .
. Tax Liens No
LLC Recorder Lien/Judgments
Judgments
INERGY gswnf“de State Tax EZ:;?;ZTE'X
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE oY Lien/Pending  11/5/2009 = > °
Superior . Pending Suits No
LLC Suit/Judgments
County Judgments
INERGY gzl‘JVntcaSﬂe Pending Suits No Pending Suits
TRANSPORTATION, DE Y & 11/10/2009 g
Chancery and Judgments No Judgments
LLC
Court
INERGY Jackson . . . .
TRANSPORTATION, MO County Esgc}ﬁlf IS;E:;S 11/1/2009 Eg ?Egd;‘egnfsuns
LLC Circuit Court & &
INERGY . . . .
TRANSPORTATION, DE UsDC - Pending Suit 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
LLC Delaware and Judgments No Judgments
INERGY &SDtC ) Pending Suit No Pending Suit:
TRANSPORTATION, MO ‘ooem ending sul 11/11/2009 0 “ending suits
District of and Judgments No Judgments
LLC . .
Missouri
Department 11 Active
L&L . Financing
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE O St UCC/Federal 79/5009  Statements No
Division Of  Tax Liens
LLC . Federal Tax
Corporations .
Liens
LaSalle Specified tractors and attached accessory
National equipment, as described on Schedule A
L&L oS UCCFederl 31272197 U ied prsuant 0 precautonany il
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE 2 > ) 10/29/2009  4/29/03 Cont. P P P yume
Division Of = Tax Liens Banc of provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
LLC . 2/26/08 . . L
Corporations America Note: it appears that the continuation was
Leasing & not filed by the Secured Party of record, but

Capital, LLC

by the previous Secured Party.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Specified trucks, as described on Schedule
Department A thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
L&L of gtate' UCC/Federal 40136806 LaSalle National Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
TRANSPORTATION, DE o . 10/29/2009 12/29/03 Cont.  Leasing provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Division Of  Tax Liens . . . .
LLC Corporations 10/21/08 Corporation Note: it appears that the continuation was
P not filed by the Secured Party of record, but
by the previous Secured Party.
Specified tractors and attached accessory
equipment, as described on Schedule A
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE 2 >f® ; 10/29/2009 1/30/04 Cont.  Leasing P P y thing
Division Of  Tax Liens . provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
LLC . 12/4/08 Corporation . . .
Corporations Note: it appears that the continuation was
not filed by the Secured Party of record, but
by the previous Secured Party.
Department Specified tractors and attached accessory
L&L of gtate' UCC/Federal 41797499 Fleet Capital equipment, as described on Schedule A
TRANSPORTATION, DE . . 10/29/2009 6/17/04 Cont. p thereto, proceeds of foregoing.
Division Of  Tax Liens Corporation . - -
LLC . 5/8/09 Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
Corporations . . .
provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
L&L Department JPMorgan Chase
of State: UCC/Federal 43576602 Bank, N.A.,as  All assets of Debtor.
EESNSPORTATION’ DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Administrative ~ Note: is due to lapse on 12/17/09.
Corporations Agent
La&L Dfegf Tn{lem UCC/Federal 43576610 LPM; rl%IaZChase All assets of Debtor.
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE 2 > receral 10/29/2009 an ¥ 8 Note: s due to lapse on 12/17/09.
Division Of  Tax Liens 12/17/04 Administrative - e g
LLC . transmitting utility filing
Corporations Agent
L&L Department Specified vehicles, as described on Schedule
TRANSPORTATION, DE of' S.ta'te: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 50365719 Fleet CaPltal A thereto, proceeds of foregomg.' .
Division Of  Tax Liens 1/28/05 Corporation Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
LLC . . . .
Corporations provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Trucks and tractors; states that “we do not
believe this transaction is subject to the
Uniform Commercial Code bit is filed in the
L&L Department M&I Equipment event it is subject to the UCC and in such
TRANSPORTATION, DE Of. S.ta'te: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2009 2805007 Finance event secured party shall have a purchase
Division Of  Tax Liens 8/31/09 o »
LLC . Company money security interest.
Corporations

Additional Debtors:
Inergy Propane, LLC
Inergy, L.P.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
All equipment identified on Exhibit A
Department thereto pursuant to specified Master
L&L . First National Equipment Lease between Debtor and
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE O S&® UCC/Federal 7910009 20093142707 o ial Secured Party
Division Of Tax Liens 10/1/09 . ..
LLC Corporations Corporation  Additional Debtors:
P Inergy Sales & Service, Inc.
Inergy Propane, LLC
All equipment identified on Exhibit A
Department thereto pursuant to specified Master
L&L . First National Equipment Lease between Debtor and
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE O St UCC/Federal 795009 20093156947 o, ial Secured Party
Division Of  Tax Liens 10/2/09 . ..
LLC Corporations Corporation  Additional Debtors:
P Inergy Sales & Service, Inc.
Inergy Propane, LLC
All equipment identified on Exhibit A
thereto pursuant to specified Master
Department . . Equipment Lease between Debtor and
L&L First National
of State: UCC/Federal 2009 3320394 . Secured Party
EE?NSPORTATION’ DE  Division Of  Tax Liens 1072972009 1 0609 giflfrlaﬁon Additional Debtors:
Corporations P Inergy Sales & Service, Inc. (filed as
“Energy Sales 7 Service, Inc)
Inergy Propane, LLC
L&L New Castle Federal Tax
TRANSPORTATION, DE County . 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Liens
LLC Recorder
L&L Jackson Federal Tax .
TRANSPORTATION, MO County Lien/State Tax  11/1/2009 ?:XFSEZ‘;&;I?}‘U?‘EZES State
LLC Recorder Lien/Judgments g
L&L lgsrnfaSﬂe State Tax No State Tax Liens No Pendin:
TRANSPORTATION, DE y Lien/Pending 11/5/2009 . g
Superior . Suits No Judgments
LLC Suit/Judgments
County
L&L gce);vn?asﬂe Pending Suits
TRANSPORTATION, DE y & 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits No Judgments
Chancery and Judgments
LLC
Court
L&L Jackson Pending Suits
TRANSPORTATION, MO County & 11/1/2009 No Pending Suits No Judgments

LLC

Circuit Court

and Judgments



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
L&L Pending Suit . .
TRANSPORTATION, ~ DE UoDC¢- and 11/10/2009 O Pending Suits
Delaware No Judgments
LLC Judgments
L&L &?sjtgrr-l Pending Suit No Pending Suits
TRANSPORTATION, MO . and 11/11/2009 &
District of No Judgments
LLC . . Judgments
Missouri
Department of 7.ACUYE
INERGY SALES & State: UCC/Federal Financing
SERVICE, INC. PE Division Of  TaxLiens 10292009 Statements No
. Federal Tax
Corporations .
Liens
Department of
. 43576560 JPMorgan
INERGY SALES & pg e UCC/Federal 795009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank, Al assets of Debtor.
SERVICE, INC. Division Of Tax Liens
. 7/14/09 N.A7
Corporations
Department of
INERGY SALES & pp St UCC/Federal 0o o0 ‘1‘;’/51773(5)28@[“ Jc?fszrgBaa‘; . Allassets of Debtor.
SERVICE, INC. Division Of  Tax Liens ’ ’ transmitting utility filing
. 7/14/09 N.A8
Corporations
Specified service trucks and tractors with
Department of Suntrust attached equipment, as described therein
INERGY SALES & DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2008 1936473 Equipment roceeds c?f f([)) e 01;1 ’
SERVICE, INC. Division Of Tax Liens 6/6/08 Finance & P . going. . -
Corporations Leasing Cor Filed pursuant to precautionary filing
P g ~orp. provisions of Uniform Commercial Code.
Trucks and tractors; states that “we do not
believe this transaction is subject to the
Uniform Commercial Code bit is filed in the
Department of M&I event it is subject to the UCC and in such
INERGY SALES & DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2009 2805007 Equipment event secured party shall have a purchase
SERVICE, INC. Division Of = Tax Liens 8/31/09 Finance money security interest.”
Corporations Company Additional Debtors:
Inergy Propane, LLC
Inergy, L.P.

L & L Transportation, LLC

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
All equipment identified on Exhibit A
thereto pursuant to specified Master
Department First National Equipment Lease between Debtor and
INERGY SALES & DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2009 3142707 Cabital S:e:lc Sed Part
SERVICE, INC. Division Of  Tax Liens 10/1/09 priat e Py
Corporations Corporation  Additional Debtors:
P Inergy Propane, LL.C
L & L Transportation, LLC
All equipment identified on Exhibit A
thereto pursuant to specified Master
Department First National Equipment Lease between Debtor and
INERGY SALES & DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2009 3156947 Canital Sgcu[r)e d Part
SERVICE, INC. Division Of  Tax Liens 10/2/09 prat » Y
Corporations Corporation  Additional Debtors:
Inergy Propane, LLC
L & L Transportation, LLC
Department Equipment leased under specific Lease
INERGY SALES & DE of State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2009 3341432 Commerce Schedule to Master Lease Agreement
SERVICE, INC. Division Of  Tax Liens 10/16/09 Bank, N.A. between Debtor and Secured Party.
Corporations Precautionary filing.
New Castle
INERGY SALES & Federal Tax .
SERVICE, INC. DE County Liens 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Recorder
INERGY SALES & Jackson F.ederal Tax No Federal Tax. Liens
MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
SERVICE, INC. .
Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY SALES & pg Couny Lien/Pending  11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
SERVICE, INC. Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY SALES & County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
SERVICE, INC. DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
INERGY SALES & Pending Suits No Pending Suits
SERVICE, INC. MO County and Judgments 1 /Y29%% No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY SALES & uUsDC - Pending Suit No Pending Suits
SERVICE, INC. DE Delaware and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
UsDC -
INERGY SALES & Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
SERVICE, INC. MO District of and Judgments 1171172009 No Judgments
Missouri
Department of
INERGY FINANCE State: UCC/Federal 2 Active Financing Statements
CORP. DE Division Of  Tax Liens 10/29/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of
. 43576487 JPMorgan
INERGY FINANCE pE St UCC/Federal —79/5009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank,  All assets of Debtor
CORP. Division Of  Tax Liens
. 7/14/09 N.A9
Corporations
Department of
INERGY FINANCE State: UCC/Federal 43576495 JPMorgan 1} assets of Debtor
DE A . 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Cont. Chase Bank, . R,
CORP. Division Of  Tax Liens transmitting utility filing
. 7/13/09 N.A.10
Corporations
New Castle
INERGY FINANCE DE  County Federal Tax 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
CORP. Liens
Recorder
Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
ICI\SZSDGY FINANCE MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
) Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY FINANCE pg Couny Lien/Pending  11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
CORP. Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY FINANCE County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
CORP. DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings

Jackson . .

i i No Pending Suit:

INERGY FINANCE MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits
CORP. oo and Judgments No Judgments

Circuit Court
INERGY FINANCE UsDC - Pending Suit No Pending Suits
CORP. DE Delaware and Judgments 1171072009 No Judgments

UsDC -
INERGY FINANCE Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
CORP, MO Districtof  and Judgments /12999 No judgments

Missouri

Department of
STELLAR PROPANE DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2 Active Financing Statements
SERVICE, LLC Division Of Tax Liens No Federal Tax Liens

Corporations

Department of

. 43576628 JPMorgan
STELLARPROPANE — pp  State: UCC/Federal ) 79/2009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank, Al assets of Debtor
SERVICE, LLC Division Of Tax Liens
. 7/14/09 N.A1

Corporations

Department of
STELLAR PROPANE State: UCC/Federal 43576636 JPMorgan - ajj assets of Debtor

DE L . 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank, L S,
SERVICE, LLC Division Of Tax Liens transmitting utility filing
. 7/14/09 N.A.12

Corporations

New Castle
STELLAR PROPANE Federal Tax .
SERVICE, LLC DE County Liens 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens

Recorder
STELLAR PROPANE Jackson ,T,EdeLré,ﬂ IStat No Federal Tax Liens

MO County X LIGVST® 4112009 No State Tax Liens

SERVICE, LLC Tax

Recorder No Judgments

Lien/Judgments

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings

New Castle .

State Tax No State Tax Liens
STELLAR PROPANE pE  County Lien/Pending 11/5/2009  No Pending Suits
SERVICE, LLC Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
i i No Pending Suit

STELLAR PROPANE DE County Pending Suits 11/10/2009 o Pending Suits
SERVICE, LLC Chancery and Judgments No Judgments

Court
STELLAR PROPANE MO Jg‘;‘;ﬁi’“ Pending Suits /12009 N0 Pending Suits
SERVICE, LLC ounty and Judgments No Judgments

Circuit Court
STELLAR PROPANE DE USDC - Pending Suit and 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
SERVICE, LLC Delaware Judgments No Judgments

uUSsDC -
STELLAR PROPANE Western Pending Suit and No Pending Suits
SERVICE, LLC MO District of Judgments 117112009 No Judgments

Missouri

Department of
INERGY MIDSTREAM, DE St.at.e:. U.CC/Federal Tax 10/29/2009 2 Active Financing Statements
LLC Division Of Liens No Federal Tax Liens

Corporations

Department of

. 43576461 JPMorgan
EIECRGY MIDSTREAM, * pp ]S;fvtfs'ion of EISES/ Federal Tax 1 0,79/5009 12/17/04 Cont.  Chase Bank, Al assets of Debtor.
. 7/14/09 N.A.13

Corporations

Department of
INERGY MIDSTREAM, State: UCC/Federal Tax 43576479 JPMorgan All assets of Debtor.

DE . . 10/29/2009 12/17/04 Cont. Chase Bank, e e e

LLC Division Of Liens 2113/09 NA 14 transmitting utility filing

Corporations

Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.
Note: the secured party was originally JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. This was changed as the result of information listed in
connection with an amendment filed by UCC Direct Services to change the address of the secured party.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
New Castle
INERGY Federal Tax .
MIDSTREAM, LLC DE County Liens 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Recorder
Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
il\]i]éRGY MIDSTREAM, MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009 No State Tax Liens
Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY MIDSTREAM, ), County Lien/Pending 11/5/2009  No Pending Suits
LLC Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY MIDSTREAM, County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
LLC DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
i i No Pending Suit
INERGY MIDSTREAM, MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits
LLC o and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY MIDSTREAM, UsDC - Pending Suit and No Pending Suits
LLC DE Delaware Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
usDC -
INERGY MIDSTREAM, Western Pending Suit and No Pending Suits
LLC MO District of Judgments /1172009 No Judgments
Missouri
Department of
INERGY STORAGE, State: UCC/Federal Tax 2 Active Financing Statements
INC. DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY STORAGE, State: UCC/Federal Tax 52958057 Bank, N.A., as
INC. DE  DivisionOf  Liens 1072872009 g, >3/05 Administrative 111 3ssets of Debtor.
Corporations Agent



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY STORAGE, DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 53006955 Bank, N.A., as All assets of Debtor.
INC. Division Of  Tax Liens 9/28/05 Administrative  transmitting utility filing
Corporations Agent
New Castle
INERGY STORAGE, DE County Federal Tax 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
INC. Liens
Recorder
Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
%ERGY STORAGE, MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009 No State Tax Liens
’ Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY STORAGE, pg Counw Lien/Pending  11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
INC. Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY STORAGE, County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
INC. DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
i i No Pending Suit
INERGY STORAGE, MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits
INC. oo and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY STORAGE, UsDC - Pending Suit No Pending Suits
INC. DE Delaware and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
USDC -
INERGY STORAGE, Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
INC. MO District of and Judgments L/L1/2009 g Judgments
Missouri
Department of
INERGY STAGECOACH State: UCC/Federal 2 Financing Statements
II, LLC DE Division Of  Tax Liens 1072972009 No Federal Tax Liens

Corporations



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY State: UCC/Federal Tax 52958024 Bank, N.A., as
STAGECOACHILLLC T  Division Of  Liens 1072972009 g »3/05 Administrative 111 ssets of Debtor.
Corporations Agent
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY STAGECOACH DE State: UCC/Federal Tax 10/29/2009 53006963 Bank, N.A,, as All assets of Debtor.
II, LLC Division Of Liens 9/28/05 Administrative transmitting utility filing
Corporations Agent
New Castle
INERGY STAGECOACH  hp  county Federal Tax 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
II, LLC Liens
Recorder
Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
ﬁ\”ii(éY STAGECOACH MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009 No State Tax Liens
? Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY STAGECOACH - County Lien/Pending 11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
II, LLC Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY STAGECOACH County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
II, LLC DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
i i No Pending Suit
INERGY STAGECOACH MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits
I, LLC A and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY STAGECOACH usDC - Pending Suit and No Pending Suits
II, LLC DE Delaware Judgments 1171072009 No Judgments
usDC -
INERGY STAGECOACH Western Pending Suit and No Pending Suits
II, LLC MO District of Judgments 1171172009 No Judgments

Missouri



Original File Date

Debtor State Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
Department of
INERGY GAS DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 2 Active Financing Statements
MARKETING, LLC Division Of = Tax Liens No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY GAS State: UCC/Federal 52958016 Bank, N.A., as
MARKETING, LLC PE  DivisionOf  Tax Liens 1072972009 g3, Administrative /1 35sets of Debtor.
Corporations Agent
Department of JPMorgan Chase
INERGY GAS DE State: UCC/Federal 10/29/2009 53007102 Bank, N.A.,as  All assets of Debtor.
MARKETING, LLC Division Of  Tax Liens 9/28/05 Administrative ~ transmitting utility filing
Corporations Agent
New Castle
INERGY GAS Federal Tax .
MARKETING, LLC DE County Liens 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Recorder
INERGY GAS Jackson Ft_ederal Tax No Federal Tax. Liens
MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
MARKETING, LLC .
Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
INERGY GAS County . . . .
No Pending Suit:
MARKETING, LLC DE Superior ngn/Pendmg 11/5/2009 o0 Pending Suits
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
INERGY GAS County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
MARKETING, LLC DE Chancery and Judgments 1171072009, Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
i i No Pending Suit:
INERGY GAS MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits
MARKETING, LLC L and Judgments No Judgments
Circuit Court
INERGY GAS USsDC - Pending Suit No Pending Suits
MARKETING, LLC DE Delaware and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
UsDC -
INERGY GAS Western Pending Suit No Pending Suits
MARKETING, LLC MO District of and Judgments /1172009 No Judgments
Missouri
Department of
ARLINGTON STORAGE DE State: UCC/Federal Tax 10/29/2009 2 Active Financing Statements
COMPANY, LLC Division Of Liens No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of . . , .
ARUINGION STORAGE. St UCCTelerlTox 5500 200 o0 DO G0 MM byt
COMPANY, LLC Division Of Liens 10/9/07 ? 8
. Branch, as Agent Company.
Corporations
All assets of Debtor, excluding
Debtor’s equity ownership interests
Department of JPMorgan Chase in each of Adrian Associates, L.P.,
ARLINGTON STORAGE DE State: UCC/Federal Tax 10/29/2009 2008 2791554 Bank, N.A., as Arlington Associates, L.P. and
COMPANY, LLC Division Of Liens 8/14/08 Administrative  Steuben Gas Storage Company to
Corporations Agent the extent such equity interests have
been pledged to secure “Permitted
Steuben Obligations” .
New Castle
ARLINGTON STORAGE Federal Tax .
COMPANY, LLC DE County Liens 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Recorder
ARLINGTON STORAGE Jackson Fc.sderal Tax No Federal Tax. Liens
MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
COMPANY, LLC .
Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
New Castle .
State Tax No State Tax Liens
ARLINGTON STORAGE ;. County Lien/Pending 11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
COMPANY, LLC Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
County
New Castle
ARLINGTON STORAGE DE County Pending Suits 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
COMPANY, LLC Chancery and Judgments No Judgments
Court
Jackson . .
i i No Pending Suit
ARLINGTON STORAGE MO County Pending Suits 11/1/2009 o Pending Suits

COMPANY, LLC

Circuit Court

and Judgments

No Judgments



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
ARLINGTON STORAGE DE UsDC - Pending Suit 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
COMPANY, LLC Delaware and Judgments No Judgments
USDC -
i i No Pending Suit
ARLINGTON STORAGE MO West?rn Pending Suit and 11/11/2009 o Pending Suits
COMPANY, LLC District of Judgments No Judgments
Missouri
Department of
State: UCC/Federal Tax 4 Active Financing Statements
US SALT, LLC DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Corporations
Department of ip .
Specified vehicle, parts and
State: UCC/Federal Tax 2007 2960044 . . . -
US SALT, LLC DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 8/3/07 VFS Leasing Co. accgssorles, precautionary filing for
. notice purposes only.
Corporations
Department of
De Lage Landen
State: UCC/Federal Tax 2008 2928537 . ; .
US SALT, LLC DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 8/28/08 Fmapcml Leased equipment.
. Services, Inc.
Corporations
Department of
State: UCC/Federal Tax 2008 3500137 Citicorp Leasing, P .
US SALT, LLC DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 10/16/08 Inc. Specified items of leased equipment.
Corporations
Department of JPMorgan Chase
State: UCC/Federal Tax 2008 3924758 Bank, N.A., as
US SALT, LLC DE Division Of Liens 10/29/2009 11/24/08 Administrative All assets of Debtor.
Corporations Agent
US SALT, LLC Ny Secretaryof  Federal Tax 11/6/2009  No Federal Tax Liens
State Liens
US SALT, LLC Ny Departmentof o TaxLiens  11/10/2009 No State Tax Liens

State



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
New Castle Federal Tax
US SALT, LLC DE County . 11/12/2009 No Federal Tax Liens
Liens
Recorder
Schuvler Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
US SALT, LLC NY uy Lien/State Tax 11/10/2009 No State Tax Liens
County Clerk .
Lien/Judgments No Judgments
gew Castle State Tax No State Tax Liens
US SALT, LLC DE Soum,y Lien/Pending 11/5/2009 No Pending Suits
uperior Suit/Judgments No Judgments
Court
New Castle
County Pending Suits No Pending Suits
US SALT, LLC DE Chancery and Judgments 11/10/2009 No Judgments
Court
Schuyler
US SALT, LLC Ny County Pending Suits ) 10509 NO Pending Suits
Supreme and Judgments No Judgments
Court
US SALT, LLC DE USDC - Pending Suit 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
Delaware and Judgments No Judgments
UsDC -
US SALT, LLC NY W.estc?m Pending Suit and 11/10/2009 No Pending Suits
District of Judgments No Judgments
New York
CENTRAL NEW YORK . . .
2 Act F Stat t
OIL AND GAS NY zte;r:tary of Eig Federal Tax 11 67009 o ;;Z;af?:;fi o ements
COMPANY, LLC !
CENTRAL NEW YORK NJR Energy  All natural gas owned by Secured
OIL AND GAS NY 2:};reetary of EEES/FEderaI Tax 11/6/2009 ij)2()05/82200085600 Services Party and leased to Debtor pursuant

COMPANY, LLC

Company

to specified agreement.



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings
JPMorgan Chase
CENTRAL NEW YORK
OIL AND GAS NY Ste;reetary of ESI?S/ Federal Tax 467009 ;?2035/32231031612 izri‘.’nl.\]'tA';.aS All assets of Debtor.
COMPANY, LLC ! {mstrative
Agent
CENTRAL NEW YORK Department of
OIL AND GAS NY StaIt)e State Tax Liens 11/10/2009 No State Tax Liens
COMPANY, LLC
CENTRAL NEW YORK Jackson Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
OIL AND GAS MO County Lien/State Tax 11/1/2009  No State Tax Liens
COMPANY, LLC Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments
CENTRAL NEW YORK Alban Federal Tax No Federal Tax Liens
OIL AND GAS NY County Clerk Lien/State Tax 11/2/2009 No State Tax Liens
COMPANY, LLC Y Lien/Judgments No Judgments
CENTRAL NEW YORK Jackson . .
i i No Pend Suit:
OIL AND GAS MO  County Esgil&g Islfel;sts 111172009 Jueggrl:l‘egmsul s
COMPANY, LLC Circuit Court g
CENTRAL NEW YORK éi)l:lﬁy Pending Suits No Pending Suits
OIL AND GAS NY Su eri}(l) . and Judg ments 11/2/2009 No Jud mfnts
COMPANY, LLC P g &
Court
CENTRAL NEW YORK gvse];;n Pendine Suit and No Pending Suits
OIL AND GAS MO Lo ne t”l 1/11/2009 1 megms
COMPANY, LLC istrict « udgments &
Missouri
CENTRAL NEW YORK II\JI(S)EIir-n Pending Suit No Pending Suits
OIL AND GAS NY g 11/10/2009

COMPANY, LLC

District of
New York

and Judgments

No Judgments



Original File Date

Debtor State  Jurisdiction Services Thru Date and Number Secured Party Collateral/Related Filings

Department of
FINGER LAKES LPG DE State: UCC/Federal Tax 11/5/2009 No Financing Statements
STORAGE, LLC Division Of Liens No Federal Tax Liens

Corporations

New Castle
FINGER LAKES LPG Federal Tax .
STORAGE, LLC DE County Liens 11/17/2009 No Federal Tax Liens

Recorder
FINGER LAKES LPG Jackson Fc.sderal Tax No Federal Tax. Liens

MO County Lien/State Tax 11/12/2009 No State Tax Liens

STORAGE, LLC .

Recorder Lien/Judgments No Judgments

New Castle .

State Tax No State Tax Liens
FINGER LAKESLPG — pp  County Lien/Pending 11/12/2009 No Pending Suits
STORAGE, LLC Superior .
Suit/Judgments No Judgments
Court
New Castle
i i No Pending Suit:

FINGER LAKES LPG DE County Pending Suits 11/18/2009 o Pending Suits
STORAGE, LLC Chancery and Judgments No Judgments

Court

Jackson . .
FINGER LAKES LPG Pending Suits No Pending Suits
STORAGE, LLC MO Cf)unt.y and Judgments 11/12/2009 No Judgments

Circuit Court
FINGER LAKES LPG DE UsDC - Pending Suits 11/17/2009 No Pending Suits
STORAGE, LLC Delaware and Judgments No Judgments

UsDC -

i i No Pending Suit:

FINGER LAKES LPG MO Western Pending Suits 11/18/2009 o Pending Suits

STORAGE, LLC

District of
Missouri

and Judgments

No Judgments



SCHEDULE 6.03
PILOT Programs

1. Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement with the Tioga County Industrial Development Agency in connection with the Stagecoach Natural Gas Storage
Facility.



SCHEDULE 6.08

Restrictive Agreements

1. First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 16, 2003 among Steuben Gas Storage Company and Dexia Credit Local, New
York Agency, as further amended by Amendment No.1 and Amendment No. 2.



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, John J. Sherman, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Inergy, L.P. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over the financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 4, 2010

/s/ John J. Sherman
John J. Sherman
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, R. Brooks Sherman, Jr., certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Inergy, L.P. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over the financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 4, 2010
/s/ R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.

R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Inergy, L.P. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John J. Sherman, Chief Executive Officer of Inergy, L.P., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ John J. Sherman
John J. Sherman
Chief Executive Officer
May 4, 2010

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written
statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished

to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Inergy, L.P. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, R. Brooks Sherman, Jr., Chief Financial Officer of Inergy, L.P., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.
R. Brooks Sherman, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer

May 4, 2010

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written
statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished

to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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